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FACSIMILE MESSAGE

To: Securities and Exchange Commission, Division of Corporate
Finance, 450 fifth Street, N.W. - Washington D. C| 20549

Attn: Special Counsel, Office of international Corporate Finance

Fax No.: DD1 202 9428 525
From: EMs Sylva Flprikova,
'Compliance

Komeréni banka, a. s., Prague, Czech Republic
Number of pages : 3
(including this page)

Date: 28. 3. 2002

Subject:. | Resolutions of General Meeting

Dear Sirs,

We are srfanding you Resoliutions of Extraordinary General Meeting held on 28"
l
March 2002.
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Yours Sincerely,

T

Sylva Florikova

Director cl:f Compliance
!
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS OF KOMERCNI BANKA, a.s.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Komercni banka, as.
for the year ended December 31, 2001. The Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for maintaining accounting records in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
statements, taken as a whole, based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Act on Auditors and the auditing standards issued
by the Chamber of Auditors. Those standards require that we plan and conduct the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, the accounting records
and other evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements, An audit also includes an assessment of the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by the Company in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, as well as evaluation of the overall consolidated financial statements presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on the consolidated
financial statemecnts. '

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
assets, l1abilities and equity of the Komercni banka Group as of December 31, 2001, and the
results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with Act on Accounting and
relevant accounting regulations.

Prague, 26 March 2002

Audit firm: Statutory auditor:
Deloitte & Touche spol. s r.o. Michal Petrman
License na. 79. License no. 1105

Financial Group of Kamercni banka, a. s. 3




Consolidated Profit and Loss Statement
for the Year Ended 31 December 2001

Vol 4 T

2001 2000
- CZKm| CZKm
—
1. | Interest income and similar income 29 002 29 861
of which: interest income from fixed income securities 3036 2393
2. |Interest expense and similar expense -15 214 -16 808
of which: interest expense on fixed income securities -3 322 -2 074
3. |income from variable yield securities 0 3
of which;
(a) Income from shares and other variable yield securities 0 3
(b) Income from investments in associated undertakings 0 0
(c) Income from investments in subsidiary undertakings 0 0
(d) Income frorn other investments 0 1)
4. |Fees and commissions income 6 835 5706
5. |Fees and commisslons expanse -825 -1 215
6. | Profit/{loss) on fimancial operations 3143 2 626
7. 1Other income 5533 40 682
8. | General operating costs -13 485 -13 535
of which:
(a) Staff costs -8 489 -5 625
(b) Other operating costs -6 996 -7 810
9. Creation of reserves and provisions for tangible and -1 526 574
intangible assets
of which:
(a) Creation of reserves for tangible assets -50 -5
{b) Creation of provisions for tangible assets -1 148 -348
(¢) Creation of provisions for intangible assets -330 -221
10. |Use of reserves and provisions for tangible and intangible 354 1
assets
of which:
(a) Use of reserves for tangible assets 0 11
(b) Use of provisions for tangible assets 85 0
(c) Use of provisions for intangible assets 269 0
11. | Other costs -4 357 -55 758
12. | Creation of provisions and reserves for loans and guarantees -10 809 19 892
13. | Use of provisions and reserves for loans and guarantees 6514 28 669
Financlal Group of Komercni banka, a. s. 4
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2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
14. | Creation of provisions and reserves for fixed asset <4 594 -1 871
investments and other financlal investments
15. | Use of provisions and reserves for fixed asset investments 3938 1970
and other financial investments ‘

16. | Creation of other provisions and reserves -5 085 -1 993
17. | Use of other provislons and reserves 3192 1 652
18. | Extraordinary income ) B30 295

of which: arnortisation of negative goodwill a 72
19. | Extraordinary expense -276 -68

of which: amortisation of goodwill 0 0
20, | Profit/(loss) for the accounting period before minority interest 2 268 -239
21. | Share of profit/(loss) in equivalence 206 415
22. | Minarity profit/(logs) for the accounting period -57 0
23, | Profit/(loss) for the accounting period 2417 176
Signature of the statutory body:
Alexis Juan Chairman of the Management Board
Tomas Spurny Member of the Management Board
On 28 March 2002
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as of 31 December 2001

ASSETS

A L)

Financial Group of Komercni hanka. a. s.

2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
1. Cash in hand, deposits with centrai banks, postal 17 553 21 047
checking accounts :
2. Treasury bllls and other blils eligibie for refinancing 96 450 78 018
with the CNB
{a) Treasury bllls and similar bends issued by the state 15517 11825
(b) Other bills 80933 66 193
3. Amounis due from banks 157 715 177 074
(a) Payable on demand 265 847
(b) Other receivables 157 450 176 227
of which: subordinated assels 4] o]
4, Amounts due from customers 19% 3186 134 483
{a) Payable on demand 2011 1 041
(b) Other receivables 193 305 133422
of which: subordinated assets 0 G
5. Bonds and other fixed income securities for trading 5476 3751
(a) Issued by banks 1058 1114
of which: own bonds 242 680
(b) Issued by other entities 4 420 2 837
6. Shares and other variabie yield securities for trading 168 244
Fixed asset investments in equivalence 937 1036
8. Fixed asset investments in entities excluded from 231 324
consolidation .
9, Goodwill 0 0
10. Other financial investments 36 107 42 765
11. Intangibie assets 1214 896
12. |Tanglble assets 11141 12 585
(a) Land and buildings for banking activities 7 730 9 327
(b) Other 3411 3258
13. |Treasury shares 179 0
14. Other assets 11 816 B 361
15. Subscribed capltal called-up and not paid 0 4]
16. Prepayments and accrued income 1 460 4 198
Total assets 535763 484 762
6




Consolidated Balance Sheet
as of 31 December 2001

My AV 4

LIABILITIES
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
1. Amounts owed to banks 126 376 107 504
(a) Payable on demand 3543 6119
(b) Other liabilities 122 833 101 385
2. Amounts owed to customers 286 856 279 495
(a) Savings deposits 21 386 24 854
of which: payable on demand 1494 1692
(b) Other liabilities 265 470 254 641
of which: payable on demand 142 170 123 449
3. Certificates of deposit and similar debentures 60 229 38 254
(a) Certificates of deposit 1 1
(b) Other 60 228 38 253
4. Accruals and deferred incoms 763 2579
S. Reserves 13 983 10 380
(a) Reserves for standerd loans and guarantees 9715 8 184
{b) Reserves for foreign exchange rate losses 2 2
(c) Reserves for other banking risks 1 258 4
(d) Other reserves 3 008 2190
6. Subordinated liabilities 7 335 7 563
7. Other liabllities 16 622 17 992
8. Share capital (net of minority interest) 19 005 18 005
of which: share capital paid-up 19 005 19 005
9. Capital funds (net of minority interest) 289 620
10. Reserve funds and other funds from profit (net of 697 A70
minority interest)
(a) Reserve funds 696 468
{b) Other (net of retained profiYaccumuiated losses 1 2
brought forward)
11. |Retained earnings/accumulated losses brought 343 343
forward (net of minority interest)
12. Consolidation reserve fund €41 381
13. Negative goodwill 0 0
14, Profit/(loss) for the accounting period net of 2 211 238
minority Interest and share of profit/(loss) in
equivalence
15. income from share in associated undarstakings 208 415
16. Minority interest 207 (1]
Total liabilities 535763 484 762
Financial Group of Komercni banka. a. s. 7




OFF BALANCE SHEET

Financial Group of Komereni banka, a. s.

2001 2000
CZKm B CZKm
1. Total contingent liabilities 19 551 28 084
of which:
(a) Received bills of exchange/acceptances and 20 5
endarsements of bills of exchange
() Commitments from guarantees 19 531 28 088
‘  (¢) Commitments from collaterali 0 11
2. Other irrevocable commitments 31 431 34795
3. Receivables from spot, forward and option
transactions 407 737 275 161
4. Payables under spot, forward and optien
transactions 4086 135 274 755
Signature of the statutory body:
Alexis Juan Chairman of the Management Board
Tomas Spurny Member of the Management Board
On 26 March 2002
8
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FINANCIAL GROUP OF KOMERCNI BANKA, A. S.

THESE NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2001

Background information

The consolidated financial staternents of the Financial Group of Komereni banka, a. s. for the year
ended 31 December 2001 provide information on the results of operations and assets and liabilities
of the whole Group.

The censolidation group consists of Komercni banka, a.s. (the ‘Bank’), whose unconsolidated financial
statements are attached hereto as Appendix 4, and its subsidiary and associated companies (the
‘Group’). The year ended 31 December 2001 saw several changes to the structure of the financial
group that were also reflected in the structure of the consolidation group as set out in Appendix 1.
When campared to the year ended 31 December 2000, the consolidation group has exciuded ALL IN,
a. s. (‘ALL IN') which was placed into liquidation as of 1 April 2001. For the same reason, the
consolidation group has excluded from the consolidation ALL IN's wholiy owned subsidiary ALL IN
REAL ESTATE LEASING, s. r. 0., and a 25 percent equity investment in A-TRADE, s. r. o,, held by

these entities.

In the first half of 2001, the Bank acquired a 100 percent equity interest in two companies (Reflexim, a.
s., and ASIS a. s) and transformed these investments into wholly owned and controlled subsidiaries.
The Bank transferred approximately 450 staff and the related support operations to Reflexim, a. s. and
approximately 250 staff and the related information technology user support and other activities to
ASIS, a. s,

As was the case in prior accounting periods, Penzijni fond Komercni banky, a.s, whase equity capital
Is held wholly by the Bank has been excluded from consolidation due to Jegal restrictions on pension

funds regarding the distribution of profits.

Financial Group of Komercni banka, 8. s. 8
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THE CONSOLIDATION GROUP CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING ENTITIES (refer to Note (h):

Komercni banka, a. s, Praha

Investicni kapitalova spolocnost KB, a. s., Praha

Komercni banka Braticlava, a. s., Bratislava

Komercni pojistovna, a. s., Praha

Komercni Finance B. V., Amsterdam

Factoring KB, a. s., Praha

Reflexim, a. s., Praha

ASIS, a. s., Praha

A-TRADE, s.r. 0., Praha

MUZO, a. s., Praha

CAC LEASING, a. s..'Praha inciuding the foliowing subsidiaries and assoclates:
» Allrisk-CAC pojistovaci maklerska, s. r. o,, Praha
e RENAULTLEASING CZ, s.r. 0., Praha
= CAC LEASING Slovakia, a. s., Bratislava

Vseobecna stavebnl sporitelna KB, a. s., Praha

CAC LEASING Slovakia, a. 5., Bratislava

}a) information disclogsed in the notes to the annual financial statements pursuant to the
Ministry of finance Regulation applicable to banks

The parent Bank is the controlling entity in the consclidation group. Detailed information on the
Bank's assets, liabilities, equity, financlal position and results of operations is provided in the
unconsolidated financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2001 together with
the auditor's report (refer to Appendix 4). Likewise, specific information related to other entities of
the consolidation group is disclosed in the financial statements of these individual companies for the
year ended 31 December 2001.

(b) Information important to assess the financial position of the conseildation group

Specific events impacting the Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2001

The Group generated a net profit of CZK 2,417 million for the year ended 31 December 2001 (2000: a
profit of CZK 176 million). This profit figure aiso reflects the Income from share of associated
undertakings totalling CZK 206 million (2000: a profit of CZK 415 million).

Specific events impacting the Group's result for the year ended 31 December 2001 principally relate to
the parent Bank and are described in Note 2 of Appendix 4 which includes the Bank’s unconsolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2001.

4

Financial Group of Komercni banka, a, s. 10




For the year ended 31 December 2001, the Bank has exciuded from consolidation ALL IN, a. s., ALL
IN REAL ESTATE LEASING, s. ., o. (‘AIREL’") and a 25 percent squity investment in A-TRADE, s.r. 0.
held by ALL IN and AIREL.

These companies were exciuded from consolidation in the value of their equity at the date of
exclusion. The aggregate impact of these transaclions on the Group's profit and loss statement was
CzK (17) million. ALL IN is recognised in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2001 as an unconsolidated subsidiary at net book value (net of provisions) and AIREL is not
recognised at all as this entity was not held directly by the Bank but through its subsidiary ALL IN
which was excluded from the consolidation.

The results and assets of the Group were impacted by the foilowing events:

In addition to the exclusion of the above companies from consolidation, the Group included two new
subsidiaries of the Bank during the year ended 31 Decemnber 2001, that is, ASIS, a. s., which provides
information technology services and Reflexim, a. s., which provides the Bank with comprehensive
facilitation management support services, In the future, both entities are expected to provide their

services also to group companies other than the Bank,

The Group has consolidated its interest in MUZO, a. s. for the year ended 31 December 2001. In prior
accounting periods, MWZO was accounted for as an associate and consolidated using the equity
method of accounting. Management considers that the Group, directly or indirectly, has the power to
exercise control over the financial and operating policies of MUZO. Spolecnost pro informacni
databaze, a. s. is fully owned and cantrolied by MUZO but has been dormant for the accounting period
ended 31 December 2001.

Komereni pojistovna, a. s. incurred significant losses in the year ended 31 December 2001 principally
related to the continuing substantial acquisition costs associated with its life insurance portfolio,
unprofitability of its third party motor liability insurance and losses incurred in the settlement of
liabilities arising from its industrial commercial insurance portfolio. These losses primarily follow the
review of the adequacy of the technical reserves for its lines of business and a reassessment of the
accounting treatment of the Komercni pojistovna's share in the auto insurance deficit administered by
the Czech Bureau of Insurance. In December 2001, the Bank approved the plan to increase the
company’s share capital by 1,050 shares of erdinary stock in the aggregate amount of CZK 105 millien
{nominal value of one share being CZK 100 thousand) at an issue rate of CZK 275 thousand per
share. Foliowing the resolution of its sole sharsholder, Komereni pojistovna filed a proposal to update
the corporate details held at the Register of Companies maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague.
in January 2002, the Bank made a cash deposit of CZK 288.75 million in Komercni pojistovna. Of this
balance, CZK 105 million represents the nominal value of the issued shares (share capital increase of
Komercni pojistovna) and CZK 183.75 million is the share premium amount. The aggregate cspital
increase amounts to CZK 288.75 million. The management of the Bank is currently reviewing the
options available to jt in further recapitalising and restructuring this business. The Bank has indicated
that it will continue to provide financial support to Komercni pojistovna, a.s. such that it is able to meet

Financial Group of Kamercni banka, a. s. 11
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legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the entity.

Following the decision made by the Group in 2000, preparations are underway to sell A-TRADE,
s. r. 0. In this context, the entity is being transformed from a limited liability company to & joint stock

company.

The Bank's investment in the consolidated subsidiary and associated undertakings totalled, at cost,
CZK 1,712 million as of 31 December 2001.

c] Consolidation methods and basis of carrying value of the components of consoiidated
balance sheet and profit and loss statement

The Bank adopted the following methods in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
(a) Full consolidation method for subsidiary undertakings;
(b) Equity method for associated undertakings.

The consolidation process was conducted on two levels, that is consoiidated financial statements
were prepared in respect of a sub-consolidation group CAC LEASING, a. s. (CAC LEASING, a. s.,
Allrisk — CAC pojistovaci maklerska, s.r.o.,, RENAULT LEASING CZ, s.r.0. and CAC LEASING
Slovakia, a. s.) which were included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The company CAC LEASING Slovakia, a. s. was accounted for under the equity method of
consolidation as part of the above neoted sub-consolidation group CAC LEASING, a, s. Additionally,
the holdings of 10 percent and 20 percent of the Bank and Komercni banka Bratislava, a. s.,
respectively, were consolidated directly under the equity method of accounting.

As was the case in prior years, all subsidiary and associated companies, with the exception of
Penzijni fond Komercni banky, a. s., were consolidated. In 2001, Penzijni fond Komercni banky, a.s.
was excluded from consolidation due to legal restrictions on pension funds regarding the distribution

of profits.
In addition, the consolidation group includes CAC LEASING Slavakia, a. s., where the Bank holds 10

percent of the issued share capital, because Komercni banka Bratislava, a. s., and CAC LEASING,
a. s. hold equity interests in this entity in addition to the holding of the Bank.

The valuation policies applicable to assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet is based
on applicable regulations and is described in Note 3 in Appendix 4. ‘

(d) Translation of foreign currencies In the consolidated financial statemsents

information about the translation of foreign currencies in the consolidated financial statements can

be found at Note 3 in Appendix 4.

Financial Group of Komercni banka, a. s. 12
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(e) Information on consolidation rules

Cansoiidation rules issued by the Bank setting out the procedures to be adopted in the preparation of
the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2001 were prepared
in accordance with regulations issued by the Finance Ministry, ref. no, 282/9 090/1994 of 18
February 1994, as amended, and comprise all prescribed particuiars.

() Matters preventing comparabllity of items in the consolidated financial statemnents
betweean periods, and matters facilitating comparison and presentation of changes in the
consolidation group, if deemad material

The consolidated financial statements reflect the financial statements of subsidiaries and associated
undertakings which are prepared under three different charts of accounts pursuant to their business
activities (for banks, businessmen and insurance companies). Transfer bridges are employed to
ensure comparability between the individual types of charts of accounts noted above.

{q) Reasons for changes in shareholders’ equity of the conseolidation group between two

periods

When compared to the year ended 31 December 2000, the consclidated equity of the Group
increased by approximately CZK 2,397 million. This was primarily attributable to the level of profits
generated by the parent Bank.

Financial Group of Komercni banka, a. s. 13
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{h) Oraanisational scheme of the Group (refer to Appendix 1) inciuding names, registered

offices, ownership percentage and changes' from the prlor period

The consolidation group is composad of the following entitles:

INVESTMENTS IN %

. COMPANY LEVEL OF PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS
. _ . INFLUENCE o .
Komercni banka, a. s. Parent Banking services in
Praha 1 - company accordance with Sections
Na Prikope 33 1 and 2 of Banking Act
Established: 5/3/1992 21/92 Coll.
Investicni kapitalova Collection of finance for the
spolecnost KB, a. s. Subsidiary {100 % Komerehi banka, a. s. purpose of its further
Praha 1 undertaking utilisation in participation in
Dlouha 34/713 business activities under
Established: 27/3/1991 Act 248/1992 Coll.
Komercni banka
Bratislava, a, s. Subsidiary | 100 % Komercni banka, a. s. Comprehensive banking
Bratislava undertaking services in the Slovak
Medena 6 Republic
Established: 1/6/19985
Komercnl pajistovna,
a,s. Subsidiary | 100 % Komercni banka, a. s. insurance, reinsurance and
Praha 1 undertaking protection activities
Jindrisska 17/889
Established: 1/9/1895
Komercni Finance B. V,
Amsterdam Subsidiary | 100 % Kaemercni banka, a. s. Issuance of bonds and
Drentestaete undertaking provision of loans to
Drentestraat 24 shareholders
Established: 2/5/1996
Factoring KB, a. s.
Praha 1 Subsidiary | 100 % Komercni banka, a. s. Provision of factoring and
Na Porici 36 undertaking forfaiting services
Established: 4/8/1997
Reflexim, a. s.
Bolzanova 3/1679 Subsidiary | 100 % Komercni banka, a. s, Support activities
Praha 1 undertaking (operations)
Established: 8/1/2001 :
ASIS, a. s.
nam. OSN 1/844 Subsidiary | 100 % Komercni banka, a. s. Suppott activities
Praha 9 undertaking (information technology)
Established: 14/12/2000 ,
MUZO, a. s. Subsidiary | 49,90 % Komercni banka, a. s, Controlling and information
Praha 1 undertaking |20.86 % Tarpa Securities systemns - training,
Jindrisska 24 (51.2 %) (Amsterdam) advisory, data processing,
Established: 26/10/1990 9.80 % CSOB, a. s provision of software,
8.80 % GE Capital Bank, a. s. [lease of machines,
2.94 % Raiffeisenbank equipment, ATMs, etc
2.69 % CAC LEASING, a. s.
and other shareholders under 2
% investments
A -TRADE, s.1, 0. Purchase of goods for .
Praha 1 Subsidiary |75 % Komercni banka, a.s. resale, mediation in the area
Truhlarska 18/1118 undentiaking | 17.9 % ALL IN, a. s. of trade and investments,
Established: 30/6/1995 (75 %) 7.1 % ALLINREAL real estate activity,
ESTATE LEASING, business, financial,
S.I.o. organisation and economic

advisory

Financial Group of Komercni banka. a. s,
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COMPANY

' LEVEL OF

Praha 2
Belehradska 128
Established: 8/12/1993

10 % Ceska pojistovna, a. s.

INVESTMENTS IN % PRINCIPA'L OPERATIDNS
INFLUENCE '{ . L
CAC LEAS ING a. s, ' 50 % Komercnj banka, a. 5. Flnanca lezse & and other
Praha § ‘ Associgted |35 % Bank Austria types of jsage,
Janackavo nabr. 55/140 tundertaking - Creditanstalt Leasing,” | purchase of goods for.
Established; 27/2/199%. " | "~ " ' 'GmbH ’ .| resale ana sale, ,
. o 15 % Bank Ausina AG * | organisation and ecanomlc ,
Ny ' |advigory; accounting
AT : advisory, factoring
Afirisk ~ CAC Subsidiary 51 %o CACT. LEASING s, Agency activities of sales
pojistovaci© ' . . ' | undartaking |48 % Allrisk ceska poystovam arid sénvices, adv{sory
makisrska, s.r.o. " o amaklerska, s,r.0.° . |'services in trading and..
Praha 5 ' sefvices, marketmg. .
nam. Kinskych 78/7 ! market résearch and.
Established: 23/11/1998 evaluation, agengy
AN ) \servxceswrelated ¢ the
conclusion of insurance
contracts for underwriters
with registered offices in
E the Czech Republic
RENAULT LEASING Associgted |50 % CAC LEASING, a. s. Lease of industrial goods,
Gz, s.r.0. undertaking |50 % RENAULT CREDIT purchase of goads for
Praha 5 INTERNATIONAL Banque, | rasale and sale, economic
Janackovo nabr. a.s., (France) advisory, factoring, agency
55/140 services related to sales
Established: 1/1/1599 and services
CAC LEASING Associated |40 % CAC LEASING, a. s, Purchase of goods for
Slovakia, a. s. undertaking |21 % Bank Austria resale, financial lease and
Bratislava Creditanstalt Leasing other types of lease,
Hurbanove nam. 1 (Austria) organisation and economic
Established: 31/10/1997 20 % Komercni banka advisory
Bratislava , a. s.
10 % Komercni banka, a. s,
9 % HVE Bank Slovakia
{Slovakia)
Vseobecna stavebni | Associated |50 % BHW Holding, GmbH
sporitelna KB, a. s. undertaking | 40 % Komercni banka, a. s. Building savings

For principal descriptich of the companies inciuded in the consolidation group refer to Appendix 2.

(i) Summary of all fixed asset investments of the Bank included in the Group_inciluding
namee, reqgistered office of the companies and ownership percentage in_companies
excluded from consolidation (refer to Appendix 3)

(i}_Date_of the preparation of the financial statements of the companies inciuded in the

consolidation group

The audited financial statements of companies included in the consolidated financial statements

were prepared as of and for the year ended 31 Decoember 2001.

Financial Group of Komareni banka. a. s.
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(k) Plan for the amortisation of ‘positive goodwill and negative goodwiil’

The Group amortises negative goodwill into extraordinary income in the consolidated profit and loss
statement on a straight line basis over five years, The Group does not recognise positive or negative

goodwill as of 31 December 2001.

{) Total leans recelved collateralised by assets of the companies included In the
consolidation group and their description (CZKm)

The Group has no loans received collateralised by assets of the companies included in the

consolidation,

(m) Intercompany loans

Komereni banka, a. s. 7 252 |subordinated loan

Investicni kapitalova spolecnost no loan received

KB, a. s.

Komercni banka Bratisiava, a. s. 86 |short-term loan

Komercni pojistovna, a. s. no joan received

Komercni Finance B. V. no loan received

Factoring KB, a. s. 47 | overdraft facility
' 263 |short-term loan

Reflexim, a. s. no loan received

ASIS, a. s. no loan received

A_TRANF < r n. no loan received short-tarm loan




MUZO, a. s. 495 |long-term loan
CAC LEASING, a. s. 880 |overdraft facility
Vseobecna stavebni sporitelna 663 | short-term loan
KB, a. s.

CAC LEASING Slovakia, a. s. 50 |mid-term joan
Total -9 746--

Financial Group of Komercni banka. a. s.
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{n) Totai remuneration to the members of statutary and supervisery bodies (CZK ‘000)

Statutory body Supervisory body

Komerceni banka, a. s. 205 417 29 416
investicni kapitalova spolecnost 1 080 4186
KB, 3. s.

Komercni banka Bratislava. a. s. 688 141
Komercnl pojistovna, a, s. 0 257
Komercni Finance, B. V. - -
Factoring KB, a. s, 337 0
Reflexim, a. s. o] 0
ASIS, a. s. 255 )
A-TRADE, s.r. o. (] 0
CAC LEASING, a. s, 800 457
MUZ0, a. s. 1776 984
Vseobecna stavebni sporiteina 543 482
KB, a. s.

CAC LEASING Slovakla, a. s. ) o 681
Total 210 696 32834

The above table shows conly the remuneration that does not arise from employment and does not
include directors’ fees.

{o) Total financial commitments to third parties not reported on the face of the consolidated

balance sheet

The Group has no financial commitments to third parties that are not reported an the face of the
consolidated balance shest.

Total advances and loans provided to the members of statutory and supervisory bodies
The Bank granted loans to managers amounting to CZK 3,142 thousand.

Other entities included in the consolidation group provided no advances or loans to the members of
their statutory, managernent or supervisory bodies.

Financial Group of Komercni banka, a. s, 17




T /s s e o = AT AV e

(q) Purchase of Societe Generale's Prague branch

The planned acquisition of the business of Societe Generale's Prague branch and its integration into
" the Bank will form an integral part of the transformation process. Under this transaction, the Bank will
acquire the assets and liabilities of the business and transfer all its clients and staff. The transaction
was approved by the Bank's Management Board and Supervisory Board on 11 December 2001 and
14 February 2002, respectively. In December 2001, the Bank’s Executive Committee approved the
principal conditions and timing of all the processes associated with the purchase of the business. The

purchase of the business of Societe Generale’s Prague branch must be approved by the Bank's

Extraordinary General Meeting which is scheduled to take place en 28 March 2002. The purchase of
the business is also subject to the prior consent of the Czech National Bank.

The date of acquisition of the business of Societe Generale’s Prague branch is set ‘as of 31 March
2002, at which time all the assets and liabilities specified in the Business Purchase Agreement will be
acquired by the Bank and recognised in the Bank's statutory books at fair value. Pursuant toc an
independent appraisal, the purchase price of the business has been determined to be CZK 1,030

million. The difference between the purchase price and the fair value of the acquired assets and
liabilities as of the acquisition date will be recognised as goodwill in the Bank’'s assets,

Signature of the statutory body:

Alexis Juan Chairman of the Management Board

Tomas Spurny Member of the Management Board

On 26 March 2002

L

Finanelal Group of Komercni banka, a. s, 18
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges and that
prove to be highly effective in relation to the hedged risk, are recorded in the profit and loss account
along with the corresponding change in fair value of the hedged asset or ligbility that is attributable to
the specific hedged risk. The ineffective element of the hedge iz charged directly to the consolidated
profit and loss line ‘Nst profit/{loss) on financial operations.’

if the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge aceounting, an adjustment to the carrying value of
a hedged interest-bearing financial instrument is amortised fo net profit and foss over the period to
maturity. The adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged equity security remains in retainad
earnings until the disposal of the equity security.

Changes in fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges and that
prove to be highly effective in relatian te hedged risk, are recognised In the reserve in shareholders'
equity. Amounts deferred in equity are transferred to the profit and loss account and classified as
revenue or expense in the perieds during which the hedged assets and liabilities affect the profit and
loss statement. The ineffective element of the hedge is charged directly to the consolidated profit and
ioss line ‘Net profit/(ioss) on financial operstions,

Certain derivative fransactions, while providing effective economic hedges under the Group's risk
management positions, do not qualify for hedge accounting under the specific rules of IAS 39 and are
therefore treated as derivatives held for trading with fair value gains and losses reported in income in
lina 'Net grofit/(loss) on financial operations’.

The fair value of derivative instruments held for trading and hedging purposes is disclosed in Note 38.
The effects of adoption of IAS 38 on 1 January 2001 and the movements on the hedging reserve on
ghareholders’ equity are shown In Note 36.

{n) Regulatory requirements

The banks within the Group are subject to the regulatory requirements of the respective nationai
central banks. These regulations include limits and other restrictions pertaining to minimum capital
adequacy requirements, classification of loans and off balance sheet cornmitments and provisioning to
cover credit risk, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency position.

Similarly, other. Group companies are subject to regulatery regquirements specifically in relation o
insurance and collective investment schemes.

{o) Flduciary activities
Assets and income arising thereon together with related undertskings to return such assets to

customers are exciuded from these financial statements where the Group acts in a fiduciary capacity
such as nominee, trustee or agent.

Komereni banka, a.s. Page 21




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

(p) Share capital and treasury stock

Where the Group purchases its own share capital or ebtains rights to purchase its share capital, the
consideration paid including any attributable transaction costs net of income taxes is shown as a
deduction from total sharehclders’ equity. Gains and losses on sales of own shares are charged or
credited to the treasury share account in congolidated equity.

Komercni banka, a.s, Page 22
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segment of business, that is the provision of banking services.

Komercni banka, a.s. Pags 23
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

Net interest Income

Nel interest income comprises:

Year ended 31 Year ended
December 31 December

2001 2000
CZKm CZKm

Interast Incoms
- Loans and advances to financial institutions 11,894 12,534
- Loans and advances to customers* . 13,714 14,973
- Bonds, treasury bills and other fixed income securities 3,611 2,412
Total interest Income 29,019 28,919
- Amounts owed to financial institutions (2,647) (3,049)
- Amounts owed to customers - (9,581) (10,416)
- Certificated debts (3,588) (3,453)
“Total Interest expense (15,8186) {16,918)
Net interest income 13,203 13,001

* Interest income from loans and advances to customers also includes interest received and accrued
from Ceska konsolidacni agentura (the Czech Consolidation Agency, hencsforth ‘CKA’)

interest income and expenss also includes accrued interest income from hedging financial derivatives
of CZK 2,673 millien (2000: CZK 2,964 million) and accrued interest expense from hedging financial

derivatives of CZK 2,329 million (2000; CZK 2,740 million). Net interest income from these derivatives
amounts to CZK 344 million (2000: 224 million).

Source of proflts and losses

All ineome included in operating income was substantiallv aenerated from the provision of banking




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

Net fees and commissions

Net fees and commiszsions comprise;

Year ended 31 Year ended
Decomber 31 December
2001 2000
cZKm CZKm
Net fess and commissions
Net fees and commission income from services and 5,990 4. 475
transactions
Gain/ (losses) from foreign exchange commisslons from ciean 1,504 1,629
and documentary payments
Gain/ (losses) from commissions from foreign exchange 885 1,161
transactions
Total net fees and commissions 8,379 7,285

Effective from 1 January 2001, net fees and commissions comprise foreign exchangs commissions
from clean and documentary payments and client foreign exchange cash conversion transactions as
equal to the difference between the purchase/sale rate of foreign currencies determined by the Bank
and the offlcial exchange rates as published by the relevant nationai banks used under the
requirernents of the relevant accounting legislation in re-translating transactions denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group includes foreign exchange commissions In ‘Net fees and
commiissions’ because these revenues represent significant recurring income from payment and
exchange transactions effected with the Bank's customers. {n the previous periods, foreign exchange
gains from clean and documentary payments were shown in ‘Net profit/{loss) on financial opergtions’
and income from exchange was included in ‘Other income.’ Comparative figures for the year ended 31
December 2000 have been reclassified to conform with changes in presentation in the year ended 31
December 2001.

Komercni banka, a.s. Page 24




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

Net profit/{loss) on financlal operations

Net profit/(loss) on financial operations comprises:

Year ended Year ended

CZKm CZKm
Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on securitias - 1,084 730
Realised and unreallsed gains/(losses) on security derivatives 40 o]
Realised and unrealised gains/(logsses) on interest rate (15) (8)
Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on trading commodity 2 0
Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on foreign exchange 430 241
Dividend income on securities held for trading and available for 0 2
Net profit/{less) on financial operations . 1,521 985

The comparative figure in the line ‘Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on foreign exchange
financial derivatives, spot foreign exchange transactfons and re-translation of foreign currency assets
and liabilities' for the year ended 31 December 2000 has been adjusted to reflect the transfer of
income/expense associated with clean and documentary payments to ‘Net fess and comrmissions'
(refer to Note 6 to these financial statements).

‘Realised and unrealised gains/(losses’ on securities’ for the year ended 31 December 2001 includes
an amaunt of CZK 567 million representing the net profit on the sale of the Group’s sharehoiding in
Ceska pojistovna, a.s. This transaction was completed in December 2001.

‘Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on securities’ for the year ended 31 December 2000 included
one-time gains of CZK 273 million arising from the transfer of distressed corporate debts to
Konsolldacni banka's subdidiary, Konpo, which formed part of the restructuring of the Bank’s assets as
approved by the Government of the Czech Republic in March 2000.

Komereni banka, a.s. - Page 25




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

Other incoame

Other income comprises:

Year ended Year ended

31 Decemnber 31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Other income 2,865 2,827
Exceptional net income 365 157
Total other Income 3,330 2,984

Miscellaneous primarily includes the receipt of underwritten insurance premiums of CZK 1,897 milllon
(2000: CZK 1,107 million), authorisation and maintenance services connected with payment cards
system totalling CZK §82 million, fees collected in respect of mutual fund management of CZK 273
million (2000: CZK 278 millien), income from the sale of real estate of CZK 139 million (2000; CZK
793 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2001, exceptional net income principally consisted of non-recurring
income from the write-off and write back of receivables and payables held in suspense and clearing
"accounts. A significant proportion of these balances aroge as a resuit of payment transactions at the
beginning of the 1980's in connection with the Bank’s migration to 8 new banking system for domestic
payments and unsettied amounts that were due to the cleah and documentary payment system being
effected through a local banking intermediator. For the year ended 31 December 2000, exceptional
net income of CZK 157 million was included in administrative expenses.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses comprise:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Wages, salaries and bonuses 4,792 4,129
Social security costs 1,864 1,480
Empioyees’ expenses 6,456 5,589
Other administrative expsenses 6,005 6,878
Total administrative expenses 12,481 12,467
Number of employess at the end of the period 10,995 11,415
Average number of emplayees during the period 11,525 12,551
Average cost per employee (CZK) 560,174 445,303

Social security costs include retirement pension insurance costs paid by the Bank of CZK 45 miliien
(2000: CZK 45 miltion).

Komercni banka, a.s. Page 26




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2001

Other administrative expenses comprise:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2001 2000
CZKm CZKm_
Deposit ingsurance 818 1,054
Property maintenance and rent 1,116 1,253
Consulting, information and technical support 1,082 998
Telecommunications and post 418 366
Marketing and representation 408 431
Other 2,183 2,779
“Total other administrative expenses 6,005 6,878

10 Depreciation and aother provisions

Depreciation and other provisions comprise:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Depreciation of tangible and intangible fixed assets 2,255 2,485
Other provisions, net 1.831 848
Total depreciation and other provisions 4,086 3,333

Other net provisions principally consist of technical insurance provisions recorded by Komercni
pojistovna, a. s. in the amount of CZK 1,414 million (2000: CZK 640 miliion),

77 Restructuring costs

Restructuring costs comprise:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

CZKm CZKm
Redundancy compensation costs 86 320
Impairment charge relating to branch network and termination of 1,276 252
leases
Other 383 255
“Total restructuring costs 1,755 827

The management of the Bank approved a restructuring plan for the Bank in June 2000. The plan was
announced in July 2000 and implemented primarily in 2000. During 2001, the Bank continued
implementing its restructuring program, the most significant matters being the centralisation and
redistribution of certain activities and services {o the Bank's spacialised subsidiaries (refer to Nots 2 to

the financial statements).

Costs relating to the restructuring comprise costs of severance and compensation associated with
reducing staff numbers, costs of disposal of redundant buildings and early termination of leases and
costs reflecting the impairment of under-utilised ieasehold improvements on ieased premises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

Following the entrance of the new shareholder, the Bank reviewed the location, appearance and
positioning of its branch network in the context of its strategic plans for customers and product delivery
in the three-year period from 2002 throaugh 2004. This review identified a number of buildings, owned
and leased, whose location and appearance is not cornpatible with such plans. The Bank's intention is
to dispose of these premises and vacate the leases as and when the market conditions allow in the
medium term. The impairment charge from this review and earlier reviews amounts to CZK 1,278
million and includes expected losses on the sale of premises presently owned by the Bank, the
writedown of leasehold improvements on leased premises for which it intends to sell or terminate the
rental agreements and the writedown of the carrying amount of prepaid rentais on bulldings that will be
vacated. Management of the Bank considers such impalrment charges as restructuring costs. For
further information refer to Note 286.

12 Profit/(loss) attributable to exclusfon of companies from consolidatfon

The Group has exciuded ALL IN, a. s. (‘ALL IN') from the consolidated results for the ysar ended 31
December 2001 because the company was put into liquidation on 1 April 2001, The Group excluded
from the consolidation ALL IN's wholly owned subsidiary, ALL IN REAL ESTATE LEASING, s, r, o.
(‘AIREL') and a 25 percent equity investment in A-TRADE, e. r. 0. ('A-TRADE’) held by ALL IN and
AJREL.

These companies were excluded from consclidation in the vaiue of their equity at the date of
exclusion. The aggregate impact of these transactions on the Group's profit and loss statement was
C2ZK (17) million. ALL IN js recognized in the financial statements as of 39 December 2001 as an
unconsolidated subsidiary at net book value (net of provisions) and AIREL is not recognized at all as
this company was not held directly by the Bank but through its subsidiary ALL IN which was excluded
fromn the consolidation.
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13 Provisions for loan and investment losses

Provisions for loans and other credit commitments
The movement in the provisions was as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2001 2000

_C2Km CZKm

Balance at 1 January (22,172) (30,985)

Net provisioning against loan losses (2,922) (8,569)

Impact of loans written off and transferred , (902) 17,362

Exchange rate differences attributable to provisions 250 20

Re-allocation of previsions from other assets . (10) 0
Balance at period end {25.75€) (22,172)

During the year ended 31 December 2001, the aggregate balance of provislons increased by CZK
3,584 million compared to the balance at the end of 2000. This increase was principally attributable to
the change in the collateral discount methodology implemented in June 2001 and a further review of
loan classification and unpaid interest on classified Ioans at the end of the third quarter of 2001 (See
also Note 21).

The balance of provigions as of 31 December 2001 and 2000 comprises:

Year ended Yesar ended
31 December 31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Provisions for loans to customers (15,044) (13,770)

General reserve for loans to customers (8,848) (7.028)
Provisions for loans to financial institutions (13} (13)

Provisions for guarantees and other credit related commitments (1,851) (1,363)

Total (25.756) (22,172)

Provislons for securities

As of 31 December 2001, the Group recorded provisions for asset backed securitles in the amount of
CZK 1,870 million (2000: nil), The balancs of provisions recorded on the balance sheet was CZK
1,859 million and the provisioning difference is attributable to foreign exchange differences. This
portfalio of securities is held as securities available for sale and further information is given in Note 22.

Provislons for investments in subsidiaries and assoclates

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank racerds provisions of CZK 40 million (2000; CZK 5 million).
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The balance of provisions for investments subsidiaries and associates recognised on the face of the

profit and loss statement comprises the following:

Year anded Year ended
31 December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Creation of provisions (40) (5)
Release of provisions 5 0
Total provision for investments in subsidiaries and (35) (s)
associates
The balance of provisions is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Balance at 1 January (5) 0
Creation of provisions (40) (5)
Release of provisions S 0
“Balance at 31 December (40) 5)
14 Income taxes
The major components of corparate income tax expense are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Tax payable ~ current year (857) )
Tax paid - prior year (17) (114)
Deferred tax movemant (112) (7)
T {986) (12%)

The tax of CZK 17 million paid in the prior year represents an additional tax charge assessed by the
tax office pursuant to its tax review in respect of the year ended 31 December 1998,
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The corporate tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2001 is 31 percent (2000: 31 percent). The
effective tax rate as of 31 December 2001 is 25 percent (2000: zero percent). The tax on the
operating profit differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic tax rate of the Bank
as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Profit/{loss) before tax (current tax rate) 3,909 (170)
Profit before tax (special tax rate) 39 70
Profit/(loss) before tax 3,948 (100)
Theoretical tax credit calcuiated at a tax rate of 31% and 1,222 (44)
15 %, respectively (2000: 31 %)
income not taxable, primarily interest (4,401) (7,336)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 4,708 8,322
- Provisions for loan losses 1,236 2,561
- Other non-deductible casts 3,470 - 5761
Utilisation of tax losses carried forward (558) (863)
Unconsolidated tax losses ‘ 180 4]
Other 16 (80)
Movement on deferred tax 112 7
Tax allowance (15) o]
Consolidation effect (302) 36
income fax expense 930 42
Other tax expense (15 % foreign dividend tax) 3 10
Prior period tax expense 17 0
Witholding tax (15% dividend tax) 36 69
Total Income tax expense 986 121

The Group's tax liability is calculated based upon the accounting profit/(loss) taking into account tax
non-deductible expenses and tax exempt income or incoms subject to the final tax rate.

The Group's tax ligbility as of 31 December 2001 was calculated taking into the account the avallability
and use of its tax losses carried forward from previous accounting periods. At the beginning of July
2001, the tax office allowed the Bank to increase the limit for tax deductible provisions for the year
2000 by CZK 4 billion in excess of the statutery provisioning limit. This gave rise to a tax loss for the
year ended 31 December 2000 which was available for utilisation in the year ended 31 December
2001.

Further informatior about deferred tax is presented in Note 31,
18 Distribution of net profit/ Settlernent of net loss

The Group generated a net profit CZK 2,904 million in the accounting period to 31 December 2001,
Distribution of net profit for the year ended 31 December 2001 will be approved by the General
meetings of the Group companies. The losses made In respect of 2000 have been covered in
accordance with decisions of the general meetings of the Group companies.
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16 Earnings/(loss} per share

Earnings per share of CZK 76 (2000: a loss of CZK 8 per share) have been calculated by dividing the
‘net profit of CZK 2,904 million (2000: a net loss of CZK 221 million) by the weighted average number
of shares in issue, that is 38,008,852 (2000: 37,392,693).

17 Cash and balances with the eentrai bank

Cash and balances with the central bank comprise:

31 Decamber 31 December

CZKm CZKm
Cash and cash equivalents 9,457 8,002
Balances with the central banks 8,667 11,992
Current accounts with other banks 237 893
Total cash and balancas with the central bank 18,361 20,887

Current accounts with other banks of CZK 237 million include nostro accountz maintained with
correspondent banks. Given the liquidity of these funde management have included them within the
same caption as cash.

Balances with the central banks include:

31 December 31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Obligatory minimum reserves 8,196 5,167
Deposits repayable on demand 2,471 4,599
Receivable from the transfer of cash 0 2,228
Total 8,667 : 11,992

Effective from September 2001, obligatory minimum reserves with the Czech National Bank bore
interest at 2 percent per annum. Obligatory minimum reserves with the Siovak Nationa! Bank bere
interest at 1.5 percent per annum.
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18 Amounts due from banks

Balances due from banks comprise:

37 December

31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Loans and advances to banks 3,100 2,230
Advances due from the central banks (repe) transactions) 82,432 71,837
Term placements with other banks 71,390 50,418
Total 158,922 124,488
Specific provisions (13) (13)
156,908 124,473

Jotal due from banks

Advances due from the central banks are collateralised by treasury bills and other debt securities
issued by the national central banks or the Ministry of Finance.

19 Sscurities held for trading

Securities held for trading comprise:

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2001 2001 2000 2000
Fair value Cost Fair value Cost
CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm

Shares and participation
certificates 168 168 185 173
Fixed income debt securlties 1,912 1,808 2,784 2,781
Variable yield debt securities 288 289 1,260 1,260
Treasury bills 1,801 1,990 11,870 11,670
Total debt securities 4,192 4,187 15,714 15,711
4,360 4,355 15,800 15,884

Total securities heid for trading

The Group's portfolio of securities held for trading includes treasury bills of CZK 1,981 million (2000:
CZK 11,870 million) issued by the Czech National Bank,

As of 31 December 2001, the portfolio of securities held for trading includes securities at a fair value
of CZK 2,369 million (2000: CZK 4,239 million) that are publicly listed on stock sxchanges and
securities at a fair value of CZK 1,991 million (2000: CZK 11,670 milifion) that are not publicly listed.
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Shares and participation cenrtifications heid for trading at fair value comprise:

31 December 2001

A AL

31 December 2000

A

CZKm CZKm
Shares and participation certificates
- Czech crowns 168 200
Total shares and participation certificates held for 168 200

trading

Shares and participation certificates held for trading at fair value, allocated by issuer, comprise:

31 December 2001
Shares and participation certificates held for

31 Decernber 2000

trading issued by: CZKm CZKm
- Financial institutions In the Czech Republic 0 10
- Other entities in the Czech Republic 168 180
Total shares and participation certificates held for 168 200

trading

Debt securities held for trading at fair value comprise:

31 December 2001

31 December 2000

CZKm CZKm
Variable yield debt securities
- C2ech crowns 288 1,024
- Other currencies 0 236
Total varlable yield debt securities 289 1,260
Fixed income debt securities (including treasury bills)
- Czech crowns 3,249 13,971
- Other currencles 654 483
Total fixed income debt securltles 3,903 14,454
4,192 15,714

Total debt securities held for trading

Debt securities held for trading at fair value, allocated by issuer, comprise:

31 December 2001

31 December 2000

Debt securities held for trading issued by: CZKm CZKm
- State institutions in the Czech Republic 2,703 12,108
- State foreign institutions 654 278
- Financiai institutions in the Czech Republic 80 748
- Forelgn financial institutions 119 108
- Other entities in the Czech Republic 623 1,237
- Other foreign entities 13 407
Tota rities held for 4,192 15,714
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20 Due from Ceska konsolidacnl agentura

Amounts due from Ceska konsolidacni agentura comprise:

31 December 2001 31 December 2000

CZKm CZKm
Amounts due
Loans 149,765 51,887
Placements 0 755
Total loans and placements, net 49,765 52,642

CKA was formed as the legal successor to Konsolidacni banka Praha, s. p. u. pursuant to Czech
Consolidation Agency Act No, 239/2001 Coll., which took effect on 1 September 2001 (the ‘Act’). CKA
was established as the lega! successor of Konsolidacni banka under Section 19 of the Act. Under
Section 1 of the Act, the commitments of CKA, as was the case with its legal predecessor
Kongolidacni banka (under Section 44a of Banking Act No. 21/1992 Coll.), are guaranteed by the
Czech State.

The following table sets out the principal terms and conditions of the loans advanced by the Bank to
CKA to refinance the transfers of assets in August 1899 and March 2000 as of 31 December 2001;

Term Loan dated 31 August 1988 Loan dated 25 March 2000
Maturity 31.8.2004 24,3,2005
Total ameunis _ 12,230 mil. Kc 37,332 mil, Kc
- Czach crowns 12,230 mil. Ke 37,053 mil. Ke
- US dollars 0 mil. Ke 113 mil. Ke
- Euro ‘ 0 mil. Ke 166 mil. Ke
Interest rates Market benchmark rate Market benchmark rate
plus contractual margin plus contractual margin

Interest repayment Fixed interest rate — annual Fixed interest rate — annual
Variable interest rate - semi-annual Variable interest rate - semi-annual

Principal repayment Four annual instalments 13 quarterly instalments
First due 31 August 2001 First due 25 March 2002

The outstanding amount of CZK 203 millien is loan advanced to CKA not connected with refinancing
of transfer of receivables.

Amounts due from CKA include Interest due of CZK 1,618 milllon (2000; CZK 1,660 million). The
aggregate balance of interest for 2001 and 2000 represents accrued interest that is not overdus.
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21 Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers comprise:

31 Decoember 31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Loans and advances to customers 158,709 145,145
Bills of exchange 281 1,357
Forfaits 883 1,685

Total gross loans and advances to customers 160,573 148,187
Less provisione for loan losses 23,892 (20,798
Totai loans and advances to customers, net 136,681 127,391

Of the total forfaits of CZK 883 million {2000: CZK 1,685 million), forfaits issued by foreign debtors
amount to CZK 35 million (2000: CZK 13 million).

Loans and advances to customers include interest due of CZK 1,195 million (2000: CZK 1,324 million),
of which CZK 960 millien (2000: CZK 754 million) relates to overdue interest.

The Ipan portfolio of the Group as of 31 December 2001 comprises the following breakdown by
classification;

Gross Collateral Ne
receivable applied exposur
CZKm CZKm CZKm

Standard ~ 05,562 42,808 52,666
Watch 26,454 14,179 12,275
Substandard 11,169 8,100 3,069
Doubtful 11,080 5,871 5,209
Loss 16,308 1,707 14,607
Total 160,573 72,747  87.826

General reserve
for loan losses
Total provisions

Provislons Carrying Provisions

vaiue *
CZKm CZKm %
Standard 0 95,562 -
Watch (713) 25,741 6
Substandard (572) 10,597 19
Doubtful (1,989) 9,091 38
Loss (11,770) 4,538 81
Total (15,048) 145529
General reserve (8,848) (8.848)
for loan losses
“Total provisions (23,892) 138,881

* Provisioning percentage by category does not conferm to the requirement of the Czech National Bank as the ‘Collateral’ itemn
does not reflect the state guarantee value as described below in this nota,
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Loans classified as loss in the above table include amounts of CZK 4,934 million (2000: 5,566 million),
on which interest is not being accrued.
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Set out below is an analysis of types of collateral underlying on balance sheet loans and advances to

s e M

b AW WU

customers:
Total client Discounted Applied client
{ean collateral cllent loan loan collateral
collateral valuse
31 December value 31 Dscember
2001 31 Decembar 2001
2001
CZKm CZKm CZKm
Guarantees of state and
governmental ingtitutions 10,485 8038 5,288
Bank guarantee 3733 2,810 2,387
Guaranteed depasits 1,639 1,837 1317
Issued debsniures in p’Edge 13'035 13'007 12'995
Pledge of rea estate 156,700 45,308 29,567
Pledge of movable essets 10,332 1,054 848
Guarantee by corporate
entity 17 475 1,820 1,692
Guarantee by individual
(Physical entily) 4,821 538 530
Pledge of receivables 17,887 7,331 6,102
Insurance of credit risk 5,043 4,872 4,840 )
Other 13,656 8,039 6,987
Total nominal value of
collateral 254,806 96,641 72,747
Total client Discounted Appliad client
loan eollateral sllent ioan ioan collateral
collateral valuo
31 Dacember value 31 Dacembsr
2000 31 Docember 2000
2000
CZKm CZKm CZKm
Guarantees of state and
governmental institutions 8,498 7.873 2,752
Bank guarantee 2,778 2,647 2,423
Guarahiced deposits 1,881 1,651 1,063
Issued debantures in piedge 100 51 3
Pledge of real estate 178,785 72,890 45,844
Pledge of movable assets 6,857 837 658
Guarantee by corporate 19,869 10,108 8,454
entity
Guarantes by individual
(Physical entity) 4,089 3,374 2,812
Pledge of recelvables 6,937 5,284 4418
Insurance of credit risk 6,515 6,616 8,616
Other 13,884 10,048 9,125
Total nominal value of \
collateral 250,074 121,380 BA,268

The pledges on industrial real-estate represent 67 percent of total pledges on real estate (2000: 60

percent).

State guarantes covering losses on the Bank’s risk assets
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On 289 December 2000, the Bank entered into an agreement with Konsolidacni banka under which
Konsolidacni banka will cover losses, up to a maximum amount of CZK 20,000 million, which may be
incurred aver a three year period, which began on 31 December 2000, on 2 defined portfolio of
classified exposures. This agreement was signed on 29 December 2000 on the basiz of the resolution
of the Government of the Czech Republic dated 18 December 2000. The guarantee applies to the net
book value (defined as principal less specific provision) of assets classified as substandard, doubtful
and loss (in accordance with relevant CNB reguiations) as of 31 December 2000. This defined
portfolio corresponds largely with that portfolio held within the Bank's Debt Recovery Division. The
payment under the guarantee agreement is effected through a mechanism whereby the Bank’s
participation increases as the aggregate loss incurred on the defined portfolio increases. The Bank will
retain these assets on its balance sheet and ¢continue to maximise recovery, The difference between
the net book value as of 31 December 2000 and the actual amount recovered by December 2003 is
covered by the guarantee up to a maximum amount of CZK 20,000 miltion. In accordance with the
agreement this amount will be seltled in either cash or Government securities by 30 June 2004,

The table below sets out the structure of the Bank’s participation in losses incurred on the guaranteed
portfolio:

Final losses Guarantes pald by Bank’s participation In Bank’s cumuiative
Konsolidacnl banka final losses participation in final
iosses
(CZKm) (CZKm)
0~ 10,000 95% 5% 500
10,000 - 20,000 CZK 9,500 million plus CZK 500 million 2,000
85% of the amount over plus 15% of the amount
CZK 10,000 million over CZK 10,000 miilion
20,000 - 25,000 CZiK 18,000 million CZK 2,000 million 5,000

plus 40% of the amount
over CZK 20,000 miltion

plus 80% of the amount
over CZK 20,000 million

CZK 5,000 million -
plus 100% of the amount
over CZK 25,000 million

Over 25,000 CZK 20,000 million

The Bank is required to report regularly to Konsolidacni banka (now the Czech Conselidation Agency)
on the administration of the assets and the expacted losses on the guaranteed sxposures.

The State Guarantee became effective at the beginning of October 2001 following the decision of the
Economic Competition Protection Office, dated 20 September 2001, to cease its proceedings in
connection with the guarantee as set out in the Guarantee Agreement between Kansaolidachi banka
and the Bank dated 29 December 2000 regarding the provision of public support, pursuant to the
Public Support Act No. 58/2000 Coll.

Reserves and provisions to cover the Bank’s participation in the expected final losses on the
guaranteed portfolio

The Bank establishes provigions, on an accrual basis, to cover its participation in the aggregale losses
that it estimates will be incurred on the guaranteed portfolio. As of 31 December 2001, the Bank
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carried within its general reserve an amount of CZK 4,500 million which represents the Bank's present
assessment of its participation in the estimated aggregate losses on the guaranteed portfalio (that is,
total losses in the amount of approximately CZK 24,500 million). Management of the Bank monitors
closely the expecied development of the guaranteed portfolio through a series of scenario analyses
and assessments of & large number of individua! exposures representing a substantial proportion of
the nominal value outstanding. The scenarios and assessments employed reflect the uncertainties
arising from the absence of benchmark recovery rates when using systematic recovery sfforts in the
Czech Republic, the weaknesses in the legal framework regarding the enforcement of creditor rights
and the intention of management to realise substantially all of the portfolio over a three year time
horizon, Based on the facts presently available and given that the Bank has only twelve months
experience of realisation of the gusranteed portfolio, management consider it appropriate and prudent
to maintain its estimate of the aggregate loss at a level similar to that as of 31 December 2000.
Management will continue to monitor developments in the guaranteed portfolic and will revisit its
estimates again during 2002.
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Reserves for risks and uncertainties inherent in the loan portfolio

Ag of 31 Decamber 2001, the Group maintains reserves of CZK 8,848 million to cover general risks
and uncertainties, which may be present in the loan portfolio as of that date but which cannot be
allocated to individua) exposures. This reserve also covers an assessment of the Bank’s participation
in the agdaregate lossee incurred on the guaranteed risk portfolio covered by the State Guarantee (see
above). The breakdown of the reserve for general risks Is as follows:

Risk ‘ Reserve

: CZK ‘000

“Standard loans 3,373
Other genera! credit risks 5,475
“Total 8,848

Exchange of non-performing assets transferred to Konpo as part of the restructuring of assets
in March 2000 '

On 29 January 2001, the Bank entered into an agreement with Konpo, a subsidiary of Ceska
konsolidacni agentura, under which It agreed to take back certain assets transferred to it under an
original agreement dated 25 March 2000. Under this iatter agreement the Bank had transferred non-
performing assets with a nominal value of CZK 80,000 million. The Bank replaced these assets which
did not comply with the parameters of the original agreement with other assets of the quality that did
so. The final exchange of assets that had a gross nominal value of CZK 2,858 million took place on 31
May 2001, The transfers were effected at a price representing 60 percant of the gross nominal value
of the assets, that is, the same price that was used in transferring the assets in March 2000. The
financial impact of this asset transfer on the Bank's profit and loss statement was negative and
amounted to CZK 435 mlllion.

Trade finance losses

During 1888, the Group incurred losses relating to loans, letters of credit and guarantees provided to a
foreign client of the Bank.

During the year ended 31 December 2001, the loss decreased by CZK 239 million due to exchange
rate changes and repayments of part of written off receivables using other available funds to the
amount of CZK 7,840 million (2000: CZK 8,179 million). As of 31 December 2001, on balance sheet
loans and advances to this client included an emount of CZK 2,993 million (2000: CZK 3,120 million)
that was fully provided for. Included within the Bank'’s off balance sheet receivables from this client are
docurmentary ietters of cradit of CZK 518 million (2000: CZK 541 million), which are provided for o the
value of CZK 422 million (2000: CZK 425 miilion). In the second quarter of 2001, the Bank used the
funds available on the current accounts of the client to decrease the amounts written off by CZK 109
million. This resulted in a decrease of incurred iosses arising from these transactions. The provision is
shown under Note 30 Accruals, provisions and other liabilities within the line ‘Provision for ether credit
cornmitments.’ The balance of written off receivables, where recovery efforts continue, that are held in
off balance sheet memorandum accounts as of 31 December 2001 was CZK 4,525 million (2000: CZK
4,834 million). The Group is continuing to take actions in all relevant jurisdictions to recover its funds.

22 Securities avallable for sale
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Securlties available for sale comprise:

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Decermnber

2001 2001 2000 2000

Fair value Cost - Fair value Cost

CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm

Shares and participation 4,238 4,304 4,850 5,224
_certiflcates

Fixed income debt securities 18,888 19,335 17,170 17,571

Variable yield debt securities 12,013 13,233 7,823 7,823

Total debt securlties 31,011 32,568 24,893 25,384

Total securities available for sale 35,249 36,872 29,843 30,818

As of 31 December 2000, the portfolio of securities available for sale comprised those securities
previously classified as 'Investment securitieg’ that the Group decided to allocate to the availabis-for-
sale portfolio as of 1 January 2001 in conformity with the requirements of |AS 38.

As of 31 December 2001, the available-for-sale portfolio includes securities at a fair value of
CZK 17,599 millien (2000: CZK 17,385 million) that are publicly traded on stock exchanges and
sacuritles at a fair value of CZK 17,650 million (2000: CZK 12,458 milllion) that are not publicly traded.

Shares and participation certificates available for sale at fair value comprise:

31 December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm

Shares and participation certificates
- Czech Crowns ‘ 4,238 4,844
- Other currencies o] 8
“Total shares and participation certificates available far 4,238 4,850

sale

Shares available for 2ale at fair value, allocated by Issuer, comprise;

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
Shares and participation certificates avallable far sale CZKm CZKm
issued by:
- Non-banking entities in.the Czech Republic 4,238 4,844
- Non-banking foreign entities 0 8
Total shares and participation certificates avallable for 4,238 4,850
sale
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Debt securities avallable for sale at fair value comprise:
31 December

AW D Al LR

31 December

2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Variable yield debt securities
- Czech crowns 1,755 8,122
- Other currencies 10,258 1,701
Total variable yield debt securities 12,013 7,823
Fixed incomae debt securities
- Czech crowns 15,586 16,037
- Other currencies 3,412 1,133
Total fixed income debt securities 18,998 17,170
Total debt securities avallable for sale 31,011 24,993
Debt securities available for sale at fair value, allocated by issuer, comprise:
) 31 December 31 December
2001 2000
Debt securities available for sale issued by: CZKm CZKm
- State institutions in the Czech Republic 5.883 4,032
- State foreign institutions 0 89
- Financial institutions in the Czech Republic 4,551 6,160
- Foreign financial institutions 302 437
- Other entities in the Czech Republic 3,771 3,385
- Other foreign entities 16,484 10,930
31,011 24,993

Total debt securities avallabie for sale

Equity securlties

As of 31 December 2001, the Group holds SE percent of the issued participation certificates of
Otevreny podilovy fond Globainl (‘Globalni’). Globalni is managed by IKS KB, a. s., the Group's asset
management subsidiary, and the Bank acts as a depositary institution. As of 31 Decembear 2001,
Globalni’s portfolie Included 6.75 percent domestic equity securities, 8.23 percent international
equities, 4,92 percent participation certificates, 22.48 percent local debt securities, and 28.64 percent
foreign debt securities. The remalning portion of the portfolic consists of current receivables, accounts
with banks and foreign accounts. As of 31 December 2001, the Group carrles its interest in Globaini at
fair value of CZK 4,068 million (2000: CZK 4,111 million). The Group dees not consolidate this entity
because it intends to raduce its holding in the medium term and as market conditions aliow, its
participation cerificates do not carry vating rights and it does not exercise management controf other
than through the existence of management contracts which are governed by the Investment
Companies and Investment Funds Act.

In the last quarter of 2001, the Group sold 9,99 percent of the issued share capital of Ceska
pojistovna, a. s., the largest insurance company in the C2ech Republic (of which 4.87 percent of the
issued share capital was publicly traded). The Bank reallzed a profit of CZK 567 million from this sale.

In the Iast quarter of 2001, the Group sold 89.42 percent of the issued share capital of Ceska
zbrojovka, a. s., a small arrs manufacturer in Czech Republic. The investor was selected pursuant to
a tender initiated in June 2001 and was approved by the Bank's Management and Supervisory
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Boards, A Share Purchase Agreement was entered into in November 2001 and this transaction was
effected In Decernber 2001, The Bank realised a profit of CZK 52 million from this 2ale,

As of 31 December 2001, the Group holds 77.18 percent (2000: 77,18 percent) of the issued share
capital of Vodni stavby, a.s,, a large construction company in Czech Republic, The Group acquired the
majority of these shares in cennection with the liquidation of the company and the recovery of a
syndicated facility provided to Vodni stavby, a.s. in prior years, The Group has attributed no fair valus
to thiz shareholding as of 31 December 2001. Pursuant to Section 183 b (4) (a) (2) of the Commercial
Code, the Bank does not exaercise and does not intend to exercise voting rights, which are equivalent
to a 5§7.22 percent shareholding (of the aggregate 77.18 percent sharehoiding of the Group)
shareholding, attached to these shares nor will the Bank pass the veting rights tc other parties, The
Bank's Management Board has discussed a further course of action in relation to the holding of these
shares. Negotiations that were conducted with regard to the sale of the shares and the aggregate loan
exposure had not been successful by the close of 2001.

Asset backed securities

In the last quarter of 2000 and the first half of 2001, the Group acquired an unlisted portfolio of USD
denominated collateralised bond obligations (‘CBQ') or assst backed securities {'ABS') issued by &
series of special purpose corporations. The total acquisition cost of the portfolio was USD 426 million.
The portfolio of asset backed securities has an average c¢redit rating of A2 (Moody's) as of 31
December 2001 and a substantial portion of the securities have ratings issued by other recognised
international rating agencies. The securities bear a fixed or floating interest rate based on USD LIBOR.

Pursuant to the requirements of [AS 39 the Group allocated these securities into the available for sale
pertfollo and the held to maturity portfolio as of 1 January 2001. In December 2001, management of
the Group determined that all asset backed securities are to be held in the available for sale category.
This transfer was implemented as of 31 December 2001. The decision on the allocation of the
securities was made by the Bank's new majority shareholder in connection with the Bank's
privatisation reflecting the fact that Societe Generale's global strategy is to carry such securities as
available for sale. The transfer of the assat backed securities to the available for sale categary had ne
impact on the profit and loss statement. The Group, from mid-2001, has provisioned for the
impairment of the asset backed securities held in both categories on a consistent basis.

The Group established a provision for impairment of CZK 1,859 million as of 31 December 2001
against the asset backed securities, the carrying vailue of which, net of impairment, [s CZK 13,437
miliion. Management considers that this impairment ¢charge represents its best estimate of the net
recoverable value of these assets and reflects changes in markst credit conditions in the markets of
the underlying aseets since the purchase of the portfolio. The Bank used the same approach in
establishing the fair value of the credit linked note (see bellow Other debt securities).

Qther debt securities

Securities issued by fareign financial institutions inciude a credit linked note (the ‘note’) with a nominai
value of Eure 8.5 millien, issued by an internationsily recognised bank, which amortises to zero over
the ten years to its maturity pursuant to the payment schedule. The note bears interest based on a
margin over three month EURIBOR. This note forms part of a credit derivative instrument acquired by
the Bank during 2000 under which it sold cradit protection te an intarnational financial institution. The
maximum exposure of the Group under this agreement is Euro 100 million. The aggregate expogure
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amortises over the ten year life of the instrument. Off balance sheet instrumentz of Euro 100 million
associated with this transaction (the so called ‘credit default swaps') are shown within issued banking
payment guarantees. In September and December 2001, the Group received notices of credit events
in respect of two reference assets within the contract. The credit quality of other reference assets has
also deteriorated. If the aggregate loss exceeds the contracted threshold, the Group will have to pay
the amount over the threshold to the issuer. The Group simulated the impact of credit events under a
number of scenarios. The Group craated pravisions for possible losses in respect of this instrument in
the amount of CZK 244 million as of 31 December 2001,

The Group holds a2 porifolio of CZK denominated debt obligations Ilssued by jarge international
carporates through private placements, The carrying valus of this portfolio was CZK 3,127 million as of
31 December 2001 (2000: CZK 7,000 million) as a result of the redemption of a one of the
invastments.

23 investments held to maturity

Investments held to maturity comprise;

31 December 31 December 31 Dacember 31 December

2001 2001 2000 2000
Carrying

value Cost Carrying vaiue Cost

CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm

Fixed income debt securities 1,108 1,107 8,220 6,220
Variable yield debt securitles 0 0 5,502 5,503
Treasury bills 345 345 354 354
Total Investments held te maturity 1,453 1.452 12,077 12,077

As of 31 December 2000, the portfolio of investments held to maturity comprised those securities
previously classified as investment that the Group decided to allocate to the held-to-maturity portfolio
as of 1 January 2001 in conformity with the requirements of in IAS 39. See also Note 22,

As of 31 December 2001, the held-to-maturity portfolio includes securities of CZK 1,108 million {2000:

CZK 848 million) that are publicly traded on stock exchanges and securities of CZK 345 million (2000:
CZK 11,231 miilion) that are not publicly traded.
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Debt securities heid io maturity comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Variable yield debt securlties
- Czech Crowns 0 3,188
- Other currancies 0 3,385
“Total variable yleld debt securities 0 6,574
Fixed iIncome debt securities
- Czach Crowns 168 42
- Other currencies 1,254 5,461
Total fixed income debt securities 1,453 5,503
Total debt sscurities heid to maturity 1,453 12,077

Investments held to maturity, allocated by issuer, comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
Debt securities heid to maturity issued by: CZXm CZKm
~ State institutions in the Czech Republic 0 3,759
- State foreign institutions 483 514
- Financial institutions in the Czech Republic 199 919
- Other entities in the Czech Republic 1] 3,978
- Other foreign entities 761 2,908
Total debt securlties held to maturity 1,453 12,077
24 Prepayments, accrued Income and other assets
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets comprise:
31 December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Prepayments and accrued income 2,912 3,252
Settlerment balances 347 154
Other receivables from securities trading 3 211
Other assets 3,035 3,823
“Total prepayments, accrued income and other assets 6,297 7,440
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25 Investments in assoclates and unconsolidated subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries and associates comprise:

31 Decomber 31 December 2000

2001
CZKm CZKm
Shares in subsidiary undertakings (unconsolidated) 231 230
Shares in associated undertakings 1,493 1,035
Companies with minority interest v] 23
Total investrments in assoclates and uncensolidated
companies 1,724 1,358
Group's ae 30 31 31
ownership Septembar Soptember . December Dacember
interest 2001 2001 2000 2000
% __CZKm - CZKm CZKm CZKm
Subsidiary companies Cost of Net book Cost of Net book
investment value investment value
ALL IN, a.'s., v likvidacl 100.00 40 0 0 (1]
Penzljni fond Komereni banky, a. s. 100.00 230 230 230 230
Spolecnost pro informacn| databaze, a. s, 100.00 1 1 0 0
Subsidiary companies total 271 291 230 230
Associated undertakings Cost of Share of net Cost of Share of nat
investment assets Investment assets
CAC LEASING GROUP 50.00 123 2988 123 326
MUZO, a. 5. - o] 9] 81 180
Vseobecha stavebni 40.00 220 525 220 529
sporiteina KB, a. s, —
Asggociated undertakinge total 342 1,482 404 1,035
Companies with minority Interest Cost of Net book Costof  Netbook
_ Investment value investment value
Bankovni institut, a. s. - s} 0 3 3
Ceskomoravska 2arucni a rozvojova - 0 0 60 B0
banka, a. s,
Burza cennych papiru Praha, a. s. - 0 (¢] 30 30
"Companies with minerity interest total 0 0 EE 93
Investments in assoclates and 813 1.724 727 1,358

unconsolldated subsidiarias

The increase in the carrying value of the Group’s investment in CAC Leasing, a.s. Group ("CAC
Leasing") reflects the increase in the net assets value of CAC Leasing arising from the first time
application of International Accounting standards as of 31 December 2001, The total credit after tax to
the profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2001 was CZK 648 million. Management
aestimate that CZK 147 million relates to the year ended 31 December 2001 and the balance of CZK
502 million to prior accounting periods. Prior year figures have not been restated.
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26 Tangible and intangible fixed asseots, net

The movements during the year ended 31 December 2001 are as follows:

Intangible
fixed Land Buildings
assets
CZKm CZKm CZKm
Cost
31 December 2000 1,748 387 12,483
Additions 1,049 188 687
Disposals 23 23 80
31 December 2001 2,774 563 13,090
Accumulated
demasiatian 2000 935 ] 2,782
Additions - accumuliated €68 o 542
depreciation
Disposals - accurmnulated 23 0 80
depreciation
impairment charge 220 0 1.060
31 December 2001 1,801 0 4,304
Net book vajue
31 December 2000 813 287 9,701
31 December 2001 973 583 8,788
Fixtures, Assets
fittings under Totai
and construction
aequipment
CZKm CZKm CZKm
Cost
31 December 2000 B,625 861 24,204
Additions 1,199 1,890 5,024
Disposals 575 2,232 2,933
31 December 2001 8,249 619 28,295
Accumulated
depyesiatian 2000 8,509 221 10,448
Additions - accumulated 1,324 o) 2,545
depreciation
Disposals - accumulated §75 o] 878
depreclation
impairment charge 5 (120) 1,164
31 Decernber 2001 7,273 101 13,479
Net book value
31 December 2000 2118 740 13,7568
31 December 2001 1,878 g18 12,815

As of 31 December 2001, the net book valye of assets held by the Bank under finance lease
agreements was CZK 564 milllon {2000; CZK 385 million).
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Total depreciation charges for the period ended 31 December 2001 are included in line ‘Additions -
accumulated depreciation' amount to CZK 2,545 million (2000: CZK 2,485 million), from which €CZK
2,255 million relates to the depreciation amount charged in 2001 and CZK 290 million relates to the
accumulated depreciation of assets of the newly consolidated company MUZO charged in previous
years.

The impairment charge and the basis for it are set out in Note 11 'Restructuring costs.’ As of 31
December 2001, tangible and intangible fixed assets held as part of the branch network, which the
Bank intends to dispose of in the medium term of as and when market and business conditions allow,
shown In the table above have a net book value of approximately CZK 2,500 million.

In addition the belance of tangible and intangible fixed assets include other assets which have been

previously besn identified as not in use, available for sublet or sale with a net book value of CZK 530
million.
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27 Amounts owed fo banks

Amounis owed to banks comprise:

31 December

LA

T

LI L3 (SR

31 December

2004 2000

CZKm CZKm

Current accounts 1,048 1,122
Amounts owed to banks 29,872 40,671
Total amounts owed to banks 30,918 41,793

28 Amounts owed to customers

Amounts owed to customers, by type of deposit, comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Current accounts 131,474 110,432
Savings accounts 21,386 24,863
Term deposits 118,668 104,811
Deposits from budget of public sector 7,469 7.784
Off-budgst deposits of public sector 7,522 5,852
Loans from customers 31,875 25,768

Total amounts owed to customers 318,394 ~ 279,510

Amounts owed to customers, by type of customer, comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Private companies 113,782 80,747
Other financia! institutions 4,257 2,225
insurance companies 2,698 2,441
Public administration 8,326 14,083
Individuals 118,527 123,524
Non-residents 5,508 828
Deposits — bilis of exchange 31,807 25,029
Private entreprensurs 16,732 14,944
Gavernment agencies 6,665 15,565
Other 10,280 154
“Total amounts owed to customers 318,304 279,510
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29 Ceriificated debt

Certificated debts comprise:

AN

v
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31 December 31 December

2001 2000

CzZKm CZKm

Bonds 20,433 29,489
Morigage bonds 7,058 6,600
Total certificated debts 27,492 36,098

Publicly tradable mortgage bonds are issued to fund the Group's mortgage activities,
Certificated debts are repayable, according to remaining maturity, as follows:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

in iess than one year 9,985 8,936
In one to two years 0 9,947
In two to three years 16,173 0
In three to four years 0 16,118
Five years and thereafter 1,324 1,100
Total certificated debts 27,492 36,099

The bonds and medium-term notes detailed above include the following bonds and notes issued by the

Group:

Name Interest rate issue date

Bonds of Komereni banka, 6M PRIBOR plus 15 basis 10 Fabruary

a, 8., CZ0003700429 points (bps) 1987

Zero coupon banda of Zaro coupen (Issued with 8 August 1887
Komereni banka, a. s., discount for CZK 3,805

770870000947 million)

Bonds of Komercni banka, &M PRIBOR plus 10 basis 25 September

a. 8,, CZ0003700452 points 1887
Mortgage bonds of 8.125% (mortgage bonds 2) 13 May 1988
Komarcni banka,

a. s, C20002000110

Mortgage bonds of 8,0% {mortgage bonds 1) 18§ June 1888
Komercni banks,

a. 2., CZ0002000102

Bonds of Komercni banka, 8.0% 10 September

a, 5., CZ0003700528 1999
Mortgage bonds of &M PRIBOR plus 350 basls 15 September
Komereni banka, points (Mortgage 2000

a. 8., 20002000151 bonds 3)

Bonds of Kemercni 7,125 14 May 1996

Finance B.V.

Total bonds

Name Maturity date 31 Decemnber 2001 31 Decem::;

2
CZKm CZKm

“Bonds of Kamerchi banka, 10 FaBruary 6,124 5,973
a. 5., CZ20003700429 2002
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Zero coupon bonds of 8 August 2004 5,581 5,841
Komereni banka, a. s.,

770970000947

Bonds of Komercni banka, 29 September 3,861 4,000
a, £,, CZ0003700452 2002

Martgage bonds of 13 May 2004 4,160 4,000

Komercni banka,

a. 8., CZ0002000110

Mortgage bonds of 15 June 2004 1,565 1,500
Komereni banka,

a. 8., CZ0002000102

Bonds of Kemereni banka, 10 September 4,867 4,775
a. 5,, 20003700528 2004

Mortgage bands of 15 September 1,334 1,100
Komercni banka, 2007

a, 8., CZ0002000151

Bonds of Komercni 14 May 2001 0 8,836

_Finance B.V.
Total bonds 27,802 36,099

Six-month PRIBOR was 448 basis points as of 31 December 2001 (2000: 557 basis peints).
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30 Accruals, provisions and other liabilities

Accruals, provisions and other liabilities comprise:

31 December 31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Settlement balances and outstanding balances 3 350
Payments in clearing 3,208 8,557
Other payables to customers 187 1,768
Other trading payables 5§29 497
Other liabilities : 4,650 5,102
Provisions, accruals and deferred income 2,828 2,928
Provision for other credit commitments 1.851 1,363
Other provisions 3,229 1,567
Total aceruals, pravislons and ather liabllitles 16,493 20,137

As of 31 December 2001, the balance of the provision for other eredit commitments was CZK 1,851
million. This covers credit risks associated with issued credit commitmenis, off balance sheet credit
instruments and the estimated particlpation in the expected losses on the guaranteed portfolio of off
balance sheet exposures of the Bank pursuant to the Guarantee Agreement dated 28 December
2000.

Other provisions are composed of the following balances:

1January Additions Disposais 31 December

2001 2001
Restructuring provision (refer to Note 11) 0 100 4 98
Provigions for contracted commitments 1,567 4,602 3,036 3,133

“Total 1,567 4,702 3,040 3,229

Provisions for contracted commitments principally comprise life and non-life technical reserves held by
the Group's insurance subsidiary in the amount of CZK 2,407 million as at 31 December 2001 (2000 -
C2ZK 1,108 million), the provision for outstanding vacation days, legal disputes and termination of
rental agreements and.
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31 Deferred incomm taxes

Defarred income taxes are calcuiated on all temporary differences under the llability rmethod using a
principal tax rate effective for the following year, that is 31 percent {2000: 31 percent).

The movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows!

31 December 31 December

2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
At beginning of period
- as previously reported (97) 0
- effect of adopting IAS 39 (note 38) (103) 0
As restated at the beginning of the period (200) (90)
Change in consclidation (Muzo) (22) 0
Income statement (charge)/credit
- unrealised profit on securities (170) 0
- fixed assets depreciation 32 o
- contractual penalties {i8) 0
- reduction in tax associated with the sale of securities 42 0
(112) 7
Cash flow hedges - equity charge
- fair value re-measurement {438) 0
- transfer to net profit 108 o]
(330) 0
At end of period (664) (97)

The movement in the deferred income tax account comprises the movement in accelerated tax
depreciation, unrealised profit on securities and contractual penalties.
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items:

37 Decamber 31 December

2004 2000
Deferred income tax llabllities ' CZKm CZKm
Accelerated tax depreciation (83) (83)
Unrealised profit on securities - equity impact 0 o
Unrealised profit on securities - P/L impact (170) 0
Revaluation of hedging derivatives (391) 0
Other temporary differences (21) (14)

{665) (97)
Defoerred income tax assats
General and specific loan loss provisions 421 2,387
Reserves and provisions for assets 454 0
Other provisions 236 0
Provisions for non-banking receivables €4 0
Tax logs carry forwards 428 240
Unreallsed losses on securities 207 292
Fixed assets depreciation 22 o]
Other temporary differences 86 268

1.018 3,078
Net deferred income tax asset before adjustment 1,253 2,581
Adjustment for uncertain realisation of tax asset (1,817) (3,078)
Neot deferred income tax (lability (664) (97)

The reduction in the unrecognised deferred tax asset as of 31 December 2001 when compared with
the prior year end reflects primarily changes in the treatment of the general reserves held by the Bank
as of 31 December 2001 pursuant to the prospective application of amendments to the Act on
Reserves. The Act as presently drafted requires that the Bank release these provisions in the
accounting periods ending 31 December 2005.

32 Subordinated debt

In 1898, Komercni Finance, B. V. (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank) issued guaranteed. step-up
callable notes due 15 May 2008, bearing interest at 9 percent per annum te 15 May 2002 and then
interest at a rate per annum equal to the sum of the six-month dollar deposit LIBOR for the relevant
payment period plus § percent. The notes constitute direct, unsecured, unconditional, subordinated
obligations of Komercni Finance, B. V. which are irrevocably, fully and, subject to subordination,
unconditionally guaranteed as fo principal, premium and interest by the Bank. The notes are
redesmable at the option of Kamercni Finance, B. V. in whole on any interest payment date on or after
15 May 2003, The nominai value of the subordinated debt is USD 200 million.
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32 Share capital

The Bank's share capital, iegaily registered in the Reglster of Cofnpanias on {1 February 2000, is CZK
19,005 million and consists of 38,009,852 ordinary shares with 8 nominal value of CZK 500 each
(ISIN: CZ00080191086).

In connection with the saie of the State's controlling interest in the Bank held by the Nationai Property
Fund of the Czech Republic, Societe Generale 8. A., incorporated under French law, having its
registered office address at 29, boulevard Haussmann, 75009 Paris, France, acquired a 60.001
percent shareholding in the Bank on 4 October 2001. Societe Generale is a French joint stock
company registered in the Register of Companies (Registre du Commerce et Societes) under no. RCS
Paris 552 120 222. Societe Generale operates as a licersed bank pursuant to & resolution issued on 4
May 1864 and is subject to the regulatory requirements of the French Companies Act {Loi sur les
Societes Commerciaies 68-537, 24 July 1888) and the French Banking Act (L.oi Bancaire 84-46, 24

January 1984).

34 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents reported in the cash flow statement

31 December 31 December Change in the

2001 2000 year

CZKm CZKm CZKm

Cash and balances with central banks 18,124 19,994 (1,879)
Current accounts with other banks 237 893 (656)
Amounts owed to banks (1,046) {1,122) 78
Totaj 17,315 19,765 (2,450)

35 Commitments and contingent liabilities

Legal disputes

The Group conducted a review of legal proceedings outstanding against it as of 31 December 2001.
Pursuant to the review of significant litigation matters in terms of the risk of losses and litigated
amounts, the Group has tecorded a provision of CZK 75 rnillion for these legal disputes. The Group
has aiso recorded an accrual of CZK 24 millicn for costs associated with cross-border lagal actions
brought against a foreign client in connection with losses incurred in the Bank’s trade finance area.

The Group has been notified that certain parties against which it is taking legal action may file
counterciaims against it. The Group has no information that such ciaims have yet been filed in any
court. The Group will contest any such claims and, taking into consideration the opinion of its internai
and external legal counsel, believes that any asserted claims made will not materially affect its
financial position. No provision has been made in respect of thase matters.
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Commitments arising from the issuance of guarantees

Commitments from guarantees represent irrevocable assurances that the Bank will make payments in
the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties. These assurances carry the
same credit risk as loans and therefore the Bank makes provisions against these instruments on the
same basis as is applicable to loans.

Purchase of Societe Generale’s Prague branch

Pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement dated 12 July 2001, the Bank will acquire the business of
Societe Generale's Prague branch. It is anticipated that the Bank will complete the acquisition of the
business and assets and liabilities of Societe Generale's Prague branch in the first quarter of 2002,
For further information refer to Note 45.

Capital commitments

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank had capital commitments of CZK 88 million {2000; CZK 34 million)
in respect of current capital investment projects, Management is confident that future net revenues
and funding will be sufficient to cover this cornmitment.

Commitments arising from the issuance of letters of credit

Documentary letters of credit, which are written irevocable undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a
customer (mandatory) authorising a third party (beneficiary) to draw drafis on the Bank up to a
stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are collateralised by the underlying shipments
of goods to which they relate and therefore have significantly less risk, Cash reguirements under open
letters of credit are considerably less than the commitments under issued guarantees, avais or stand-
by letters of credit. However, the Bank records provisions against these instruments on the same basis
as is applicable o loans.

Commitments to extend credit, undrawn loan commitments, unutilised overdrafts and
approved overdraft loans

The primary purpose of commitments to extend credit is to ensure that funds are available to a
customer as required. Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to
extend credits in the form of loans, guarantees or stand-by letters of credit. Commitments to extend
credit issued by the Bank represent issued loan commmitments or guarantees, undrawn portions of and
approved overdrafts loans. Commitments to extend credit or guarantees issued by the Bank which are
contingent upon custormers maintaining specific credit standards (including the condition that a
customer's solvency does not deteriorate) are revocable commitments. lrrevocable commitments
represent undrawn portions of authorised loans and approved overdraft facilities because they result
from contractua! terms and conditions in the credit agreements. '
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Financial commitments and contingencies comprise:

31 December 31 December
2001 2000
‘ CZKm CZKm
Non-payment guarantees 5,524 4,768
Payment guarantees 5,307 4,731
Lefters of credit uncovered 687 895
Stand by letters of credit 781 818
Commlitments from guarantees 12,279 11,010
Received bills of exchange/acceptances and endorsements of 20 9
bilis of exchange
Total contingent liabilities 12,299 11,019
"Committed facilities 15,648 15,788
Undrawn credit commitments 15,773 18.820
Confirmed letters of cradit 5 92
Other Irrevocable commitments 31,428 34,801
Unutilised overdrafts and approved overdraft loans 20,834 17,710
Letters of credit covered 203 345
Total contingent and irrevocable commitments 84,857 83,875

The Group prevides a variety of credit facilities to its largest clients including Czech entities which are
part of international groups and which are State owned. Of the Group’s committed facilities and
guarantees, CZK 8,971 million is revocable (2000: CZK 7,565 million), All other committed facilities,
undrawn credit commitments and unutllised overdrafts are Irrevocable and are not subject to further
approvals by the Group.

The risk associated with off balance sheet credit cormnmitments and contingent liabilities is assessed
similarly as for loans to customers, taking into account the financial position and activities of the entity
to which the Group issued the guarantee and taking into account the collateral obtained. As of 31
Decsmber 2001, the Group created provisions for these risks amounting to CZK 41,851 million (2000:
CZK 1,363 million).

As of 31 December 2001, payrnent guarantees inciude an amount of EUR 100 million relating to a
credit derivative agreement (sea Note 22).

Finance lease commitments

The Group has entered into finance leases in respect of equipment (computérs, ATMs and cars), the
payments for which extend over a three year period.

Komercni banka, a.s. v Page 58




A T e . L R T T S SV, TV U i, oot

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

Assets held under finance leases:

31 Decomber 31 December 2001 31 December 31 December

2001 excluding interest 2000 2000

including including exciuding

interest interest interest

CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm

Leased agsets 1,831 1,353 098 B73

Paid instaiments 1,067 951 722 644

Amounts due 484 402 276 229
- Remnaining maturity of remaining instalment:

Up to 1 year 175 149 144 119

1 {0 5 years 288 253 132 110

Qver 5 years 0 0 0 0

Total 464 402 276 228

Taxation

Czech tax legislation and practice has changed significantly in recent years. Many parts of the
legislation remain untested and there is uncertainty about the interpretation that tax authorities may
apply in a number of areas. Management of the Group has applied revised tax legisiation on a prudent
basis. Tax positions taken by the Group are subject to examination and could be challenged by tax
authorities. As a result there may be uncertainty about the potential impacts, should the interpretation
of tax authorities differ from that applied by the Group.

During 2001, the Czech tax authorities undertook detalled reviews of the Bank's tax position,
specifically focusing on corporate income taxation for the period 1997 to 1888 and 2000, The findings
from these tax reviews had an immaterial impact on the Bank’s tax position and have been reflected in
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2001.

Management considers that the Group is not exposed to any material tax riske and therefore no
provision has been made in this respect.
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38 Derivative financial ingtruments

In the normal course of business the Group enters into financial instrument transactions to hedge its
liquidity, interest and foreign currency riske. The Group alse enters into speculative financial derivative
transactiong for the purpose of generating profits from short-term fiuctuations in market factors. The
Group also acts as a principal to derivative transactions with its clients. With regard to special
structured deals carried out on behalf of customers, the Group fully eliminates market risks associated
with these products by entering into an opposite position with a banking counterparty (back to back
transactlons), The Group operates a systemn of market risk and counterparty limits which are designed
to restrict exposure to movements in market prices and counterparty concentrations. The Group also
manitors adherence to all limits on a daily basis and follows up on any breaches of these limits and
takes corrective action to reduce the risk exposure.

The following tables set out notionaij and fair values of financial derivative instruments categorised as
other and hedging (refer to Note 3 {m) to these financial statements).

Financial derivative Instruments designated as other:

31 M 31 31
December December Decomber December
2001 2004 2001 2001
Assets  Liabliitles Pogitive Negative
Notional Notional Fair value Fair value
value value
CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm
Interost rate instruments
Interagt rate swape 80,483 60,483 1,836 1,854
Farward Rata Agrasments 135,051 135,051 512 488
Options 4,400 4,400 84 89
Toml 199,834 199,934 2,442 2,631
?oralgn currancy
Instruments
Currency swaps 83,507 82,883 2,208 1,837
Cross cummency swaps 22,279 21,372 993 109
Forwards 4,746 4,673 20 24
Call options 1,231 1,344 28 [»]
Pul options 985 872 0 286
Total 112,748 111,144 3,31 1,796
Other instruments
Credit options 20,506 20,506 0 0
Forwards on debt securlties 1,813 1,813 0 1
Tolsl 22,319 22,319 0 1
Total 335,001 333,398 5,758 4,228
31 KN 3N 31
December December December Decermnber
2000 2000 2000 2000

Asgsets Liabiliies  Positive Negative
Notional  Notional Fair value Fair value

value value

CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm

Interest rate instruments
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Interest rate swaps 55,347 55,247 1,573 1,135
Forward Rate Agreements 80,790 80,790 52 49
Optians 4,400 4,400 60 55
Total 140,537 140,537 1,685 1,239
‘Forelgn currency
instrurments
Currency swaps 59,329 59,128 1,453 1,115
Cross currency swaps 638 884 1 159
Forwards 7695 7,620 143 170
Call eptions 8,511 §,295 32 22
Put options 0 0 0 0
Totl 76,173 75,737 1,629 1,466
Other instruments
Credit options 0 0 0 0
Forwards on debt securilles 0 0 0 0
Yol I 0 o 0
Total 216,710 216,274 3,314 2,705
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Flnancial derivative Instruments deslgnated as other at nominal values per remaining maturity:

Up to 1 year 1to § years Over § years Total
) CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm
Interest rate instruments
IRS 16,782 29,048 14,855 60,483
FRA 135,051 0 0 135,051
Options 0 400 4,000 4,400
Total 151,833 29,846 18,855 188,934
Forelgn currency
instafipents 83,474 33 0 83,507
Cross currency swaps 1,056 21,223 0 22,279
Forwards 4714 32 0 4,748
Call options 1,231 0 0 1,231
Put options 985 s} c 285
Total 91,460 21,288 0 112,748
Other instrumeants
Credit options 0 20,508 o 20,508
Forwards on debt 1,813 1] o 1,813
securities . _
Teotal 1,813 20,5086 [+] 22,319
Total 245,106 71,240 18,655 335,004

Note: The remaining maturity of forward rale agresments (FRA) covers tha psriod (o the fixing date when off balance shest

exposures are revarsad,

Financial derlvative instruments designated as hedging:

Notional Notional Positive Negative Notional Notional
assots liabilitles falr value fair value aszets liabllities
31 31 31 31 31 31
December December Decemnb Decemb December December
2001 2001 eor2001 er2001 2000 2000
CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm
Forelgn currency
Instruments
Swaps 0 0 o] 0 3,881 3,775
Cross currency 0 0 0 0 1,785 1,881
swaps
Total 0 ] Q9 0 5666 5,666
Interest rate
instruments
. Interest rate swaps 85,555 65,555 2,033 81 38,287 38,287
FRA 2,800 2,800 27 0 10,200 10,200
Total interest 68.3§§ 68,355 2,060 81 48,487 48,487
Total 68,355 68,355 2,080 81 54,153 54,153
Remalning maturity of derivatives designated as hedging:
Uptoiyear 1to5years OverS years Total
- CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm
Interest rate swaps 14,000 41,555 10,000 65,555
Forward rate agreernent 2,B00 ] 0 2,800
Total 16,800 44,558 10,000 68,355
Kormercni banka, a.s. Page 62




I . N R T R S AVY, T Y L

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

The Group treats as hedges oniy those contracts where it has the ability to demonstrate that all criteria
for recognising the transactions 2s hedges sef out in [AS 39 have been met. Further information on
hedges is pravided in Notes 3 (m) to these financial staternents,

The substantial increase in notional values of forward rate agreements (FRA) is primarily due to the
Group acting as a market maker in respect for these instruments.

Credit risk of financial derivatives

Credit exposure or replacement cost of financial derivative instruments represents the Group's credit
exposure from contracts with a pogitive fair value, that s, it indicates the estimated maximum potential
losses of the Group in the event that counterparties fall to perform their obligations. It is usually a small
fractlon of the notional amounts of the contracts, The credit exposure of each contract is indicated by
the credit sgquivalent calculated pursuant to generally applicable methodology using the current
exposure method and involves the fair market value of the contract (only if positive, otherwise a zero
value is taken into account) and a portion of nominal value, which indicates the potential changs in fair
market value over the term of the contract. The cradit equivalent is established depending on the type
of confract and its maturity. The Group assesses credit risks of all financial instruments on a daily
basls.

As of 31 December 2001, the Group has a potential credit exposure of CZK 10,872 million (2000: CZK
5,847 million) in the event of non-perfermance by counierparties to its financial derivative instruments.
This amount represents the gross replacement cost at market rates as of 31 December 2001 of ali
outstanding agresmants in the event of all counterparties defaulting and does not allow for the effect
of netting arrangements.

The Group is selective in its cholce of counterparties, sets limits on transactions with its customers and
in respect of increased credit exposure or a customer that has no limit for deposit composition and
intends to enter into financial derivative transactions. As such, the Group considers that the actual
credit risk associated with financial derivatives is substantially lower than the exposure calculated
pursuant to credit equivalents.

Komercni banka, a.s. ‘ Psge €3




- = - = = =s==~&¥ =¥ ST My LWV LY s T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year anded 31 December 2001

37 Related Parties

Parties are considered 1o be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the othar party on making financial or operational decisions. As of 31
December 2001, the Bank was controlled by Societe Generale which owns 60 percent of its issued
share capital.

A nurnber of banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of
business, These include loans, deposits and other types of transactions. These transactions were
carried out on commercial terms and at market rates.

Amounts due lo and from the Group companies

As of 31 December 2001, the Group had loans outstanding of CZK 1,552 million (2000: CZK 1,451
million) to the group associates. The amounts of associated undertakings placed with the Group
totalled CZK 88 milllon (2000: CZK 342 million).

The fallowing table summarises ioans issued to associated undertakinge and deposits with the Group!

31 December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm

Company
CAC Leasing, a.s. _ 880 868
Vseobecna stavebn! sporitelna KB, a.s. 662 0
MUZQ, a. s, (o] 583
Total loans 1,552 1,454
CAC Leasing, a.s. € 5
Vseabecna stavebni sporitelna KB, a.s. 82 147
MUZO, a. s. 0 190
Total deposlts 88 342

Amounts due to and from the Soclete Generale Group entities

As of 31 December 2001 the Group recorded amounts due from Societe Generale on CZK - 0.3
million and off balance sheet currency transactions with a notional value of CZK 8987 million in assets
and CZK 883 million in liabllities.

The Group reported an amount of CZK 158 million owed to Societe Generale's Prague branch arising

from interbank deposits and an off balance sheet receivable associated with interest rate instruments
with a notional value of CZK 1,703 million.
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Amounts due from the related parties of the Group:

Average Interest 341 December 31 December

contractual rate 2001 2000
maturity

CZKm CZKm
Members of the Supervisery Board - 7-13 C o
Members of the Management Board - 65-228 3 16
Principal shareholders of the Bank (interest - - 0 875

greater than 1%)
Total - - 3 891

Amounts due from the ralated parties of the Group include credit cards, current accounts and common
customer loans advanced at varying rates of interest.

All amounts due from principal shareholders in 2000 were fully repaid during the year ended 31
December 2001.

Amounts due from the related parties of the Greup:

CZKm
Balance at 1 January 2001 . 691
Repayments ' 688
Loans newly granted ' 0
Balance at 31 December 2001 3

Remuneration and equity compensation scheme of the members of the Management and
Supervisory Boards

Remuneration paid to the members of the Management and Supervisory Boards of the Bank during
the years was as follows:

31 Decermnber 2001 31 December 2000

CZKm CZKm

Remunerafion to the Management Board * 205 32
Reemheration to the Supervisory Board 30 8
FotRpeTs 235 40

* Remunaratien to the Management Board membere includes amounts paid during the year ended 39
December 2001 to the current and former directors of the Bank under mandate and management contracts
and the equity compensation scheme.

* Remuneration to the Bupervisory Board members includes amounts paid during the year ended 31
December 2001 to the current and former members of the Supervisory Board as well as compensation
provided under the equity compensation scheme.
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As of 31 December 2001, the Group recorded a reserve of CZK 8.8 million (2000: CZK 53 miltion) for
an equity compensation program designed for the Management Board, Supervisory Board and
selected managers, and an estimated payable of CZK 11.1 million (2000: CZK nil) for Management
Board bonuses, '

31 Decemnber 2001 31 December 2000
Number of the Management Board members [] 7
Number of the Supervisory Board members 9 12

Equity compensatioh program

The extended equity compensation program (the ‘program’), designed to provide compensation to the
members of the Management and Supervisory Boards, was approved by the Annual General Meeting
on 31 May 2000. The terms of the program, refined fo reflect the requirements of the amended
Commercial Code, were approved by the General Meetings held on 28 March 2001 and 20 June
2001.

Under this equity compensation program each of the members of the Management and Supervisory
Boards of the Bank have a right to purchase annually a pre-deterrnined number of ordinary shares of
the Bank at CZK 500 per share (‘call options'), The members of the Boards have a right, but not the
obligation, to put thess shares on the Bank at a price of CZK 1,000 per share after these shares have
been held by Board members for a minimum period (‘put options'). The cost of the exercise of these
options is borne by the Bank,

The table below summarises the program in terms of the period for acquiring call options over a pre-
determined number of shares and the call and put option exercise period:

Period for call Option exercise period

options over shares

Number of shares for call options

Management Supervisory Call Put

Board Board optiens options

05/20Q0-05/2001 134,000 28,500 05/2000-05/2004 06/2001-05/2004

05/2001-05/2002 134,000 28,500 05/2001-05/2004 06/2002-05/2004

05/2002-05/2003 134,000 28,500 05/2002-05/2004 06/2003-05/2004

05/2003-05/2004 134,000 28,500 05/2003-05/2004 05/2004-05/2005
Total 536,000 114,000 - -

* Information relating to the description of the period has been simplified as a result of varied dates of sntering
into agreements under the program from 31 May 2000 to 12 June 2000 which underlie the start of the period for
call options over shares and exercise of the call and put options.

Call and put option agreements were entered into with the members of the Management and
Supervisory Boards in November and December 2000.

Exercise of optlon rights for the year from 1 June 2000 to 31 May 2001

in January 2001, the Bank purchased its ordinary shares in the opén market following the exercise of
the right to purchase the pre-determined number of shares by each of the members of the
Management Board. The members of the Supervisory Board also exercised their rights under the
scheme The total number of shares purchased for the Management and Supervisory Board members
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was 160,220. The cost to the Bank of the exsrcise of these ghares has been charged on an accruals
basis to the accounting periods to which it relates as a compensation expense. The aggregate charge
to the consolidated profit and loss statement for the year ended 31 December 2001 for all members of
both Boards was CZK 37 million (2000: CZK 53 miliion).

Exercise of option rights for the year froam 1 June 2001 to 31 May 2002

The members of the Management Board and the members of Supervisory Board exercised their rights
to purchase 155,060 shares as of 31 December 2002. The aggregate charge to the consolidated profit
and loss statement for the year ended 31 December 2001 for all members of the Boards and thalr
rights to sall and purchase the shares was CZK 59 million on an accruals basis

Other beneficlaries of equity compensgation scheme

Under a pre-existing scheme certain members of middie managemsent of the Bank have rights to
purchase annually a pre-determined number of ordinary shares of the Bank. Management estimates
that the cumulative rights as of 31 December 2001 smount to approximately 80,000 shares. No
provision has been made for the exercise of these rights.

Current status of equity compensation schemes
The Group's management has Indicated that its intention is to limit or to terminate a substantial part of

oufstanding rights of the existing program and to repface it with a new compensation scheme
consistent with that operated by the Sociste Generale Group. '
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38 Reconciliation of reserves and profit under Czech accounting principles to IAS

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Reserves under CAS (net of socia! fund reserve) 4,388 1,902
Add/(deduct):
Cumulative unrealised gains on trading and available for sale 498 268
securities, derecognition of purchased own bonds and shares and
differences of securities valuation treatment
Hedging reserve 1,263 0
Cumulative leasing adjustments (79) (89)
Revaluation reserve (S6) 0
Equity compensatlon program reserve 2 53
Treasury shares (179) Y
Other adjustments 73 26
Deferred tax liability (550) 0
Credit arising from the application of 1AS in respect of associates 556 0
(see Note 25)
Reserves under IAS §,922 2,160
31 December 31 Decamber
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Consclidated profit for the period under CAS 2,417 (178)
Add/(deduct):
Unrealised gaine on trading and available for sale securities, 101 510
derecognition of purchased own bonds and shares and differences
of securities valuation treatment
Leasing adjustments _ 10 (358)
Other adjustments 82 (551)
Difference of derivatives valuation treatment as of 1 January 2001 (140)
{on adoption of IAS 39) -
Deferred tax liability on recognised unrealised securities gains (170) -
Reduction In tax on a portion of gains recognrised In equity (adoption 42 -
JAS 39)
Reduction in deferred tax liability from the reversal of penalty 6 -
interest ‘
Credit arising from the application of IAS in respect of associates 556 0
(see Note 25)
Consolldated profit for the period under IAS 2,904 (221)
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39 Movement of hedging reserve in the consolldated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
including adoption of IAS 39 as of 1 January 2001

Available for sals investments

On the adoption of JAS 39 as of 1 January 2001, all investments securities classified as avallabie for
sale were remeasured to fair value. The difference between their original carrying value and their fair
value ag of 1 January 2001 was reponed as an adjustment to retained earnings. Gains and losses
grising from the change in the fair value of avallable for sale securities since that dste are recognised
directly to the profit and loss statement.

CZKm
Available for sale securities remeasured to fair value 138
Deferred income tax liability ~ (42)
Adjusted balance as of 1 January 2001 26

Hedging reserve - ¢cash flow hedges

On the adoption of IAS 38, certain derivatives were designated as cash flow hedges. The fair values of
cash flow hedges are recorded in a separate category of equity in the hedging reserve as shown
below:

CZKm

Cash flow hedge fair value as of 1 January 2001 200

Deferred income tax liability as of 1 January 2001 {681)

Adjusted balance as of 1 January 2001 139
Movements in 2001

CZKm

Gains/losses from changes in fair value 1,407

Deferred income tax (438)

869

Transferred to interest income/expense (344)

Deferred income tax 108

(236)

Balance as of 31 December 2001 1,263

Deferred income tax (392)

Balance as at 31 December 2001 872

For the period ended 31 December 2001, the Group doas not have any positions qualifying as fair
value hedges.
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40 Estimated fair value of assets and liabilities of the Group

Fair value of financial instruments is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a iiability
settled, betwaen knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Where available, fair
value estimates are made based on quoted market prices. However, no readily available markst prices
exist for a significant portion of the Group's financial instruments. In circumstances where the quoted
market prices are not readily available, the fair value is estimated using discounted cash flow models
or other pricing rnodels as appropriate. Changes in underlying assumptions, including discount rates
and estimated future cash flows, significantly affect the estimates. Therefore, the calculated fair market
estimates cannot be realised in a current sale of the financial instrument.

in estimating the fair value of the Group’s financial instruments, the following methods and
assumptions were used,

(a) Cash and balances with the central bank

The carrying values of cash and balances with the central bank are generally deemed to approximate
thair fair value.

(b) Investments held to maturity

Fair values of securities carrled in the ‘Held to maturity' portfolic are calculated by disceunting future
cash flows using prevailing market rates.

(c) Due from banks

The estimated fair value of amounts due from banks that mature in 180 days or less approximates
their carrying amounts. The fair value of other amounts due from banks is estimated based upon
discounted cash flow analyses using interest rates currently offered for investments with similar terms
(market rates adjusted to reflect credit risk). The fair vaiue of nen-performing amounts due from banks
is estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis or the appraised value of the underlying collateral.
Provisions are not taken into consideration when calculating fair values.

(d) Loane and advances to customers

The feir value of variable yield Ioans that regularly reprice, with no significant change in credit risk,
generally approximates their carrying value. The fair valus of loans at fixed interest rates is estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses, based upen interest rates currently offered for loans with similar
terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. The fair value of non-performing loans to customers is
estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis or the appraised value of the underlying collateral,
where available. Loans at fixed interest rates represent only a fraction of the total carrying value and
henca the fair value of total loans and advances o custormners approximates the carrying values as of
the balance sheet date. Provisions are not taken into consideration when calculating fair values.,
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(e) Amounts owed te banks and customaers

The fair value of term deposits payable on demand represents the carrying value of amounts payable
on demand as of the balance sheet date. The fair value of term depeosits at variable interest rates
approximates their carrying values as of the balance sheet date. The fair value of deposits at fixed
intarest rates is estimated by discounting their future cash flows using rates currently offered for
deposits of similar remaining maturities,

(f) Cerflticated debt

The fair value of certificated debt izssued by the Group is based upon quoted market prices. Where no
markst prices are available, the fair value is equal to an estimate mads by the Group.

The following table summarises the carrying valuee and fair values of those financial asseis and
liabilities not presented on the Group's consolidated balance sheet at their fair value:

31 December 391 December 31 December 31 December

2001 2001 2000 2000
Carrying Falr value Carrying Falr value
value vajue
CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm
Financial assets
Cash and balances with the central bank 18,381 18,361 20,887 20,887
Amounts due from banks 156,909 156,814 124,473 123,442
Loans and advances to customers,
including loans to Ceska konsolidacni 186,446 188,524 180,033 180,033
agentura, net
Investments held to maturity 1,453 1,827 12,077 12,077
Financial liabilities
Amounts owed to banks 30,918 30,921 41,793 41,878
Amounts owed to customers 318,394 318,077 279,510 279,485
Certificated debt 27,492 28,488 36,088 36,781

The fair values of securities previously reported in the Group’s investment portfolio were determined
as eqgual to market values and therefore the calculation method applicable to investments held to
maturity in 2000 iz not consistent with the method applied in 2001.
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41 Foreign exchange position

The table below provides an analysis of the Group's main currency exposures. The remaining
currencies are shown within ‘Other currencies.’ Whilst the Group monitors Its foreign exchange
position for compliance with the regulatory requirements of the relevant national central banks
established in respect of limits on open positions, the most significant tao! fer measuring the Group's
open foreign currency position involves moenitering the ‘value at risk’ limit on the foreign exchange
exposure of the whole Group. In establishing the ‘value at risk’ the Group monitors its open fereign
currency position in 13 currencies and offssts mutual correlations, The ‘value at risk' limit ie
established such that the Group complies with the regulatory limits of the relevant national central

banks withaut breaching the ‘value at risk’ limit.

- s M

Czech EMU US dollars
crowns currencles

CZKm CZKm CZKm
Assets
Cash and balances with central bank 13,788 3,618 378
Amount due from banks 101,897 24,890 28,133
Loans to Ceska kensolldacni agentura 49,488 168 113
Loans and advances o customners, net 118,800 8,842 7,298
Securities held for trading 3,706 Q c
Securitles available for sale 21,578 302 13,368
Prepayments, accrued income and
other assels 13,150 226 €30
inveatments held to maturity 188 132 761
Investments in subs|dlaries and 1,667 0 0
associates
Tangibie and intangible fixed assets 12,733 0 0
Total assets 336,805 37,978 50,681
Liabilities
Amcunts cwed to banks 17,549 8,155 6,775
Amountz owed fo customars 273,356 27,611 13,984
Certificated debt 27,492 o] 0
Acecruals, provislons and other liabllitles 20,772 695 481
Subordinated dabt 0 0 7,335
Sharcholders' equily 24,877 1 Q
Minority Interest 208 0 0
Total ligbhitles 364,254 33,462 28575
Net FX position at 31 Decamber 2061 (27,649) 4,512 22,106
Of balance sheet assets” . 310,345 20,768 45,520
Off balancs sheet ligbilities * 280,222 25,872 68,389
Net off balance sheet FX position 30,123 (5,108) _ (22,879)
E:I not FX pesition at 31 Oecembar 2,674 (592) GE)
Tokal asselz at 31December 2000 328,100 24,203 50,081
Total iabiities at 31Decamber 2000 342,298 23,299 38,0249
Net FX pasition at 31 December 2000 (14,198) 1,000 12,057
'Off balance sheet het FX position at
31 December 2000 16,040 (2,518) (12,363)
Total net FX pesition at 31 December
2000 1.842 {1,518) (306)
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Swiss Slovakian Other

Francs crewns currencles Total

CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm
Asgets
Cash and balances with central bank 132 200 247 18,361
Amount due from banks 87 1,462 840 158,909
Loans to Ceska konzolidacni agentura 0 0 o 48,765
Loans and advances to custemers, net 357 1,283 301 135,681
Securlties held for trading 4] 654 0 4,360
Securlties available for sale 0 0 0 35,249
Prepayments, accrued income and
other assets 27 67 16 14,118
Investments held to maturity o] 381 0 1,453
Investments in subsidiaries and 0 EY Q 1,724
associates
Tangible and intangidle fixed assets o 82 o 12,816
Tetal assals 803 4,166 1,204 431,433
Liahilities ’
Amounts owed to barks 35 1,381 23 30,918
Amounts owed to customers 559 1,946 938 318,394
Certificated debt 0 o] 0 27,492
Accruals, provisions and other llablites 13 106 82 22,159
Subordinated debt [+] ¢} o] 7,335
Shareholders’ equity 0 49 0 24,927
Minority Interest 0 0 0 208
Total liabillfles 607 3,482 1,053 431,433
‘Not FX position at 31 December 2007 @ — 684 181 0
Off balance shaet assels” &8 1,265 TABS 370,432
Off balance sheet liabilities * 77 1,636 1624 377,830
Net off balance sheat FX positien (10) (370) ~(158) 1,602
';if:’l‘fmmﬁgmber (19) 314 ® 1,602
Total asseis al 31December 2000 1,080 8977 1,600 409,090
Total labiiiies ai 31December 2000 583 3,566 1,306 408,000
‘Net FX position at 31 Dacember 2000 47 391 303 0
'Off balanee sheet net FX position at 188
31 December 2000 {568) 0 (405)
Total net FX posifion at 31 December
2000 (119) 384 {(102) 188

") Off balance assets and lfabilities include amounts roceivable and payables arising from spol and forward trangactions.

42 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is tha risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates., Tha length of time for which the rate of Interest is fixed on a financial Instrument,
therefore, indicates to what extent it is exposed to interest rate risk, The table below provides
information on the extent of the Group's interest rate exposure based either on the contractual maturity
date of its financlal instruments or, in the case of instruments that reprice to a market rate of interest
before maturity, the next repricing date. It is the policy of the Board to manage the exposure to
fluctuations in net interest income arising from changes in interest rates by the degree of repricing
mismatch in the balance shest. Those assets and liabilities that do not have contractual maturity date or
are not interest-bearing are grouped in ‘maturity undefined’ category.
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Upto3 3months 1yearto
menths to1year 5years

Aszels CZKm CZKm CZKm

Cash and balances with the central bank 8,920 0 0

Armount due from banks 150,402 5,791 823

Loans to Ceska konsolidacnl agenturs 23,009 8,569 17,187

Loans and advances to customers, net 77,122 25,076 27,666

Securities held for trading 1,198 1,181 1,201

Securities available for sale 12,084 1,812 7,807

Prapayments, accrued Income and other assets 1,490 203 12

Investments hald to maturity 388 391 847

Investments in subsidiarles and sssociates 0 0 0

Tangible and intangible fixed assets 0 0 o]

Yotal assets 274,623 44,123 65,243
Liabilities

Amounts owed o banks 21,028 8,857 402

Amounis owed to customaers 169,985 4,285 aB7

Certificated debt 8,630 es 17,648

Accruals, provislons and ather liabilities 3,710 1.271 4

Suberdinated debt 0 [s] 7,335

Minority interest -0 ¢] 0

Total (iabiiities 203,333 12,488 26,374

"On Balance sheet interest rate sensitivily . 71.290 31,635 28,868
gap at 31 December 2001

Off balance sheet inlarest rale assets 43,339 68,707 80,351
Off balance sheet interest rats liabilities 78,285 87,188 47,893

Net off balance sheef interest rale Sensitivity  (34,346) (17,38 43,458

gap at 31 Decembar 2001

Cumulative intorest rate sensitivity gap at 31 38,344 50,591 121,918

Docomber 2001

Tolal aszets at 31 December 2000 232,784 44,0863 66,184
Total liabilllles at 31 December 2000 187,617 28,735 24,899

Net on balance sheet interest rate sensitivity 43,167 15,328 41,288
gap at 31 December 2000

Net off balance sheet interest rate sensitivity  (15,610) (8,697) 24,965
gap at 31 December 2000

interest rata sensitivity gap at 31 Dacember 29,557 6,631 66,260
2000

‘Cumulative Intorest rate sansitivity gap at 31 29557 36,180 102,838
Docember 2000

Over5 Maturity Total
years undefined

Assets C2ZKm CZKm CZKm
Cash and balances with the central bank 0 9,441 18,361
Amount due from banks «] 83 156,909
Loans to Caska koneolidachi agentura 0 0 49,765
Leans and advances to customers, net 3,088 arie 136,681
Securities held for trading 523 2587 4,380
Securities available for sale 9,861 3,385 35,248
Prepayments, sccrued income and ether assets 7 12,404 14,116
Investments held to maturity 17 [¢] 1,453
Investments in 2ubsidiaries and assoglates 0 1,724 1,724
Tangible and intangible fixed asseis 0 12,815 12,815
Total assets 73,606 43,838 431,433
Lisbilities . .
Amounts owed to banks 133 2,498 30,818
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Amounis owed to customers 131 143,016 318,394
Certlficated debt 0 1,151 27.492
Accruals, provisiong and other liabilities 0 17,174 22,159
Subordinaled debt 0 0 7,335
Minority interest 0 208 208
Total liabilities 264 188,974 431,413
“On batanca sheet interest rate sensitivity 13,342 (1451 36-) [
gap at 31 December 2004
“OF balance shes! infarest rate aszets 15,265 0 218,752
“Off balance shest interest rate liabilties 5,389 6 218,752
Net off balance shoot interest rate sensitivity 8,876 [ 0
gap at 31 December 2001

Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap at 31 145,138 0 /]
December 2001

Total assels at 31 Dacember 2000 15,028 47,003 409,090
Tolal liabilities at 31 December 2000 810 145,864 367,925
Neot on Balance sheel interest rate sensitivity 18,218 (98,831) 21,185
gap at 31 December 2000

Not off balance sheet interest rate sensltivity (798) 140 [
gap at 31 December 2000

Intorest rate sensitivity gap at 31 Decomber 17,418  (98,691) 41,185
2000

Cumulative interast rate gensitivity gap at 31 119,856 21165 x

December 200Q
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43 Average inlerest rates as of 31 December 2001

Assets CZK UspD EUR
Cash and balances with the CNB 2.39% 0.00% 0.00%
Treasury bills and other bills eligible for refinancing 4.82% 0.00% 0.00%
Amounts due from banks 5.21% 1.87% 3.38%
Loans and advances to customers 7.75% 4.92% 8.33%
Interest earning securities 7.62% 6.38% 6.53%
Total assets 6.17% 3.73% 4.17%
Total interest earning assets €.84% 3.77% 4.19%
Liabllitles

Loans from the CNB 0.00% 0.00% 8.23%
Amounts owed to banks 4.95% 3.86% 4.07%
Amounts owed to customers 2.47% 1.01% 1.57%
Cettificated debt 7.85% 0.00% 0.00%
Subordinated debt 0.00% 9.13% 0.00%
Total llabllities 2.63% 3.71% 1.95%
Total interest bearing liabilities 3.10% 3.86% 2.04%

The above table sets out the average interest rates for December 2001 calculated as a weighted
average for each asset and liability category,

44 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is a measure of the extent to which the Group may be required to raise funds to meet its
commitments associated with financial instruments. The Group maintaine its liquidity profies in
accordance with regulations laid down by the Czech National Bank and other national regulatory
authorities. The table below provides an analysis of assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the balance sheet date to the
contractuel maturity date. It is presented under the most prudent consideration of maturity dates where
options or repayment schedules allow for early repayment possibilities. Those assets and liabilities
that do not hava a contractuai maturity date are grouped together in the ‘maturity undefined’ category.

The Group is exposed io daily calls on its available cash resources from overnight deposits, current
accounts, maturing deposits, loan draw downs, guarantees and from margin and other calls on cash
settled derivatives. The Group does not maintain cash resources to meet all of these needs as
experience shows that a minimum level of reinvestment of maturing funds can be predicted with a high
level of certainty. The Group sets limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to meet
such calls and on the minimum level of interbank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place
to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand,
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Assots (CZKm)

Cash and balances with central banks

on
12,185

Upto 3 3 months 1yearic
demand months to{year 5years

85

7]

0

Amounts due from banks 27 150,372 5,541 268
Loans ta Ceska konsolidacnj agentura o] 0 3,795 45,970
Loans and advances to customers, net 1,927 34,735 34,108 42,970
Securities heid for trading 0 844 1,527 1.285
Securities avallable for sale 0 1,401 1,278 9,273
Prepayments, acerued incame and other 0 2,087 643 24
févsitments held to maturity 0 352 863 221
Investments in subsidiaries and associates 0 0 s} 0
Tangible and intangible fixed assets 0 [o] 0 0
Total agsels 14,419 189,886 47,756 . 100,712
Llabilities
Amounts owed to banks 3,543 12,687 6,233 3,837
Amounts owed to customars 143,795 143,885 23,276 7,303
Cerlificalad debt 1 5,907 3,778 18,458
Accryals, provislons and other Habllites 0 1,834 169 41
Subordinated debt 0 o] o 0
Minority interest 0 [v] 0 0
Shareholders’ equity 0 0 0 Q
Total liabilities 147,339 164,103 33,454 * 27,639
On balance sheet net liquidity gap at 31 (138,220) 25,783 14,302 73,073
December 2001
'Off balance sheet assefs® 16,562 148,056  SB,458 119,581
G balance oheet iabiitiea® 130,831 138,436 43,069 35,069
'Gff balance sheet net liquidity gap at 31 (114,238) 9,620 15,389 B4,512
December 2001
Cumulative on and off balance sheet (247,459) (212,086) (1B2,355) (24,770)
liquidity gap at 31 Dacember 2001
Total assets at 31 December 2000 16,755 152,378 58,271 119,875
Total Nabllities at 31 Dacamber 2000 131,105 142,817 43,515 34,867
On balance sheet net liquidity gap at 31 (11a,350) 9.7617 15,756 88,008
P_s_cambar 2000
Off balance sheel net liquldity gap at 31 184 1,345 17,036 6,098
December 2000 _
Cumulative on and off balance shaet (114,156) (103,050) (70,258) 20,848
liquidity gap at 31 December 2000
Assets (CZKm) Ovar 5 Maturity Total

years undefined
Cash and balances with central banks [+] 6,101 18,361
Amounts due from banks 0 0 156,509
Loans to Caska konsolidacni agentura 0 0 48,765
Loans and advancas to gustomers, net 22,040 o 136,681
Securlties held for trading 538 168 4,360
Securities avallable for sale 19,060 4,237 35,249
Prepayments, accrued income and other 8 11,354 14,116
RRR&{Enents held to maturity 16 1 1,453
Invesiments in subsidiaries and associates 4] 1,724 1,724
Tangible and intangible fixed assets 0 12,815 12,815
Total assels 42,560 36,400 431,433
‘Liabliities
Amounts ewed to banks 4,808 0 30,918
Amounis owed to customers 1585 0 318,394
Certificated debt 1,350 0 27,492
Accruals, provisions and other liabilities 0 20315 22,159 °
Subordinated debt 7,335 0 7,335
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Mingcrity Interest [»] 208 208
Shareholders’ equity 0 24,927 24,927
Tetal llabilities ] 13,448 45 450 431,433
'On balance sheet nel liquidity gap at 31 29,172 (8,050) g
December 2001

Off balance sheet assets” 27,548 31,962 402,205
'OF balance sheet iabilites 74611 40,188 402,205
'Off balance shest net liquidity gap af 31 12,938 (8,230) 0
December 2001

‘Eumulative on and off balancs shoet 17,280 )

liquidity gap at 31 December 2001 .
Total assets at 31 Decamber 2000 27,799 33,012 400,000
Tolal iabilities at 31 Decamber 2000 74,595 42,391 409,090
On balance £hest net liquidity gap at 31 13,204  (9,379) [¢]
Dacember 2000

Off balanee sheet net liquidity gap at 31 15,652 (76,308) (a5,881)
December 2000

Cumulative on and off balance sheet 49,704 (35,881) X

liquidity gap at 31 December 2000

*)  Off bafanca assels and liabliities include amounts receiveble and payables ansing from FX spot, forward and option
conlracis and receivables and payablss under gusrantees, letters of credit and committed facilities.
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45 Assels under management

As of 31 December 2001, the Group managed client assets in the amount of CZK 33,242 million, of
which the assets of Penzijni Fond Komercni banky, a. s. amounted to CZK 7,260 million.

46 Purchase of Societe Generale’s Prague branch

The planned acquisition of the business of Societe Generale's Prague branch and its integration into
the Bank will form an integral part of the transformation process. Under this transaction, the Bank wilf
acquire the assets and liabilities of the businees and transfer all its clients and staff (also refer to Note
2). The transaction was approved by the Bank’s Management Board and Supervisory Board on 11
December 2001 and 14 February 2002, respectively. In December 2001, the Bank's Executive
Committee approved the principal conditions and timing of all the processes associated with the
purchase of the business. The purchase of the business of Saciete Generale's Prague branch must be
approved by the Bank's Extraordinary General Meeting which is scheduled to take place on 28 March
2002. The purchase of the businass is also subject to the prior corsent of the Czech National Bank.

The date of acquisition of the business of Scciete Generale’'s Prague branch is set as of 31 March
2002, at which time all the assets and liabilities specifled in the Business Purchase Agreement will be
acquired by the Bank and recognised in the Bank's statutory books at fair value. Pursuant to an
independent appraieal, the purchase price of the business has been determined to be CZK 1,030
million, The difference betwsen the purchase price and the fair value of the acquired assets and
liabllities as of the acquisition date will be recognised as goodwilll In the Bank’s assets.

Az of 31 December 2001, Societe Generale's Prague branch recorded assets of CZK 22,208 million.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
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Coemmitments arising from the issuance of guarantces

Commitments from guarantees represent irrevocable assurances that the Bank will make payments in
the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties. These assurances carry the
same credit risk as loans and therefore the Bank makes provisions against these instruments on the
same basis as is applicable to [cans.

Purchase of Soclete Generale’s Prague branch

Pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement dated 12 July 2001, the Bank will acquire the business of
Societe Generale's Prague branch. It is anticipated that the Bank will complete the acquisition of the
business and assets and liabilities of Sociele Generale’s Prague branch in the first quarter of 2002.
For further information refer to Note 45,

Capital commitments

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank had capital commitments of CZK 88 millien (2000: CZK 34 millien)
in respect of current capital investment projects. Management is confident that future net revenues
and funding will be sufficient to cover this commitment.

Commitments arising from the issuance of letters of credit

Documentary letters of credit, which are written irrevocable undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a
customer (mandatory) authorising a third party (beneficiary) to draw drafts on the Bank up to a
stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are collateralised by the underlying shipments
of goods to which they relate and therefore have significantly less risk. Cash requirements under open
letters of credit are considerably less than the commitments under issued guarantees, avais or stand-
by letters of credit. However, the Bank records provisions against these instruments on the same basis
as is applicable to loans.

Commitments to extend credit, undrawn loan commitments, unutilised overdrafts and
approved overdraft loans

The primary purpose of commitments to extend credit is to ensure that funds are available to a
customer as required. Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to
extend credits in the form of ioans, guarantees or stand-by letters of credit. Commitments to extend
credit issued by the Bank represent issued loan commitments or guarantees, undrawn portions of and
approved overdrafts loans. Commitments to extend credit or guarantees issued by the Bank which are
contingent upon custorners maintaining specific credit standards (including the condition that a
customer's solvency does not deteriorate) are revocable commitments. Irrevocable commitments
represent undrawn portions of authorised loans and approved overdraft facilities because they resuit
from contractual terms and conditions in the credit agreements.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

Financial commitments and contingencies comprise:

31 December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Non-payment guarantees 5,623 4,768
Payment guarantees 12,547 21,734
Letters of credit uncovered 667 884
Stand by letters of credit 781 616
Commitments from guarantees 19,519 28,003
Received bills of exchange/acceptances and endorsemerits of 20 S
bills of exchange
Total contingent liabilities 19,539 28,007
Committed facilities 165,648 15,788
Undrawn credit commitmsnts 15,767 18,815
Confirmed letters of credit 5 92
Other irrevocable commitments 31,420 34,795
Unutilised overdrafts and approved overdraft loans 20,856 17,667
Letters of credit covered 298 332
Total contingent and irrevocable commitments 72,112 80.801

The Bank provides a variety of credit facilities to its largest clients inciuding Czech entities which are
part of international groups and which are State owned. Of the Bank's committed facilities and
guarantees, CZK 8,971 million is revocable (2000: CZK 7,565 million). All other committed faciiities,
undrawn credit commitments and unutilised overdrafts are irrevocable and are not subject to further
approvals by the Bank.

The risk associated with off balance sheet credit commitments and contingent liabilities is assessed
similarly as for loans to customars, taking into account the financial position and activities of the entity
to which the Bank issued the guarantee and taking into account the collateral obtained. As of 31
December 2001, the Bank created provisions for these risks amounting to CZK 1,852 million (2000;
CZK 1,361 million).

As of 31 December 2001, payment guarantees include guarantees provided to Komercni Finance B.
V. in the amount of CZK 7,252 million (2000: CZK 17,016 million) in connection with the issued

subordinated debt.

As of 31 December 2001, payment guarantees include an amount of EUR 100 million relating to a
credit derivative agreement (see Note 21).

Finance lease commitments

The Bank has entered into finance leases in respect of equipment (computers, ATMs and cars), the
payments for which extend over a three year period. The finance lease agreements are entered into
with CAC LEASING, a. s. The future commitments are included in the unconsoclidated balance sheet in

‘Other liabilities.
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Assets held under finance leases:

31 December 31 December 2001 31 December 31 December 2000

2001 excluding interest 2000 excluding
including including interest
interest interest

CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm

Leased assets 1 ,473 1 ,306 998 873
Paid instalments 1.057 943 722 844

Remaining maturity of remaining instaiment:

Up to 1 year 164 140 144 119

1 1o 5 years 252 223 132 110

Over 5 years . 0 0 0 0

Total 416 363 . 276 229

Taxation

Czech tax legisiation and practice has changed significantly in recent years. Many parts of the
legistation remain untested and there is uncertainty about the interpretation that tax authorities may
apply in @ number of areas. Management of the Bank has applied revised tax legislation on a prudent
basis. Tax positions taken by the Bank are subject to examination and could be challenged by tax
authorities. As a.result there may be uncertainty about the potential impacts, should the interpretation
of tax authorities differ from that applied by the Bank.

During 2001, the Czech tax authorities undertook detailed reviews of the Bank's tax position,
specifically focusing on corporate income taxation for the period 1997 to 1998 and 2000. The findings
fromn these tax reviews had an immaterial impact on the Bank’s tax position and have been reflected in
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2001,

Management of the Bank considers that the Bank is not exposed to any material tax risks and
therefore no provision has been made in this respect.
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Year ended 31 December 2001

Net interest income

Net interest income comprises:

Year ended 3% Year ended
December 31 December

2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Interest income
- Loans and advances to financia! institutions 11,790 12,705
- Loans and advances to customers* 13,498 14,783
- Bonds, ireasury bills and other fixed income securities 2,859 1,608
Total interest Income ] 28,147 29, 096
Interest expense
- Amounts owed to financial institutions : (3,482) (4,386)
- Amounts owed to customers {9,502) (10,341)
- Certificated debts v (2,164) (2,082)
Total intorest expense (15,158) (16,809)
Net intarest income 12,989 12,287

* Interest income from loans end advances to customers also includes interest received and accrued from Ceska
konsofidacni agentura (the Czech Consolidation Agency, henceforth ‘CKA’).

Interest income and expense also includes accrued interest income from hedging financial derivatives
of CZK 2,673 million (2000: CZK 2,964 millioan) and accrued interest expense from hedging financial
derivatives of CZK 2,326 million {2000: CZK 2,737 million). Net interest income from these derivatives
amounts to CZK 347 million (2000; 227 million).

Source of profits and losses

All income included in operating income was substantially genersted from the provision of banking
services in the Czech Republic. The Bank considers that its products and services arise from one
segment of business, that is the provision of banking sefvices.
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Neot fees and commiissions

Net fees and commissions comprise:

Year ended 31 Year ended
December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Net fees and commissions
Net fees and cormmission income from services and 6,034 4,422
Transactions
Gain/ (losses) from foreign exchange commissions from clean 1,478 1,600
and documentary payments
Gain/ (losses) from commissions from foreign exchange 882 1,188
transactions ) .
Tota! net fees and commissions 8,394 7,181

Effective from 1 January 2001, net fees and commissions comprise foreign exchange commissions
from clean and documentary payments and client cash exchange and conversion transactions as
equal to the difference between the purchase/sale rate of foreign currencies determined by the Bank
and the official exchange rates as promulgated by the Czech National Bank used under the
requirements of the Accounting Act in re-translating transactions denorinated in foreign currencies.
The Bank includes foreign exchange commissions in ‘Net fees and commissions’ because these
revenues represent significant recurring income from payment and exchange transactions effected
with the Bank's customers. In the previous periods, foreign exchange gains from clean and
documentary payments were shown in ‘Net profit/{loss) on financial operations’ and income from
exchange was included in ‘Othsr income.’ Comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2000
have been reclassified to conform with changes in presentation in the year ended 31 December 2001,
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7 Net profit/(loss) on financial operations

Net profit/(loss) on financial operations comprises:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on securities 1,018 1,279
Realised and unrealised gains/{losses) on security derivatives 40 0
Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on interest rate © 54 {8)
and credit derivatives
Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on trading commodity 2 0
derivatives
Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on foreign exchange 439 270
financial derivatives, spat foreign exchange transactions and re-
translation of foreign currency assets and liabilities
Dividend income on securitiss held for trading and availabie for -0 2
sale '
Net profit/(loss) on financial operations 1,551 1,543

The comparative figure in the line ‘Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on foreign exchange
financial derivatives, spot foreign exchange transactions and re-translation of foreign currency assets
and liabilities' for the year ended 31 December 2000 has been adjusted to refiect the transfer of
income/expense associated with clean and documentary payments to ‘Net fees and commissions’
(refer to Note 6 to these financial statements).

‘Realised and unrealised gains/(losses’ on securitiss' for the year ended 31 December 2001 includes
an amount of CZK 567 million representing the net profit on the sale of the Bank’s shareholding in
Ceska pojistovna, a.s. This transaction was completed in December 2001.

'Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on securities’ for the year ended 31 December 2000 included
one-time gains of CZK 273 million arising from the transfer of distressed corporate debts to
Konsolidacni banka's subdidiary, Konpo, which formed part of the restructuring of the Bank's assets as
appraved by the Government of the Czech Republic in March 2000.
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Other income

Other income comprises:

KR

LS e 3

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2001 2000

. CZKm CZKm

Dividend receipts from subsidiaries and associates 222 452
Other income 290 185
Exceptional net income 363 167
Total other income 875 794

Prior year figures have been reclassified to reflect the reporting of provisions for impairment of
investments in subsidiaries and associates in the amount of CZK 233 million and net gains on the sale
of fixed asset investments of CZK 85 million within 'Provisions for loan and investment losses’ in

respect of both accounting periods.

For the year ended 31 December 2001, exceptional net income principally consisted of non-recurring
income from the write-off and write back of receivables and payables held in suspense and clearing
accounts. A significant proportion of these balances arose as a resuit of payment transactions at the
beginning of the 1990°s in connection with the Bank's migration to a new banking system for domestic
payments and unsettied amounts that were due to the clean and documentary payment system being
effected through a local banking intermediator. For the ysar ended 31 December 2000, exceptional
net income of CZK 157 million was included in administrative expenses.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses comprise:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Woages, salaries and bonuses 4,380 3,869
Social security costs 1,506 1,388
Employees’ expenses 5,886 5,257
Other administrative expenses 5,068 5,283
Total administrative expenses 10,954 10,540
Number of employees at the end of the period 9,299 10,703
Average number of employees during the period 9,873 11,865
596,171 443,068

Average cost per employee (CZK)

Socia! security costs inciude retirement pension insurance costs paid by the Bank of CZK 39 million

(2000: CZK 43 milllon).
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Other administrative expenses comprise:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Depaosit insurance 817 1,048
Property maintenance and rent 1,199 1,190
Consulting, information and technical support 1,094 985
Telecommunications and post 346 322
Marketing and representation 330 344
Other 1,282 1,394
Tatal other administrative expenses 5,068 5,283
10 Depreciation and other provisions
Depreciation and other provisions comprise:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Depreciation of tangible and intangible fixed assets 2,088 2,423
Other provisions, net 290 {7)
Total depreciation and other provisions 2,356 2,418
11 Restructuring costs
Restructuring costs comprise:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Redundancy compensation costs 86 320
impairment charge relating to branch network and termination of 1,278 252
leases
Other 393 255
4,755 827

Total restructuring costs

The management of the Bank approved a restructuring plan for the Bank in June 2000. The plan was
announced in July 2000 and implemented primarily in 2000. During 2001, the Bank continued
implementing its restructuring program, the most significant meatters being the centralisation and
redistribution of certain activities snd services to the Bank's specialised subsidiaries (refer to Note 2 to

the financial statements).
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Costs relating to the restructuring comprise costs of severance and compensation associated with
reducing staff numbers, costs of disposal of redundant buildings and early termination of leases and
costs reflecting the impairment of under-utilised leasehold improvements on leased premises.

Following the entrance of the new shareholder, the Bank reviewed the iocation, appearance and
positioning of its branch network in the context of its strategic plans for customers and product delivery
in the three-year period from 2002 through 2004. This review identified a number of buildings, owned
and leased, whose iocation and appearance is not compatible with such plans. The Bank’s intention is
to dispose of these premises and vacate the leases as and when the market conditions allow in the
medium term. The impairment charge from this review and earlier reviews amounts to CZK 1,278
million and includes expected losses on the sale of premises presently owned by the Bank, the
writedown of leasehold improvements on leased premises for which It intends te sell or terminate the
rental agreements and the writedown of the carrying amount of prepaid rentals on buildings that will be
vacated. Management of the Bank considers such impairment charges as restructuring costs. For
further information refer to Note 25.

12 Proavisions for loean and investment josses

Provisions for loans and other credit commitments

The movement in the provisions was as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2001 2000

, CZKm CZKm

Balance at 1 January (22,107) (31,594)
Net provisioning against loan losses _ (2,865) (7,876)
Impact of loans written off and transferred (905) 17,347
Exchange rate differences attributable to provisions 243 16
Balance at period end {25,633) (22,107)

During the year ended 31 December 2001, the aggregate balance of provisions increased by CZK
3,526 million compared to the balancs at the end of 2000. This increase was principally attributable to
the change in the collateral discount methodology implemented in June 2001 and a further review of
loan classification and unpaid interest on classified loans at the end of the third quarter of 2001 (See

alse Note 19).
The balance of provisions as of 31 December 2001 and 2000 comprises:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Provisions for loans to customers {14,989) (13,706)
CGeneral reserve for loans to customers (8,780) (7,0268)
Provisions for loans to financial institutions (13) (13)
Provisions for guarantees and other credit related commitments (1.851) (1,362)
Total (25,633) (22,107)
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Provisions for securities

As of 31 Decamber 2001, the Bank recorded provisions for asset backed securities in the amount of
C2ZK 1,970 million {2000: nil). The balance of provisions recorded on the balance sheet was CZK
1,959 million and the pravisioning difference is attributable to foreign exchange differences. This
portfolio of securities is held as securities available for sale and further information is given in Note 21.

Provisions for investments in subsidiaries and asscciates

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank records provisions of CZK 752 million (2000: CZK 534 million) and
a reserve of CZK 280 million (2000: nil) for investments in subsidiaries and associates.

The balance of provisions for investments subsidiaries and associates recognised on the face of the
prefit and less statement comprises the following:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2001 2000
_CZKm CZKm
Creation of provisions ‘ (784) (534)
Release of provisions 288 302
Income from the sale of investments in subsidiaries and 0 85
associates
Total provision for investments in subsidiaries and (498) (148)
associates ’
The balance of provisions is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 Decembear 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Balance at 1 January 534 302
Creation of provisions 784 534
Release of provisions 286 302
Balance at 31 December 1,032 534

Additional provisions relate primarily to the full write-down of the Bank’s investment in Kornercnl
pojistovna, a.s. following the reporting of substantlal losses by this entity in the year ended 31
December 2001. The Bank has indicated that it will continue to provide financial support to Komercni
pojistovna in order that it comply with relevant legal and reguiatory requirements applicable to
insurance companies operating in the Czech Republic.

Komerchni banka, a.s. Page 27




. + T e s R W MMM B RV 4 .00

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

13 Taxation

The major compenents of corporate incoms tex expense are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Tax payable — current year (745) (10}
Tax paid - prior year (17) o
Deferred tax movement (117) "
Total tax expense (879) (17)

The tax of CZK 17 million paid in the prior year represents an additional tax charge assessed by the
tax office pursuant to its tax review in respect of the year ended 31 Decernber 1999.

The corporate tax rate for the year 2001 is 31 % (2000: 31 %). The effective tax rate as of 31
December 2001 is 26 % (2000: zero %). The tax on the operating profit differs from the theoretical

amount that would arise using the basic tax rate of the Bank as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Profit/{loss) before tax (current tex rate) 3392 (72)
Profit before tax (special tax rate) 19 70
Profit/(loss) before tax 3411 (2)
Theoretical tax credit calculated at a tax rate of 31% and 10568 (12)
15 %, respectively (2000: 31 %)
income not taxable, primarily interest (4 343) (7.399)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 4 575 7105
- Provisions for loan Ibsses 1213 1279
- Other non-deductible costs 3361 5826
Utilisatien of tax losses carried forward (558) 316
Other 21 0
Mavement on deferred tax 117 7
Tax allowsnce (4)
income tax expense 859 7
Other tax expense (15 % foreign dividend tax) 3 10
Prior period tax expense s 0
Total income tax expense 879 17
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The Bank's tax liability is calculated based upon the accounting profit/(loss) taking into account tax
non-deductible expenses and tax exempt income or income subject to the final tax rate.

The Bank's tax liability as of 31 December 2001 was caiculated taking into the account the availability
and use of its tax losses carried forward from previous accounting periods. At the beginning of July
2001, the tax coffice allowed the Bank to increase the limit for tax deductible provisions for the year
2000 by CZK 4 billion in excess of the statutory provisioning limit. This gave rise to a tax loss for the
year ended 31 December 2000 which was available for utilisation in 2001. As of 31 December 2001
the Bank has no corporate income tax losses to carry forward into future accounting periods.

Further information about deferred tax is presented in Note 30,
14 Distribution of net profit/ Settlement of net loss
The Bank generated a net profit CZK 2,532 million in the accounting period to 31 December 2001. The

loseas of CZK (19) million made in respect of the year ended 31 December 2000 were offset against
other reserve and capital funds in accordance with the decision of the general meeting held on 20

June 2001,

15 Earnings/(loss) per share

Earnings per share of CZK 66.61 (2000: a loss of CZK 0.51 per share) have been calculated by
dividing the net profit of CZK 2,532 million (2000; a net loss of CZK 19 million) by the weighted
average number of shares in issue, that is 38,008,852 (2000: 37,392,693).

18 Cash and balances with the cantral bank

Cash and balances with the central bank comprise:

31 December 31 Decamber

20014 2000

CZKm CZKm

Cash and cash equivalents 9,424 7,956
Balances with the Czech National Bank 8,572 11,874
Current accounts with other banks 213 777
18,219 20,607

Total cash and balances with the central bank

Current accounts with other banks of CZK 215 million include nostra accounts maintained with
carrespondent banks. Given the liquidity of these funds management have included them within the

same caption as cash.
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Balances with the Czech Nationa! Bank include;

31 December 2001 31 December 2000

CZKm CZKm
Obligatory minimum reserves 6,101 5,056
Deposits repayable on demand 2,471 4,599
Receivable from the transfer of cash 0 2,219
Total 8,572 11,874

Obligatory minimum reserves have borne interest effective from September 2001. The year-end
interest rate was 2 percent.

17 Amounts due from banks

Balances due from banks comprise:;

31 December 2001 31 December 2000

CZKm CZKm
Loans and advances to banks 3,163 2,196
Advances due from the Czech National Bank (repc 81,172 70,854
transactions)
Term placements with other banks 71.280 49,620
Total 155,615 122,670
Specific provisions (13) (13)
Total due from banks 155,602 122,657

Advances due from the Czech National Bank are coilateralised by freasury bills and other debt
securities issued by the Czech National Bank or the Ministry of Finance of the Czech Republic.

18 Securities held for trading

Securities held for trading comprise:

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2001 2001 2000 2000

Fair value Cost Fair vaiue Cost

CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm

Shares and participation 168 168 200 178
certificates

Fixed income debt securities 1,257 1,249 1,679 1,676

Varlable yield debt securities 289 288 1,260 1,260

Treasury bills 1,991 1,990 11,670 11,670

Total debt securities 3,537 3,528 14,609 14,606

3,706 3,696 14,809 14,784

Total securities held for trading

The Bank's portfolio of securities held for trading includes treasury bills of CZK 1,981 million (2000:
CZK 11,670 rnillion) issued by the Czech National Bank.
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As of 31 December 2001, the portfolio of securities held for tradi.ng includes securlties at a fair vaive
of CZK 1,715 million (2000; CZK 3,139 million) that are publicly listed on stock exchanges and
securities at a fair value of CZK 1,991 million (2000: CZK 11,670 mlllion) that are not publicly listed.
Shares and participation certifications held for trading st fair value comprise:

31 December 2001 31 December 2000

CZKm CZKm
Shares and participation certificates ‘
- Czech crowns 168 200
Total shares and participation certificates held for 168 200

trading

Shares and participation certificates held for trading at fair value, allocated by issuer, comprise:

31 December 2001 31 December 2000
Shares and participation certificates held for

trading issued by: , CZKm CZKm
- Financial institutions in the Czech Republic 0 10
- Other entities in the Czech Republic 168 180
Total shares and participation certificates heid for 168 200
trading

Debt securities held for trading at fair value comprise:

31 December 2001 31 December 2000

CZKm CZKm
Variable yield debt securities
- Czech crowns A 289 1,024
- Other currencies A ¢ 236
Total varlable yield debt securities 289 1,280
Fixed income debt securities (including treasury biils)
- Czech crowns 3,248 12,977
- Other currencies 0 3arz
Total fixed incoms debt securities 3,248 13,349
Total debt securities held for trading 3,537 14,609
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Year ended 31 December 2001

Debt securities held for trading at fair value, allocated by issuer, comprise:

31 December 2001

31 December 2000

Debt securities held for trading issued by: CZ_Em CZKm
- State institutions in the Czech Republic 2,702 12,109
- Financial institutions in the Czech Republic 80 748
- Foreign financial institutions 119 108
- Other entities in the Czech Republic 623 1,237
~ Other foreign entities 13 407

y 3,537 14,609

Total debt securities hald for trading

19 Due from Ceska konsolidacnl agentura

Amounts duse from Ceska konsolidacni agentura comprise:

31 December 2001

31 December 2000

CZKm CZKm
Amounts due
Loans 49,765 51,887
Placements 0 755
Total loans and placements, net 49,765 52,642

Ceska konsolidachi agentura was formed as the legal successor to Konhsolidacni banka Praha, s. p. u.
pursuant to Czech Consolidation Agency Act No. 238/2001 Call., which took effect on 1 September
2001 (the ‘Act’). CKA was established as the legal successor of Konsolidachi banka under Section 19
of the Act. Under Section 1 of the Act, the commitments of CKA, as was the case with its legal
predacessor Konsolidacni banka (under Section 44a of Banking Act No. 21/1992 Coli.), are

guaranteed by the Czech State.

The following table sets out the principal terms and conditions of the loans advanced by the Bank to
CKA to refinance the transfers of assets in August 1999 and March 2000 as of 31 December 2007:

Term Laan dated 31 August 1999 Loan dated 25 March 2000
Maturity 31.8.2004 24.3.2005
Total amounts 12,230 mil. Ke 37,332 mil. Kc
- Czech crowns 12,230 mil. Ke 37,053 mil. Ke
- US dollars 0 mil. Kc 113 mil. Ke
- Euro 0 mil. K¢ 166 mil. Ke

Market benchmark rate

pius confractual margin

Fixed interest rate — annual
Variable interest rate - semi-annual
Four annual instalments

First due 31 August 2001

Interest rates
interest repayment

Principal repayment

Market benchmark rate

plus contractual margin

Fixed interest rate - annual
Variable interest rate - semi-annual
13 quarterly instalments

First due 25 March 2002

The outstanding amount of CZK 203 million is loan advanced to CKA not connected with refinancing

of transfer of receivables.
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Amounts due from CKA include inferest due of CZK 1,618 million (2000: CZK 1,660 million). The
aggregate balance of interest for 2001 and 2000 represents accrued interest that is not overdue.

20 Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers comprise;

31 December 31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Loans and advances to customers 157,180 144,648
Bills of exchange 912 1,351
Forfaits 874 1,676
Total gross loans and advances to customers 158,966 147,675
Less provisians for loan losses (23,769) (20,732)
Total loans and advances to customers, net 135,197 126,943

Of the fotal forfaits of CZK 874 million (2000: CZK 1,676 million), forfaits issued by foreign debtors
amount to CZK 26 million (2000: CZK 4 million).

" (.oans and advances to customers inciude interest due of CZK 1,192 million (2000: CZK 1,314 million),
of which CZK 958 million (2000: CZK 747 million) relates to overdue interest.

The loan portfolio of the Bank as of 31 December 2001 comprises the following breakdown by
classification:

Grass Collateral Ne Provisions Carrying Provisions
receivable applied exposur value i
CZKm GCZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm %
Standard 94 468 42 810 51 658 0 94 488 4]
Watch 26 025 14179 11 846 (713) 25 312 6
Substandard 11 152 8 100 3052 (565) 10 587 19
Doubtfui 11 029 5871 5158 {1 956) 9 073 38
Loss 16 292 1701 14 592 (11 755) . 4837 81
Total 158 966 72 661 86 306 (14 989) 143 977
General reserve for (8 780) 10.2
loan losses
Total provisions (23 769) 135 197

* Provisioning perceniaga by category does not conform to the reguirement of the Czech National Bank as the 'Collateral’ itern
does not refiect the state guarantae value as described below In this note.

Loans classified as loss in the above table include amounts of CZK 4,934 million (2000: 5,566 million),
on which interest is not being accrued.
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Set out below is an analysis of types of collateral underlying on balance sheet loans and advances tc

customners:
Tolal clisnt Discounted Applied cliant
loan collateral cllent [oan foan collateral
collateral value
31 December value 31 December
2001 31 Decembsr 2001
2001
CZKm CZKm CZKm
Guarantees of state and 10,485 9,038 5.288
governmental institutions
Bank guarantee 3,729 2,808 2,387
Guaranteed deposits 1,553 1.551 1.225
Issued debenlures in pledge 12,995 12,985 12,995
Pledge of res! estata 155,856 45,227 29,567
Pledge of movable assets 10,040 979 948
Guarantee by corperate 17.421 1,808 1,692
entity
Guarantes by Individual 4,821 538 530
{physical entily)
Pledge of recaivables 17,285 7110 8,102
Insurance of credit risk 5,043 4872 4,940
Other 13,314 9,009 6,987
Tatal nominal vaiua of 252,542 96,034 72,661
collateral
Total client Discounted Appiled client
lean coliataral client [oan lcan collateral
collateral vaiue
31 December - vajue 31 December
2000 31 December 2000
2000
cZ CZKm CZKm
Guarantees of state and 8,498 7,873 2,752
governmental Institutions
Bank guarantee 2,774 2,644 2420
Guaranteed deposlts 1.4% 1.486 °88
|ssued debentures in pledgs 4 3 3
Pladge of real estate . 177,920 72,555 45738
Pledge of movable assets 6499 658 658
Guarantee by corporate 19,738 9.988 8325
entity
Guarantee by individual 4,089 3,374 2,812
{physical entity)
Pledge of recelvables 6,581 5,025 4188
o o 6,618 6,616 6,616
Insyrance of credit risk
Other 13,265 9,627 8,727
Total nominal value of 247 461 119,859 83,227

collateral

The pledges on industrial real-estate represent 57 percent of total pledges on real estate (2000: 60

percent),

State guarantee covering losses on the Bank’s risk assets

Komercni banka, a.s.
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On 29 December 2000, the Bank entered into an agreement with Konsolidacni banka under which
Konsolidacni banka will cover losses, up to a maximum amount of CZK 20,000 million, which may be
incurred over a three year peried, which began on 31 December 2000, on a defined porifolio of
classified exposures. This agreement was sighed on 29 Decernber 2000 on the basis of the resolution
of the Government of the Czech Republic dated 18 December 2000. The guarantee applies ta the net
book value (defined as principal less specific provision) of assets classified as substandard, doubtful
and loss (in accordance with relevant CNB regulations) as of 31 December 2000. This defined
portfolic corresponds largely with that portfolio held within the Bank's Debt Recovery Division. The
payment under the guarantee agreement is effected through a mechanism wheraeby the Bank's
participation increases as the aggregate loss incurred on the defined portfolio increases. The Bank will
retain these assets on its balance sheet and continue to maximise recovery. The difference between
tha net book value as of 31 December 2000 and the actual amount recovered by December 2003 is
covered by the guarantee up to a maximum amount of CZK 20,000 million. In accardance with the
agreement this amount will be setlfed in either cash or Government securities by 30 June 2004,
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The table below sets oaut the structure of the Bank's participation in losses incurred on the guaranteed

portfolio;
Final josses Guarantee paid by Bank’s participation in Bank’s cumulative
Konsoiidacni banka final logses participation in fina!
losses
(CZKm) (CZKm)
0-10,000 95% 5% 500
10,000 - 20,000 CZK 9,500 million plus CZK 500 million 2,000
85% of the amount aver plus 15% of the amount
CZK 10,000 million over CZK 10,000 rnillion
20,000 - 25,000 CZK 18,000 million CZK 2,000 million 5,000

Over 25,000

plus 40% of the amount
over CZK 20,000 million
CZK 20,000 million

plus 80% of the amount
over CZK 20,000 million
CZK 5,000 million

plus 100% of the amount
over CZK 25,000 million

The Bank is required to report reguiarly to Konsolidacni banka (now the Czech Consolidation Agency)
on the administration of the assets and the expected losses on the guaranteed exposures.

The State Guarantee became effective at the beginning of October 2001 following the decision of the
Econamic Competition Protection Office, dated 20 September 2001, to cease its proceedings in
connection with the guarantee as set out in the Guarantee Agreement between Konsolidacni banka
and the Bank dated 29 December 2000 regarding the provision of public support, pursuant lo the
Public Support Act No. 59/2000 Coli.

Reserves and provisions to cover the Bank’s participation in the expected final losses on the
guaranteed portfolio

The Bank establishes provisions, on an accrual basis, to cover its participation in the aggregate losses
that it estimates will be incurred on the guarantesed portfolic. As of 31 December 2001, the Bank
carried within its general reserve an amount of CZK 4,500 million which represents the Bank's present
assessment of its participation in the estimated aggregate losses on the guaranteed portfolio (that is,
total losses in the amount of approximately CZK 24,500 rillion). Management of the Bank monitors
closely the expected development of the guaranteed portfolio through a series of scenario analyses
and assessments of a large number of individual exposures representing a substantial proportion of
the nominal value outstanding. The scenarios and assessments employed reflect the uncertainties
arising from the absence of benchmark recovery rates when using systematic recovery efforts in the
Czech Republic, the weaknesses in the legal framework regarding the enforcement of creditor rights
and the intention of management to realise substantially all of the portfolio over a three year time
horizon, Based on the facts presently available and given that the Bank has only twelve months
experience of realisation of the guaranteed portfolio, management consider it appropriate and prudent
to maintain its estimate of the aggregate loss at a level similar to that as of 31 December 2000,
Management will continue to monitor developments in the guaranteed portfolio and will revisit its
estimates again during 2002.

Reserves for risks and uncertalnties inherent in the loan portfolio
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The Bank's loan partfolio includes a number of risks that cannot be specifically identified as such.

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank maintains reserves of CZK 8,780 million to cover the general risks
and uncertainties, which may be prasent in the loan portfolio as of that date but which cannot be
allocated to individual exposures. This reserve also covers an assessment of the Bank's participation
in the aggregate losses incurred on the guaranteed risk portfolia covered by the State Guarantee (see
above). The breakdown of the reserve for gerieral risks is as follows:

Risk Reseive

CZK ‘000
Standard loans 3,305
Other general credit risks 5,475
Total 8,780

Exchange of non-parforming assets transferred to Konpo as part of the restructuring of assets
in March 2000

On 29 January 2001, the Bank entered into an agreement with Konpo, a subsidiary of Ceska
konsolidacni agentura, under which it agreed to take back certain assets transferred to it under an
origine! agreement dated 25 March 2000. Under this latter agreement the Bank had transferred non-
performing assets with a nominal value of CZK 60,000 million. The Bank replaced these assets which
did not comply with the parameters of the original agreement with other assets of the quality that did
so. The final exchange of assets that had a gross nominal value of CZK 2,958 million took place on 31
May 2001, The transfers were effecied at a price representing 60 percent of the gross nominal value
of the assets, that is, the same price that was used in transferring the assets in March 2000. The
financial impact of this asset transfer on the Bank’'s profit and loss statement was negative and
amounted to CZK 435 million.
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Trade finance josses

During 1989, the Bank incurred losses relating to loans, letters of credit and guarantees provided to a
foreign client of the Bank.

During the year ended 31 December 2001, the loss decreased by CZK 239 million due to exchange
rate changes and repayments of part of written off receivables using other available funds to the
amount of CZK 7,940 million (2000: CZK B,179 million). As of 31 December 2001, on balance sheet
loans and advances to this client included an amount of CZK 2,893 million (2000; CZK 3,120 miflion)
that was fully provided for. included within the Bank’s off balance sheet receivables from this client are
documentary letters of credit of CZK 519 million (2000: CZK 541 million), which are provided for to the
value of CZK 422 million (2000; CZK 425 million). In the second quarter of 2001, the Bank used theg
funds available on the current accounts of the client to decrease the amounts written off by CZK 109
million. This resulted in a decrease of incurred losses arising from these transactions, The provision is
shown under Note 29 Accruals, provisions and other liabilities within the line 'Provision for other credit
commitments.’ The balance of written off receivables, where recovery efforts continue, that are held in
off balance sheet memorandum accounts as of 31 December 2001 was CZK 4,525 million {2000: CZK
4,634 million).

The Bank is continuing to take actions in all relevant jurisdictions to recover its funds.
21 Securities available for sale

Securities available for sale comprise:

341 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2001 2001 2000 2000

Fair value Cost Fair value Cost

CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm

Shares and participation 4,159 4,240 4,779 5,153
certificates

Fixed income debt securities 17,987 18,297 17,170 17,5714

Veriable yield debt securities 11,311 12,531 7,823 7.823

Total debt securities 29,298 30,828 24,993 25,394

Total securities available for sale 33,457 35,068 29,772 30,547

As of 31 December 2000, the portfolio of securities available for sale comprised those securities
previously classified as ‘Investment securities’ that the Bank decided to allocate to the available-for-
sale portfolio as of 1 January 2001 in conformity with the requirements of IAS 39.

As of 31 December 2001, the available-for-sale portfolio includes securities at a fair vaiue of CZK
16,258 million (2000: CZK 17,385 million) that are publicly traded on stock exchanges and securities
at a fair value of CZK 17,199 million (2000: CZK 12,387 million) that are not publicly traded.
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Shares and participation certificates available for sale at fair value comprise:

31 December

AR SV 4

31 December

2001 2000
CZKm CZKm

Shares and participation certificates
- Czech Crowns 4,159 4,733
- Other currencies 0 6
Total shares and particlpation certificates available for 4,159 4,779

sale

Shares available for sale at fair value, allocated by issuer, comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
Shares and particlpation certlficatas available for sale CZKm CZKm
issued by:
- Non-banking entities in the Czech Republic 4,159 4,773
- Nan-banking foreign sntities 0 6
Total shares and participation certificates avallable for 4,159 4,779

sale

Debt securities available for sale at fair value comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Variable yield debt securities
- Czech crowns ’1,053 6,122
- Other currencies 10,258 1,701
Total variabla yleld debt securities 11,311 7,823
Fixed income debt securities
- Czech crowns 14,575 16,037
- Other currencies 3412 1,133
Total fixed income debt securities 17,987 17,170
Total debt securities available for sale 29,298 24,993

Debt securities available for sale at fair value, allocated by issuer, comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
Deabt securities avaliabie for sale issued by: CZKm CZKm
- State institutions in the Czech Republic 5,174 4,032
- Financlel institutions in the Czech Republic 3,823 6,160
- Foreign financlal institutions 302 437
- Other entities in the Czech Republic 3,506 3,365
- Other foreign entities 16,494 10,999
Total debt securities available for sale 29,298 24,993
Equlty securitles
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As of 31 December 2001, the Bank holds 56 percent of the issued participation certificates of Otevreny
podilovy fand Globalni ('Globalni’). Globalni is managed by IKS KB, a. s., the Bank's asset
management subsidiary, and the Bank acts as a depositary institution, As of 31 December 2001,
Globalni's portfolio included 6.75 percent domestic equity securities, 9.23 percent international
equities, 4.82 percent participation certificates, 22.46 percent local debt securities, and 26.64 percent
fareign debt securities. The remaining portion of the portfolio consists of current receivables, accounts
with banks and foreign accounts. As of 31 December 2001, the Bank carries its interest in Globaini at
fair value of CZK 4,068 million (2000: CZK 4,111 million).

In the last quarter of 2001, the Bank scld 9.99 percent of the issued shars capital of Ceska pojistovna,
a. 8., the largest insurance company In the Czech Republic (of which 4.87 percent of the issued share
capital was publicly fraded). The Bank realised a profit of CZK 567 million from this sale.

In the last quarter of 2001, the Bank soid 65.42 percent of the issued share capital of Ceska
Zbrojovka, a. 5., @ small arms manufacturer in Czech Republic. The investor was selected pursuant to
a standard tender initiated in June 2001 and was spproved by the Bank's Management and
Supervisory Boards. A Share Purchase Agreement was entered into in November 2001 and this
transaction was effected in December 2007, The Bank realised a profit of CZK 52 million from this
sale.

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank holds 77.18 percent (2000: 77.18 percent)} of the issued share
capital of Vodni stavby, a.s., a large construction company in Czech Republic, The Bank acquired the
majority of these shares in connection with the liquidation of the company and the recovery of a
syndicated facility provided to Vodni stavby, a.s. in prior years. The Bank has atltributed no fair value to
this shareholding as of 31 December 2001, Pursuant to Section 183 b (4) (a) (2) of the Commercial
Code, the Bank does not exercise and does not intend to exercise voting rights, which are equivalent
to a 57.22 percent shareholding (of the aggregate 77.18 percent shareholding of the Bank)
shareholding, attached to these shares nor will the Bank pass the voting rights to other parties. The
Bank’s Management Board has discussed a further course of action in relation to the holding of these
shares. Negotiations that were conducted with regard to the sale of the shares and the aggregate lean
exposure had not been successful by the close of 2001.

Asset backed securities

In the last quarter of 2000 and the first half of 2001, the Bank acquired an unlisted portfolio of USD
denominated coliateralised bond obligations (‘CBO’) or asset backed securities ('ABS’) issued by a
series of special purpose corporations. The acquisition cost of the entire portfolic was USD 426
million. The portfolio of asset backed securities has an average credit rating of A2 (Moody's) as of 31
December 2001 and a substantial portion of the securities have ratings issued by other recognised
international rating agencies. The securities bear a fix and floating interest rate based on USD LIBOR.

Pursuant to the requiremants of IAS 39 the Bank allocated these securities into the available for sale
portfolio and the held to maturity portfolio as of 1 January 2001. in December 2001, rmanagement of
the Bank determined that all asset backed securities are to be held in the available for sale category.
This transfer was implemented as of 31 December 2001. The decision on the allocation of the
securites was made by the Bank's new majority shareholder in connection with the Bank's
privatisation reflecting the fact that Societe Generale’s global strategy is to carry such securities as
available for sale, The transfer of the asset backed securities to the available for sale category had no
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impact on the profit and loss statement. The Bank, from mid-2001, has provisioned for the impairment
of the asseat backed securities held in both categories on a consistent basis.

The Bank established a provision for impairment of CZK 1,859 million as of 37 December 2001
against the asset backed securities, the carrying value of which, net of impairment, is CZK 13,437
miilion. Management considers that this impairment charge represents its best estimate of the net
recoverable value of these assets and reflects changes in market credit conditions in the markets of
the underlying assets since the purchase of the portfolio. The Bank used the same mode! also for the
fair value of the credit linked note (refer to Other debt securities).

Other debt securities

Securities issued by financial institutions include a credit linked note (the ‘note') with a hominal value
of

Eure 9.5 million, issued by an internationally recognised bank, which amortises to zero gver the ten
years to its maturity pursuant to the payment schedule. The note bears interest based on a margin
over three month EURIBOR. This note forms part of a credit derivative instrument acquired by the
Bank during 2000 under which it sold credit protection to an international financial institution. The
maximum expasure of the Bank under this agreement is Euro 100 million. The aggregate exposure
amortises over the fen year life of the instrument. Off balance sheet instruments of Euro 100 million
associated with this transaction (the so called 'credit default swaps’) are shown within issued banking
payment guarantees. In September and December 2001, the Bank received notices of credit events in
respect of two reference assets within the contract. The credit quality of other reference assets has
also deteriorated. If the aggregate loss exceeds the contracted threshold, the Bank will have to pay
the amount over the threshold to the issuer. The Bank simulated the impact of credit events for several
scenarios. The Bank created provisions for possible losses in respect of this instrument in the amount
of CZK 244 million as of 31 December 2001,

The Bank holds a portfolio of CZK denominated debt obligations issued by large internaticnal
corporates through private placements. The carrying value of this portfolio was CZK 3,127 million as of
317 December 2001 (2000: CZK 7.000 million) as a result of the redemption of a one of the
investments.
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22 Investments held to maturity

Investments held to maturity comprise:

31 December 31 December 31 December

T e M b e d ] bl

31 December

2001 2001 2000 2000

Carrying
value Cast Carrying value Cost
CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm
Fixed income debt securities 860 860 6,180 6,190
Variable yield debt securities 0 0 5,503 5,503
Total investments held to maturity 960 960 11,693 11,683

As of 31 December 2000, the portfolio of investments held to maturity comprised those securities
previously classified as investment that the Bank decided to ailocate to the held-to-maturity portfolic as
of 1 January 2001 in confermity with the requirements set out in !AS 39,

As of 31 December 2001, the held-to-maturity portfolio includes securities of CZK 960 million (2000:
CZK 960 million) that are publicly traded on stock exchanges and securities of CZK nil (2000; CZK

10,733 million) that are not publicly traded.

Debt securities held to maturity comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
CZKm CzZKm
Variable yield debt securities
- Czech Crowns o] 42
- Other currencies 0 5,461
Total variable yield debt securities 0 5,503
Fixed income debt securities
- Czech Crowns 199 3,189
- Other currencies 761 3,001
Total fixed income debt securities 960 6,190
Total debt securities held to maturity 960 11,693

Investments held to maturity, allocated by issuer, comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
Debt securities heid to maturity issued by: CZKm CZKm
- State institutions in the Czech Republic 0 3,758
- Financial institutions in the Czech Republic 199 919
- Other entities in the Czech Republic 0 3,979
- Other foreign entities 761 3,036
Totai debt securities held to maturity 980 11,693
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23 Prepayments, accrued income and other assets

Prepayments, accrued income and other assets comprise:

21 December

AV Fd 0T i, LJ

31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Prepayments and accrued income 2,625 2,831
Settlement balances 347 154
Other receivables from securities trading - 3 32
Other assets 1,090 1,773
Total prepayments, acerued income and other assets 4,065 4,790

24 investments in subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates comprise:

31 December 31 December 2000

2001
CZKm CZKm
Shares in subsidiary undertakings 8as 1,135
Shares in associated undertakings 335 490
Total investments in subsidiaries and associates 1,223 1,625
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Subsidiary undertakings

The following companies are subsidiary undertakings of the Bank as of 31 December 2001:

Company name Direct Group Principal activity
holdlng  holding
_ % Ve
ALLIN, 3. s. v likvidaci 100 100 Valuatlon services
Investicni kapitalova 100 100 Collective investment
spolecnost K8, scheme manager
a. 8.
Komercnl banka 100 100 Banking services
Bratislava, a. s,
Penzijni fond Komerchi 100 100 Pension insurance
banky,
a. s,
Komercni pojistovna, a. 100 100 Insurance activities
5,
Factoring KB, a. s, 100 100 Factoring
Kemerenl Financa, BV 100 100 Finance
ASIS, a-s. 100 100 Support activities
(Informatian
technologies)
Reflexim, a._ s. 100 100 Support activities
(Information
technologias)
A-TRADE, s.T. 0. 75 75 Agency sarvices
MUZ0O, a. s. 49.9 51.25 Payment support
services
Totaj
Company nama Registered  Investment Provisions  Carrying
office for value
permansnt
diminution In
value
CZKm CZKm CZKm
ALL IN, a, 5. viikvidaci Praha 40 40 0
Investicn| kapilalova Praha 75 0 75
spolecnost KB,
a. 8.
Komercnl banka Bratislava 411 o 411
Bratislava, 3. 5.
Penzijni fond Komercni Praha 230 0 230
banky, :
a.s, .
Komercni pajistovna, a. Praha 520 520 o}
s,
Factoring KB, a, s. Praha 80 1} 90
Komercni FInance, BV Amsterdam 1 o 1
ASIS, a.s. Praha 1 0 1
Reflexim, a. 8, Praha 1 o 1
A-TRADE,s. . 0. Praha 210 192 18
MUZQ, a. s. Praha 81 0 69
Total 4,640 752 L)

All subsidiary companies, apart from A-Trade, s. r. 0., are joint stock companies.
Assoclated undertakings
The following companies are associated undertakings of the Bank as of 31 December 2001

Group Principal Registered

holding activity

Direct
holding

Company name
office
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Ya
CAC LEASING, 50 50 Leasing
a.s.
Vseobecna stavebni 40 40 Building socisty
sporitelna KB, a, 5.
CAC LEASING Slovakia 10 50 Leasing Bratislava
a, 5.
Total
Company name Investment Provisions for Carrying
permansent value
diminution in
vaiue

CZKm CZKm CZKm
CAC LEASING, 111 [§] 111
a. s,
Vsasobecna stavebni 220 (o] 220
sporitelna KB, a. s.
CAC LEASING Siovakia 4 0 4
a.s.
Total 335 1] 335
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Set out below is an overview of year-on-year movements in investments, by issuer:

Investment investment at

at 31 December

Company name 1 January 2001 Additions Decreases 2001
CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm

ALL IN, a. s, v iikvidaci 100 o 60 40
Investicni kapitalova spol. KB, a. s. 75 o] o 75
Komercni banka Bratislava, a. 5.%) 438 0 27 411
Penzijni fond KB, a. s. 230 0 0 230
Komercni pojistovna, a. s. 520 o] 0 520
Factoring KB, a. s. 80 0 0] 90
Komercni Finance, B. V. 1 0 0 1
ASIS, a. s. 0 1 0 1
Reflexim, a. s. 0 1 0 1
MUZO, a. s. 0 61 (o] 61
A-TRADE, s. T, 0. 210 0 0 210
Teotal subsidiaries 1,664 63 g 1.640
CAC LEASING, a. s. 111 o] 0 111
MUZO, a, s. 61 0 61 0
Vseobecna stavebni sporitelna KB, a. s. 220 0 o] 220
Other (investment less than 20 percent) 103 4] 99 4
Total associates 495 o 160 335

*Exchange rate differences

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank carries within the category ‘Other’ CAC Leasing Slovakia, a.s,
where it holds a direct 10 percent equity investment but exercises significant influence over this entity
through other indirect holdings of other Group companies,

As a result of the adoption of IAS 39, the Bank re-aliocated certain shares that were reported as fixed
asset investments as of 31 December 2000 into securities available for sale.

In the first half of 2001, the Bank acquired a 100 percent equity interest in two companies and
transformed these investments into wholly owned and controlled subsidiaries:

e Reflexim, a. s. — with effect from 1 July 2001 the Bank transferred approxirnately 450 staff and the
related support operations to this newly established subsidiary; and

» ASIS, a. s. — with effect from 1 September 2001 the Bank transferred approximately 250 staff and
the related information technology user support and other activities to this newly established

subsidiary.

Komercni pojistovna, a. s. incurred significant losses in the year ended 31 Decemnber 2001 principally
refated to the continuing substantial acquisition costs associated with its life insurance portfolio,
unprofitability of its third party motor liability insurance and losses incurred in the settlement of
liabilities arising from its industriai commercial insurance portfolio. These losses primarily foliow the
review of the adequecy of the technical reserves for its lines of business and a reassessment of the
accounting treatment of the Kamercni pojistovna's share in the auto insurance deficit administered by
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the Czech Bureau of Insurance. In December 2001, the Bank approved the plan to increase the
company's share capital by 1,080 shares of ordinary stock in the aggregate armount of CZK 105 million
(nominal value of one share being CZK 100 thousand) at an issue rate of CZK 275 thousand per
share. Following the resolution of its sole shareholder, Kornercni pojistovna filed a proposal to update
the corporate detalls held at the Register of Companies maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague.
in January 2002, the Bank made a cash deposit of CZK 288.75 million in Komereni pojistovna, Of this
balance, CZK 105 million represents the nominal value of the issued shares (share capital increase of
Komercni pojistovna) and CZK 183.75 million is the share premium amount. The aggregate capital
increase amounts to CZK 288.75 millien. The management of the Bank is currently reviewing options
available to it in further recapitalising and restructuring this business, The Bank has indicated that it
will continue to provide financial support to Komercni pojistovna, a.s. such that it is able to meet legal
and regulatory requirements applicable to the entity.

Following the previous decision of the Bank to substantially reduce the activities of the ALL IN Group,
the company ALL IN, a, s, v likvidaci was put into liquidation on 1 April 2001, The carrying value of the
Bank's investment in this company reflects the estimated recoveries from the liquidation process.
Having discontinued its real estate development activities, A-TRADE, s. r. 0. significantly reduced its
operations and presently only administers and maintains a residuai portfolio of assets which have not
been transferred to the Bank. Management of the Bank has been negotiating the sale of this entity but
has not completed the sale at the date of this report.

The Bank has presented its interest in MUZO as at 31 December 2001 as an interest in subsidiary. In
prior accounting periods MUZO was accounted for as an associate. In 2001 the management consider
that the Bank, directly or indirectly, has the power to exercise contro! over the financial and operating
policies of MUZO,

Management of the Bank has written down the carrying value of investments in the Bank's group
companies to reflect its present estimate of the recoverable value of these investments.

During 2001, the Bank sold its equity interest in Bankovni institut, 2. s. The equity holdings in

Ceskomorayska zarucni a rozvojova banka, a. s., and Burza cennych papiru Praha, a. s. {the Prague
Stock Exchange) were transferred to the available-for-sale securities portfolio.
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25 Tangible and intangible fixed assets, net

The movements during the year ended 31 December 2001 are as follows:

- d e A VYV VN

Intangible
fixed Land Buildings
assels
CZKm CZKm CZKm
Cost
31 December 2000 1,649 368 12,192
Additions B7S 160 232
Disposals 3 11 54
31 December 2001 2,521 517 12,370
Accumulated
depreciation
31 December 2000 873 0 2,734
Additions - 559 0 497
accumuliated
depreciation
Disposals - 3 0 54
accumulated
depreciation
Impairment charge 220 0 1,059
31 December 2001 1,649 4,237
Net book value
31 December 2000 776 268 9,458
31 December 2001 872 517 8,133
Fixtures, Assats
fittings under Total
and construction
equipment
CZKm CZKm CZKm
Cost
31 December 2000 8,392 952 23,553
Additions 639 1,763 3,669
Disposals 524 2,099 2,691
31 December 2001 8,507 616 24,531
Accumuiated
depreciation
31 December 2000 6,370 221 10,198
Additions - 1.010 ) 2,068
accumulated
depreciation
Disposals - 524 0 581
accumulated

depreciation

Komercnl banka, a.s.
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Impairment charge 5 (120) 1,164
31 December 2001 6,861 101 12,848
Net book value

31 December 2000 2,022 731 13,355
31 December 2001 1,646 518 11,683

As of 31 December 2001, the net book value of assets held by the Bank under finance lease
agreements was CZK 526 million (2000; CZK 365 million).

The impairment charge and the basis for it are set out in Note 11 "Restructuring cosis®. As of 31
December 2001, tangible and intangible fixed assets held as part of the branch network, which the
Bank intends to dispose of in the medium term of as and when market and business conditions allow,
shown in the table above have a net book value of approximately CZK 2,500 million.

in addition the balance of tangible and intangible fixed assets include other assets which have been
previously been identified as not in use, available for sublet or sale with a net book value of CZK 530

million.
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26 Amounts owaed to banks

Amounts owed to banks comprise:

31 December

IE R +

* 31 December

2001 2000

C2Km CZKm

Current accounts 1,057 1,158
Amounts owed to banks 27,803 38,220
28,860 39,378

Total amounts owed to banks

27 Amounts owed lo customers

Amounts owed to customers, by type of deposit, comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Current accounts 130,995 109,962
Savings accounts 21,339 24,834
Term deposits 117,803 104,230
Deposits from budget of public sector 7,469 7,784
Off-budget deposits of public sector 7,297 5,852
Loans from customers 31,888 34,962
316,791 287,624

Total amounts owed to customers

Amounts owed to customers, by type of customer, comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Private companies 112,878 80,255
Other financial institutions 4,066 2,217
Insurance companies 2,922 2,346
Public administration 8,326 14,053
Individuals 118,108 123,150
Non-residents 5,438 10,154
Deposits — bills of exchange 31,620 24,948
Private entrepreneurs 16,717 14,933
Government agencies 6,440 15,565
Qther 10,276 2
316,791 287,624

Total amounts owed to customers

Amounts owed to the subsidiary undertaking Komercni Finance, B. V. are included within the category

‘Non-residents’ and are presented in Nots 36,
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28 Certificated debt

Certificated debts comprise:
31 December

31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Bonds 20,668 20,841
Mortgage bonds 7,105 6,600
Total certificated debts 27,771 27,441

Publicly tradable mortgage bonds are issued to fund the Bank's maortgage activities.

Certificated debts are repayable, sccording to remaining maturity, as follows:
: 31 December

31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

In less than one year 10,146 0
In one to two years V] 10,000
In two to three years 16,291 0
in three to four years o 16,341
Five years and thereafter 1,334 1,100
Total certificated debts 27,771 27,441

The bonds and medium-term notes detziled above include the following bonds and notes issued by the

Bank:

Name Intarest rate lssue date
Bonds of Komereni banka, 3. 6M PRIBOR plus 15 basis 10 February
s., CZ0D03700429 points (bps) 1997
Zero coupon bonds of Zero coupen (issued with 8 August
Komercnl banka, a. s., discount for CZK 3,805 1997
770970000847 milllon)

Bonds of Komereni banka, a. 6M PRIBOR plus 10 basis 25 September
s., CZ20003700452 paints 1997
Mortgage bonds of Kermnereni  8.125% (mongage bonds 13 May 1989

banka, a. s., CZ0D02000110 2)

8.0% (mortgage bonds 1) 15 June 1999

Mortgage bonds of
Kornereni banka,
a. s., CZ0002000102

Bonds of Komercni banka, a, 8.0% 10 Septamber

5., CZ0003700528 1999

Mortgage bonds of 6M PRIBOR plus 350 15 September

Kemercni banka, basis points (mortgage 2000

a. 5.. CZ0002000151 bonds 3)

Total bonds

Name Maturity date 31 December 31 December
2001 2000

Komercni banka, a.s.
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CZKm CZKm
Bonds of Komerenl banka, a. 1Q February 2002 6,124 6,000
s,, CZ0003700429
Zero coupon bonda of B August 2004 5,581 5,841
Kemereni banka, a. s.,
770970000347
Bonds of Kemercni banka, a. 28 Septemnber 4,022 4,000
s., C20003700452 2002
Mortgage bonds of Komereni 13 May 2004 4,206 4,000
banka, a. 3., CZ0002000110 )
Morgage bonds of 15 June 2004 1,585 1,500
Komeren! banka,
a. 5, CZ0002000102
Bonds of Komereni banka, a. 10 September 4,939 5,000
1., CZ0003700528 2004
Mortgags bonds of 15 September 1,334 1,100
Komercnl banka, 2007
a. s., CZ0002000151
Total bonds 27,771 27 441

Six-month PRIBOR was 448 basls points as of 37 Decemnber 2001 (2000: 557 basls points).
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29 Accruals, provisions and other liabilities
Accruals, provisions and other liabilities comprise:

31 December

-1

e

T

3 -

31 December

2001 2000

CZKm CZKm

Settlerment balances and outstanding balances 0 380
Payments in clearing 3,208 6,557
Other payables to customers 132 1,239
Other trading payables 528 458
Other liabilities 2,700 3,897
Provisions, accruals and deferred Income 2,507 2,885
Provision for other credit commitments 1,851 1,362
Other provisions 923 440
11,849 17,1889

Total accruals, provisions and other liabilitles

As of 31 December 2001, the baiance of the provision for other credit commitments was CZK 1,851
million. This covers credit risks associated with issued credit commitments, off balance sheet credit
instruments and the estimated participation in the expected losses on the guaranteed portfolio of off
balance sheet exposures of the Bank pursuant to the Guarantee Agreement dated 29 December

2000,

Other provisions are composed of the following baiances:

1 January Additions Disposals 31 December
2001 2001
Restructuring provision (refer 0 100 4 96
to Note 11) '
Provisions for contracted 440 2,257 1,870 827
_commitments _
Total 440 2,357 1,874 923

Provisions for contracted commitments principally comprise the provision for outstanding vacation

days, legai disputes and termination of rental agreements.

30 Deferred income taxes

Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using a

principal tax rate effective for the following year, that is 31 percent (2000: 31 percent),
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The movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2001 - 2000
CZKm . CZKm
At beginning of period
- as previously reported (80) 0
- effect of adopting IAS 39 (note 38) {103) 0
As restated at the beginning of the period {183) (73)
Income statement (charge)/credit
- unrealised profit on securities (164) 0
- fixed assets depreciation 21 0
- contractual penalties (16) 0
- reduction in tax associated with the sale of securities 42 0
(117) (7)
Cash flow hedges - equity charge
- fair value re-measurement (438) 0
- transfer to net profit 108 0
(330) 0
At end of period {630) (80)

The movement in the deferred income tax account comprises the movement in accelerated tax
depreciation, unrealised profit on securities and contractual penalties.
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Deferred incofne tax assets and liabilities are atiributable to the following items:

31 December 31 December

) 2001 2000
Deferred income tax liabilities CZKm CZKm
Accelerated tax depreciation (59) (80)
Unrealised profit on securities - equity impact 0 0
Unrealised profit on securities - P/L impact (164) 0
Revaluation of hedging derivatives (321) 0
Other temporary differences {16) 0
‘ (630) (80)

Deferred income tax assets
General and specific loan loss provisions 394 2,387
Reserves and provisions for assets 451 0
Other provisions 125 o]
Provisions for non-banking receivables 64 0
Tax loss carry forwards 0 118
Unrealised losses on securities 206 290
Fixed assets depreciation 0 0
Other temporary differences 85 268
1,325 3,063
Net deferred income tax asset before adjustment 695 2,983
Adjustment for uncertain realisation of tax asset (1,325) (3,063)
Net deferred income tax liability (630) (80)

The reduction in the unrecognised deferred tax asset as of 31 Decenber 2001 when compared with
the prior year end reflects primarily changes in the treatment of the generai reserves held by the Bank
as of 31 December 2001 pursuant to the prospective application of amendments to the Act on
Reserves. The Act as presently drafited requires that the Bank release these provisions in the
accounting periods ending 31 December 2005,

31 Subordinated debt

In 1998, Komereni Finance, B. V. (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank) issued guaranteed step-up
callable notes due 15 May 2008, bearing interest at 9 percent per annurn to 15 May 2003 and then
interest at a rate per annum equal to the sum of the six-month dollar deposit LIBOR for the relevant
payment period plus 5 percent. The notes constitute direct, unsecured, uncenditional,” subordinated
obligations of Komercni Finance, B.V. which are irrevocably, fully and, subject to subordination,
unconditionally guaranteed as to principal, premium and interest by the Bank. The naies are
redeemable at the option of Komercni Finance, B. V. in whele on any interest payment date on or after
15 May 2003. The nominal value of the subardinated debt is USD 200 million.
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32 Share capital

The Bank's share capital, iegally registered in the Register of Companies on 11 February 2000, is CZK
19,005 million and consists of 38,009,852 ordinary shares with a nominal value of CZK 500 each
(ISIN: CZ0008012106).

In connection with the sale of the State's controlling interest in the Bank held by the Natienal Property
Fund of the Czech Republiic, Societe Generale S. A., incorporated under French law, having its
registered office address at 29, boulevard Haussmann, 75008 Paris, France, acquired a 60.001
percent shareholding in the Bank on 4 October 2001. Societe Generale is a French joint stock
company registered in the Register of Companies (Registre du Commerce et Societes) under no. RCS
Paris 552 120 222. Societe Generale operates as a licensed bank pursuant to a resolution issued on 4
May 1864 and is subject to the reguiatory requirements of the French Companies Act (Loi sur les
Societes Commerciales 86-537, 24 July 1966) and the French Banking Act (Loi Banceire 84-46, 24
January 1984).

33 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents reported in the cash flow statement

31 December 31 December Change in the

2001 2000 year

CZKm CZKm CZKm

Cash and balances with central banks 17,996 19,830 (1,834)
Current accounts with other banks 215 4 (562)
Amounts owed to banks (1,057) (1,158) 101
Total 17.154 19.449 (2,295)

34 Commitments and contingent liabllities

Legal disputes

The Bank conducted a review of legal proceedings outstanding against it as of 31 December 2001.
Pursuant to the review of significant litigation matters in terms of the risk of losses and litigated
amounts, the Bank has recorded a provision of CZK 75 million for these legal disputes. The Bank has
also recorded an accrual of CZK 24 million for costs associated with cross-border legal actions
brought against a foreign client in connection with losses incurred in the Bank's trade finance area.

The Bank has been notified that certain parties against which it is taking legal action may file
counterclaims against it. The Bank has no information that such claims have yet been filed in any
court. The Bank will contest any such claims and, taking into consideration the opinion of its internal
and external legal counsel, believes that any asserted claims made will not materially affect its
financial position, No provision has been made in respect of these matters.
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Commiimaeants arising from the issuance of guarantses

Commitments from guarantees represent irrevocable assurances that the Bank will make payments in
the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties. These assurances carry the
same credit risk as foans and therefore the Bank makes provisions against these instruments on the
same basis as is applicable to loans.

Purchase of Societe Generale’s Prague branch

Pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement dated 12 July 2001, the Bank will acquire the business of
Societe Generale's Prague branch. It is anticlpated that the Bapk will complete the acquisition of the
business and assets and liabilities of Societe Generale's Prague branch in the first quarter of 2002,
Far further information refer to Note 45.

Capital commitments

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank had capital commitments of CZK 88 million {2000: CZK 34 million)
in respect of current capital investment projects. Management is confident that future net revenues
and funding will be sufficient to cover this commitment.

Commitmaents arising from the issuance of letters of credit

Documentary letters of credit, which are written irrevocable undertakings by the Bank on bshalf of a
customer (mandatory) suthorising a third party (beneficiary) to draw drafts on the Bank up to a
stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are collateralised by the underlying shipments
of goods to which they relate and therefore have significantly less risk. Cash requirements under open
letters of credit are considerably less than the commitments under issued guarantees, avals or stand-
by letters of credit. However, the Bank records provisions against these instruments on the same basis
as is applicable to loans.

Commitments to extend credit, undrawn loan commitments, unutilised overdrafts and
approved overdraft loans

The primary purpose of commitments lo extend credit is to ensure that funds are available o a
customer as required. Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to
extend credits in the form of loans, guarantees or stand-by letlers of credit, Cammitments {o extend
credit issued by the Bank represent issued loan commitments or guarantees, undrawn portions of and
approved overdrafts loans. Commitments to extend credit or guarantees issued by the Bank which are
contingent upon custormers maintaining specific credit standards (including the condition that a
customer's solvency does not deteriorate) are revocable commitments. lrrevocable commitments
represent undrawn portions of authorised leans and approved overdraft facilities because they resuit
from contractual terms and conditions in the credit agreements.

Komercni banka, a.s. Page 57
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KOMERCNI BANKA, a.s.

We have audited the accompanying unconsolidated balance sheet of Komercni banke, a.s. (the Bank) as of
December 31, 2001, and the related unconsolidated statements of profit and loss account, changes in
shareholders’ cquity and cash flows for the year then cnded. These financigsl statements are the responsibility
of the Bank’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial staterncuts based on
our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intermational Standards on Auditing. Thosc Standards require that
we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material migstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial staternents. An sudit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
pozition of the Bank as of December 31, 2001, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Accounting Standards.

Prague, 26 March 2002

Deloitte & Touche




T T EER G Y W el LYWV Y

Unconsolidated Profit and Loss Statement

Year ended 31 December 2001

Notes

WY, TJIL i,

Yearended  Year ended
31 December 31 December
2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
Interest income 4 28,147 29,096
Interest expanse 4 - {15,158) (16,809)
Net interest income 4 12,989 12,287
Net fees and commissions 6 8,394 7.181
Net profit/(loss) on financial operations 7 1,551 1,543
Other income 8 875 794
Total operating income 23,809 21,805
Administrative expenses °] (10,954) (10,540)
Depreciation and other provisions 10 (2,356} (2.416)
Restructuring costs 11 (1,755) (827)
Total operating costs (15,065) (13,783)
Profit before provision for loan and investment losses 8,744 8,022
and income taxes
Provision for loan losses (2,865) (7,876)
Praovision for losses on securities (1,870) o
Provision for investmants in subsidiaries and associstes (498) (148)
Provisions for loan and investment losses i2 {5,333) {8,024)
Prafit/{loss) before income taxes 3,411 (2)
Incorne taxes 13 {879) (17
Net profit/(loss) 2,532 (19)
15 66.61 (0.51)

Earnings/(loss) per share (in CZK)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements,

Komercni banka, a.s.

Page 4




Unconsolidated Balance Sheet
As of 31 December 2001

Assets .

Cash and balances with the central bank |
Amounts due from banks

Securities held for trading

Receivables on financial derivative transactions
Due from Ceska konsalidacni agentura

Loans and advances te customers, net
Securities available for sale

Investments heald to maturity

Prepayments, accrued income and other assets
Investments in subsidiaries and associates
Tangible and intangible fixed assets, nat

A LMV

Notes

16
17
18
35
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Total assets

Liabilities

Amounts owed to banks

Amounts owed to customers

Payables on financlal derivative transactions
Cerlificated debt

Accruals, provisions and other liabilities
Income taxes payable

Deferred tax liability

Subordinated debt

26
27
35
28
29
13
30
31

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Share premium and reserves

32

Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

LA N S Y

31 December 31 December

2001 2000
CZKm CZKm
18,211 20,607
155,602 122,657
3,708 14,809
7,851 3,312
49,765 52,642
135,197 126,943
33,457 29772
960 11,693
4,065 4,790
1,223 1,625
11,683 13,355
421,720 402,205
28,860 38,378
316,791 287,624
4,296 2,702
27,771 27,441
11,849 17,189
673 17
630 80
7,252 7,563
398,122 381,094
19,005 19,005
4,592 1,208
23,598 20,211

421,720 402,205

These financial statements were approved by the Management Board on 26 March 2002.

Sligned on behalf of the Management Board:

Alexis Juan Chairrmnan of the Management Board and CEQ
Tomas Spurny Member of the Management Board and Deputy CEO
Komercni banka, a.s. Page 5
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Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Year ended 31 December 2001

Share Share Capital and
capital promium reserve funds
and
undistributed
profit*
CZKm CZKm CZKm
Balance at 31 Decernber 1999 16,604 8,008 (4,836)
Share capital increase 2401 0 0
Settlement of prior year losses 0 (6,008) 6,008
Equity compensation program 0 0 0
reserve
Net loss for the year 0 0 (18)
Balance at 31 December 2000 19,005 0 1,153
Effect of adoption of IAS 39, net of
tax
- derivative instruments reclassified 0 0 140
from hedging derivatives
- hedging Instruments 1] 0 0
- available for sale securitles 0 0 24 |
Restated balance at 1 January 19,005 0 1,387
2001
Cash flow hedging:
- net fair value, net of tax 0 0 0
- transfer to net profit, net of tax 0 0 0
Currency translation from foreign 0 0 0
ipvestments
Treasury shares 0 ] (151)
Equity compensation program Y 0 0
reserve
Net profit for the period 0 0 2,832
Balance at 31 December 2001 19,005 0 3,768
Campen Hedging Revaluation Teotal
<sation reserve reserve
reserve
CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm
Balance at 31 December 1999 0 0 0 17,776
Share capital increase o] 0 0 2,401
Settiement of prior year losses 0 0 0 4]
Equity compensation program 53 0 0 53
reserve
Net loss for the year 0 0 0 {19)
Bailance at 31 Decomber 2000 53 0 0 20,211
Effect of adoption of IAS 39, net of
tax _
- derivative instruments reclassified 0 o 0 140
from hedging derivatives
- hedging instruments o] 138 0 136
- available for sale securitios 0 0 0 a4

Komercni banka, a.s.

Page 6
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Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
Year ended 31 December 2001

Rastated balance at 1 January 53 136 ] 20,581
2001

Cash flow hedging:

- net fair value, net of tax 0 975 o] 975
- transfer to net profit, net of tax 0 {239) 0 (239)
Currency translation from foreign 0 0 (56) (58)
investments

Treasury shares 0 0 0 (151)
Equity compensation program (44) ] 0 (44)
reserve

Net profit for the period 0 0 0 2,532
Balance at 31 December 2001 9 B72 (56) 23,598

*Capitat and reserve funds and undistributed profit consists of statutory reserve funds, raserve funds for treasury shares, other
funds created from profit and retalned earnings,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements,

Komercni banka, a.s. Page 7
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Unconsolidated Cash Flow Statement
Year ended 31 December 2001

Yearended Yearended Yearended Yearendsd
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2001 2001 2000 2000
CZKm CZKm CZKm CZKm

Cash flows from operating activitles

Interest and commission receipts 37,375 40,346

Interest and commission payments (16,483) (20,272)

Other income receipts 2,036 927

Cash payments to employees and suppliers {10,341) (8,017)

Operating cash flow before changes in operating 12,588 11,984

assets and operating liabilities

Due from financial institutions (30,068) (43,521)

Leans and advances to custamers {11,459) 44,273

Securities held for trading 10,565 (6,660)

Other assets {5,714) (5,167)
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets (36,677) (11,075)

Amounts owed to financial institutions (10,418) (18,803)

Amounts owed to customers 29,167 28,433

Other liabilities (808) 6,474
Increasel(decrease) in operating ligbilities 17,941 16,104

‘Net cash flow from operating activities before taxes (6,148) 17,013

Income taxes paid (28) 0

Net cash flows from apserating actlvities , (6,176) 17,013
Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends received 222 451

Purchase of investments held to maturity (761) (1 9,337)

Net purchase/(sale) of securities available for sale 4,752

Net purchase/(sale) of tangible and intangible fixed (392) {1,463)

assets

Net purchase/(sale) investments in subsidiaries and 60 106

associates

Net cash flow from investing activities 3,881 (20,243)
Cash flows from financing activities

Share capital 0 2,401

Certificated debts 0 {300}

Net cash flow from financing actlvities 0 2,101
Neot Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash (2,295) (1,129)
equivalsnts

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 19,449 20,678

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (see 17,154 19,449
Note 33)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Komercni banka, a.s. Page 8
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

Principal activities

Komercni banka, a. s. (the ‘Bank') is incorporated in the Czech Republic as a joint-stock company.
The principal activities of the Bank are as follows:

l, Providing loans, advances and quarantees in Czech Crowns and foreign currencies;
. Acceptance and placement of deposits in Czech Crowns and foreign currencies;
n. Praviding current and term deposit accounts in Czech Crowns and foreign currencies;

. Providing banking services through an extensive branch network in the Czech Repubilic;
V. Treasury operations in the interbank market;

Vi, Servicing foreign trade transactions; and

VI, Investment banking.

The registered office address of the Bank is Na Prikope 33/969, 114 07 Prague 1. The Bank has 342
branches and sub-agencies in the Czech Republic. The Bank had 9,229 employees as of 31
December 2001. The Bank has operations in the Czech Republic and Slovakia through its subsidiary
Komercni banka Bratislava, a.s.

The Bank's ordinary shares are publicly traded on the Prague Stock Exchange. Societe Generale, a
French bank, became the majority sharehalder of the Bank on 4 October 2001 following its purchase
of a 60 percent shareholding in the Bank which had besn held by the Czech Government through the
National Property Fund.

Principal developments during the year ended 31 December 2001

State guarantee

Pursuant to a Government resolution dated 18 December 2000, the Bank entered into an agreement
with Konsolidacni banka under which Konsolidacni banka covers losses incurred by the Bank, up to a
maximum amount of CZK 20,000 million, incurred over a three year period, beginning on 31
December 2000, on a defined portfolio of classified exposures. This agreement has been taken into
account when determining the value of the Bank's assets and the level of required provisions for loan
losses reported as of 31 December 2000 and 31 December 2001, Further details of this guarantee
arrangement and its impact on provisioning for loan losses can be found in Note 19 to these financiai
statements.

Restructuring of the Bank

The Management Board of the Bank continued to implement its restructuring program initiated in
2000. During the year ended 31 December 2001, the principal steps within this program have been as
follows:

- The centralisation and redistribution of certain support activities to a subsidiary of the Bank with the
objective of localising the provision of internal services within the Bank’s financial group and reducing
operating costs (approximately 450 staff were relocated when this measure came into effect on 1 July
2001),

Komercni banka, a.s. ) Page 9
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 Decamber 2001

- The centralisation and redistribution of user support services and other activities relating to
information technologies to a subsidiary with the objective of localising these services within the
Bank's financial group and reducing operating costs (approximately 250 staff were relocated when. this
measure came Into effect on 1 September 2001),

- The centralisation of selected back-office activities and rationalisation of back-office processes within
the Bank, with a headcount reduction of up to 30 percent (including the regionalisation of accounting
units into 9 locations and the headcount reduction is approximately 30 percent, with effect from 1 July
2001 and the partial centralisation of the loan portfolio management function into 9 locations, with
effect from 1 October 2001).

These and other measures have led to a reduction in the Bank's headcount by 1,404, or 13 percent, to
9,299 during the year ended 31 December 2001 compared to 10,703 as of 31 December 2000.

Privatisation of the Bank

On 2B June 2001, the Government of the Czech Republic approved the French bank Societe
Generale in the tender to acquire the State’s 60 percent shareholding in the Bank. Societe Generale
acguired 60 percent of the issued share capital of the Bank for a consideration of approximately CZK
40 billien (that is EUR 1,186 million).

On 12 July 2001, Societe Generale entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with the National
Property Fund to acquire the State's 60 percent shareholding in the Bank,

Sociste Generale obtained control of the Bank following the approval of the Czech National Bank and
the Securities Commission and -the cessation of the proceedings of the Economic Competition
Protection Office regarding public support in connection with the provision of the guarantee by
Konsolidacni banka for a selected portfolio of low quality assets up to the amount of CZK 20 billion.

The Supervisory Board of the Bank accepted the resignation of the seven members of the Bank's
Management Board and elected 3 new Management Board on 5 October 2001 comprising five
members: Mr Alexis Juan, Mr Patrice Cheroutre, Mr Matus Pull, Mr Peter Palecka and Mr Tomas
Spurny.

At the Extraordinary Meeting heid on 8 October 2001, the shareholders of the Bank approved new
Articles of Incorporation and elected a new Supervisory Board.

The changes invoived amendments to the governance model of the Bank and the relationship
between the Management and Supervisory Boards enhancing the autherity of the Management Board
Bnd the Executive Committee (the newly established management body for the day-to-day
management of the Bank's operations).

Komercni banka, a.s. Page 10
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

On 5 October 2001, the Management Board appointed the foliowing officers of the Bank to the
Executive Committee:

Name Position Area of responsibility
Alexis Juan Chairman of the Management Board Strategy, sales, marketing,
and CEO information technology, operations,
invastment banking
Peter Palecka Vice-chairman of the Management Secretariat, legal services, public
Board and 1% Deputy CEO relations, compliance, organisational
structure
Patrice Cheroutre Member of the Management Board Risk management
and Deputy CEC
Matus Puli Member of the Management Board Corporate banking
and Deputy CEO
Tomas Spurny Member of the Management Board Finance and corporate planning
and Deputy CEO
Phillippe Delacarte Deputy CEC Small and medium-sized companies
Michei Fenot Deputy CEO Distribution network
Jiri Humi Deputy CEO Information technologies and
operations
Radomir Lasak Deputy CEQ Distribution network
Andre Leger Deputy CEO Marketing and retail banking
Marek Stefanowicz Deputy CEOQ Investment banking
Karel Vasak Deputy CEO Human resources
Jan Kubalek Executive Vice-president Altemative distribution channels
Pascal Dupont Executive Vice-president Risk management
Michal Herman Executive Vice-president Finance

Societe Generale made five appointments to the new nine-member Supervisory Board (Didier Alix,
Severin Cabannes, Jean-Louis Mattei, Christian Poirier and Petr Laube). The remaining four seats are
taken by a representative of the National Property Fund (Jan Juchelka)} and three representatives
elected by the employees of the Bank (Pavel Krejci, Jan Kucera and Miroslava Smidova).

In accordance with relevant legislation, the abligation to acquire the shares of minority shareholders
does not apply when a controlling stake is acquired as part of the privalisation of the State's
shareholdings. Therefore Societe Generale has not made an offer to repurchase the shares held by
the Bank's minority shareholders.

Komercni banka, a.s. Page 11
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted In the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

(a) Basis of accounting

The unconsolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with and comply with
International Accounting Standards (‘lAS') effective for the year ended 31 December 2001. The
unconsolidated financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting whereby the
effects of transactions and other events are recognised when they occur and they are reported In the
financial statements of the periods o which they relate, and on the going concern assumption. The
financial statements include a balance sheet, a profit and loss statement, a statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity, a cash flow statement and notes fo the financial statements, in certain instances,
the reported amounts relating to the previous accounting period have been reclasified for comparison
purposes.

The unconsolidated financial statements are prepared under the historicai cost convention, as
madified by the revaluation of available-for-sale investment securities, financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading and all derivative contracts.

in 2001, the Bank adopted IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The financial
effects of adopting IAS 39 are reported in the unconsolidated statement of changes in sharehoiders’
equity. Further information is disciosed in accounting policies for Derivative financial instruments and
hedging, Trading securities, Investment securities and Originated leans and provisions for foan
impairment and in the related notes. Prior to the adoption of IAS 39, all debt and equity securitiss,
except for trading securities, were measured at arnortised cost or cost respectively, providing for
perrnanent value impairments. |IAS 38 has been applied prospectively in accordance with the
requirements of the standard.

The Bank maintains its books of accounts and prepares statements for regulatory purposes in
accordance with Czech accounting principles. The accompanying financial statements are based on
the accounting records of the Bank, together with appropriate adjustments and reclassifications
necessary for fair presentation in accordance with IAS. A reconciliation of reserves and profit for the
year reported under Czech accounting principles to reserves and profit for the year reported under IAS
is shown in Note 37 to these financial statements.

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with IAS requires management to make
estirmates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and their reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. These estimates are based on the information
available as of the date of the financial statements and actual resuits couid differ from those estimates.

The reporting currency used in the unconsolidated financial statements is the Czech Crown ('CZK')
with accuracy to CZK million.

Komercni banka, a.s. Page 12
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

(b) Investments In subsidiaries and associates

The Bank's investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings are recognised at cost less any
provisions. investments, in which the Bank, directly or indirectly, has an equity interest less than 20
percent, are reported as ‘Securities available for sale.’

Subsidiary undertakings are those companies in which the Bank, directly or indirectly, has an interest
of more than one half of the share capital or otherwise has power to exercise control over the
operations of the entity. Assoclated undertakings are those companies in which the Bank, directly or
indirectly, halds 20 - 50 percent of the entity's issued share capital.

Dividends are recorded as detlared and included as a receivable in the balance sheet line
‘Prepayments, accrued income and other assets’' and in ‘Other Income’ in the profit and loss
statement. Upon receipt of the dividend, the receivable is offset against the collected cash.

Provisions against fixed asset investments are established as equal to the excess of cost over the
entity’s equity balance.

Gains and losses arising from the re-transiation of fixed asset investments denominated in foreign
currencies are reported in equity and are recognised through the profit and loss staternent only after
the relevant investments are sold.

{¢) Foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into CZK and reported in the
financial staternents at the exchange rate declared by the Czech National Bank ("CNB") prevailing as
of the balance sheet date. Income and expenses denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in
Czech Crowns in the underlying accounting system of the Bank and are therefore reported in the
financial statements at the official exchange rate prevailing as of the date of the transaction. Gains and
losses arising from movements in exchange rates after the date of the transaction sre recognised in
‘Net profit{loss) on financial operations.' Net gains on the revaluation of fixed asset investments are
recorded as a component of equity in ‘Revaluation reserve.'

(d) Originated loans and provisions for loan impairment

Loans originated by the Bank by providing money directly to a borrower are categorised as loans
originated by the Bank and are carried at ameriised cost. All loans and advances are recognised when
cash is advanced to borrowers.

Loans and advances to customears and financial institutions are stated net of provisions for loan
losses. A credit risk provision for loan impairment is established if there is objective evidence that the
Bank will not be able to collact all amounts due. The amount of the provision is the difference between
the carrying amount and the recoverable amount, being the present value of expected cash flows,
including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted based on the interest rate
at inception. Specific provisions are assessed with reference to the credit standing and performance of
the borrower and take into account the value of any collateral or third party gusrantees.

Komercni banka, a.s. Page 13
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

The Bank charges penally interest to borrowers when a portion of the loan falls overdus. Pursuant to
the Bank's internal policies, penalty interest is not covered by the collateral set aside against the
lean of the borrower. Penalty interest is accounted for on a cash basis in ‘Interest income.’

A general provision for loan impairment is established to cover losses that are judged by the
management af the Bank to be present in the loan porifolio as of the balance shee!l date, but which
have not been allocated to specific or individual exposures.

The Bank writes off loss ioans wheh clients are unable to fulfil their obligetions to the Bank in respect
of these loans. The lean Is written off against the related provision for loan impairment. Subsequent
recoverigs are credited to the profit and loss statement in ‘Provision for loan fosses’ if previously
written off.

(e) Securities

Securities held by the Bank are calegorised into portfolios in accordance with the Bank's intent on the
acquisition of the securities and pursuant to the Bank's security investment strategy. On the adoption
of IAS 39, the Bank developed security investment strategies and, reflecting the intent of the
acquisition, allocated securities to 'Securities held for trading’ and Investment securities to the
‘Available for sale’ portfolio and the ‘Held to maturity’ portfolio. The principal difference among the
portfolios relates to the measurement approach of securities and the recognition of their fair values in
the financial statements. The Bank reclassified the balances of investment securities included in the
financial statements as of 31 December 2000 so as to obtain comparative information for both periods.

All securities held by the Bank are recognised using settlement date accounting and initially measured
at their cost including transaction costs.

Securities held for trading

Securities held for trading are financial assets (equily and debt securities, treasury bills, participation
certificates) acquired by the Bank for the purpose of generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in
prices. Subseguent to the initial recognition these securities are accounted for and stated at fair value
which approximates the price quoted (mid price, that is, the average between bid and offer) on
recognised stock exchanges. The Bank monitors changes in fair values of securities on a daily basis
and Includes unrealised gains and losses in 'Net profit/(loss) on financial operations.’ Interest earned
on trading securities is accrued on a daily basis and reported as 'Interest Income' in the profit and loss
staterment. Dividends on trading securities are recorded when declared and inciuded as a receivabie in
the baiance sheet line ‘Prepayments, accrued income and other assets’ and in ‘Net profit/{loss) on
financial operations’in the profit and loss statement.

All purchases and sales of securities held for trading that require delivery within the time frame
established by regulation or market convention {'regular way' purchases and sales) are recognised as
spot transactions. Transactions that do not meet the ‘regular way’ settlement criterion are treeted as
financial derivatives.

Komercni banka, a.s. Page 14
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

investments held to maturity

Investments held to maturity are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Bank has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. This portfolio comprises
treasury bills and debt securities. Held to maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the
effective yield method, less any provisicn for impairment.

The Bank assesses on a regular basis whether there is any objective evidence that an investment held
to maturity may be impaired. A financial asset Is impaired if its carrying amount is greater than its
gstimeated recoverable amount which is equal to the present value of the expected future cash flows
discounted at the financial instrument's original effective interest rate. The amount of the impairment
loss for assets carried at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the financial
instrument's original effective interest rate. When an impairment of assets is identified, the Bank
recognises provisions through the profit and ioss staternent line 'Provision for losses on securfties’.

Available for sale securlties

Available for sale securities are those financial assets that are not classified as financial assets held
for trading or held-to-maturity investments. This portfolio comprises equity securities and debt
securities, including asset backed securities and participation certificates. Subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are re-measured at fair value based on quoted prices or
amounts derived from cash flow models. In circumstances where the quoted market prices are not
readily available, the fair value of debt securities is estimated using the present value of future cash
flows and the fair value of unquoted equity instruments is estimated using applicable price/earnings or
price/cashflow ratios refined to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer. Unrealised gains and
losses arising from c¢hanges on the fair value of securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised as they arise in the profit and loss statement line ‘Net profit/(foss) on financial operations.’

Where the impairment of securities availabie for sale essociated with credit risk is other than
temporary, the carrying amount of the sscurity is immediately written down to its recoverable value.
This writedown is inciuded in the profit and loss statement line ‘Provisions for losses on securities.’
Interest earned whilst holding available-for-sale securities is accrued on a daily basis and reported as
‘Interest income' in the profit and loss statement. Dividends on securities available for sale are
recorded as declared and included as a receivable in the balance sheet line 'Prepayments, accrued
income and other assets’ and in ‘Net profit/(loss) on financial operations’ in the profit and loss
statement, Upon payment of the dividend, the receivable is offset against the collected cash.

{f) Tangible and intangible fixed assets

Tangible and intangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
together with accumuiated impairment josses. Fixed assets are depreclated through the accumulated
depreciation charge. Depreciation is calculated on a streight-line basis to write off the cost of each
assel to their residual values over their estimated useful economic life. Land and assets in the course
of consfruction are not depreciated.

Komercni banka, a.s. : Page 15
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

The estimated useful economic lives in years are set out below:

Machinery and equipment, computers, vehicles 4
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 8
Energy machinery and equipment 12
Buildings and structures 30

The Bank periodically tests its assets for impairment. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down to its recoverable amount. Where assets are
identified as being surplus to the Bank's requirements management have assessed the recoverable
vaiue by reference to a net selling price based on third party valuation reports adjusted downwards for
an estimate of associated sale costs.

Repairs and renewals are charged directly to the profit and loss statement when the expenditure is
incurred.

(g) Leases

Assets held under finance leases, which confer rights and abligations similar to those attached to
owned assets, are capitalised at their fair value and depreciated over the useful lives of assels. The
capital element of each future lease obligation is recorded as a liability, while the interest elements are
charged to the profit and loss account over the period of the leases to produce a constant rafe of
charge on the balance of capital payments outstanding.

Payments made under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss statement on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. When an operating iease is terminated before the lease
period has explred, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as
an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

At present the Bank does not act as a lessor for finance or operating leases.

(h) Provisions for charges and for guarantees and ather off balance sheet credit related
commitments

The Bank recognises a provision when:

- It has a present obligation (legal or canstructive) as a result of a past event;

- It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settls the
obligation; and ’

- A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Komercni banka, a.s. Page 16
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

In addition, the Bank has established a restructuring provision. The Bank recognises a provision for
restructuring costs when it has formulated restructuring plan, and started to implement the
restructuring plan or announced its main features. Information on restructuring costs identified by the
Bank is given in Note 11.

In the normal course of business, the Bank enters into credit related commitments which are recorded
in off balance sheet accounts and primarily include guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn loan
commitments, Specific provisions are made for estimated losses on these cornmitments on the same
basis as set out in hote 3 (d). The Bank makes a general provision for risks that are judged by the
management of the Bank to be present at the balance sheet date, but which have not been allocated
to specific or individual exposures.

(i) Certiflcated debts

Certificated debts issued by the Bank are stated at amortised costs using the effective interest rate
methad. Interest expense arising on the issue of certificated debts is included in the profit and loss
staternent line ‘Interest expense.’ »

In the event of the repurchase of its own certificated debts the Bank de-recognises these debis so as
to reflect the economic substance of the transaction as a repayment of the Bank's commitment and
decrease its llabilities in the baiance sheet line ‘Certificated debt'. Gains and losses arising as a resuit
of the repurchase of the Bank's own certificated debts are included in ‘Net profit/(loss) on financial
operations’ or in ‘Net interest income.’ The Bank reports the repurchased certificated debts as assets
only if there exists a contractual commitment to resell the securities in the future,

(i) Recognition of income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the profit and loss statement for all interest bearing
instruments on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate. Interest income includes coupons
earned on fixed income investments and trading securities and accrued discount and premium on
treasury bills and other discounted instruments. Penalty interest is accounted for en a cash basis.
Fees and commissions are recognised as income in the profit and loss statement when due,

(k) Taxation and deferred taxation

Taxation is calculated in accordance with the provisions of the relevant legislation of the Czech
Republic and other jurisdictions in which the Bank operates, based on the profit or loss recognised in
the income statement prepared pursuant to Czech accounting standards and accounting standards of
other jurisdictions.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, for temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting
purposes. Currently enacted tax rates are used to determine deferred income tax. The principal
temporary differences arise from depreciation on property, plant and equipment, specific and general
provisions for loens, securities revaluation and tax losses carried forward. Deferred tax assets in
respect of tax losses carried forward and other temporary differences are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the tax assets can be utilised.

Komereni banka, a.s. Page 17
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale investments on the initial
application of [AS 39 and cash flow hedges, which are charged or credited directly to equity, is aiso
credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently recognised in the profit and loss statement
together with the deferred gain or loss.

{\ Saie and repurchase agreements

Securities sold under sale and repurchase agreements (‘repos’) are recorded as assets in the balance
sheet lines 'Securities held for trading' and 'Securities available for sale' and the counterparty liability
is included in 'Amounts owed fo banks' or ‘Amounts owed fo custorners' as appropriate. Securities
purchased under agreements to purchase and reseil (Teverse repos’) are recorded as assets in the
balance sheet line 'Due from banks' or 'Loans and advances to customers' as appropriate, with the
corresponding decrease in cash being included in 'Cash and balances with the ceniral bank.! The
difference between the sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued evenly over the
life of the repo agreement using the effective interest rate,

(m) Derivative financlal instruments and hedging

in the normal course of business, the Bank is a party to contracts for derivative financial instruments
which represent a very low initial investment compared to the notional value of the contract. The
derivative financial instruments used include interest rate forward or swap agreements and currency
swaps. These financial instruments are used by the Bank to hedge interest rate risk and currency
exposures associated with its lransactions in the financial markets. The Bank also acts as an
intermediary provider of these instruments ta certain clients.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost (including
transaction costs) and subsequently are remeasured at their fair value, Fair values are obtained from
quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and options pricing models as appropriate. All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is
negative.

Certaln derivatives are embedded in other financial instruments, such as the conversion option in a
convertible bond, and are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not
closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value with
unrealised gains and losses reported in Income. -

Changes in the fair value of derivatives held for trading are included in the line 'Net profit/(loss) on
financial operations’.

On the date a derivative contract is entered into, the Bank designates certain derivatives as either (i) a
hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability (fair value hedge) or (ii) a hedge of a future
cashflow attributable to a recognised asset or liability, a forecasted fransaction ar a firm commitment
(cash flow hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way provided certain
criteria are meit.

Kornereni banka, a.s. Page 18
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2001 ’

The Bank's criteria for & derivative instrument to be accounted for as a hedge include:

(a) formal documentation of the hedging instrument, hedged item, hedging objective, strategy and
relationship is prepared before hedge accounting is applied;

(b) the hedge is documented showing that it is expected to be highly effective in offsetting the risk
in the hedged item throughout the reporting period; and

(c) the hedge is effactive on an ongoing basis.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges and that
prove to bs highly effective in relatian to the hedged risk, are recorded in the profit and loss account
along with the corresponding change in fair value of the hedged asset or (iability that is attributable to
the specific hedged risk. The ineffective element of the hedge is charged directly to the profit and loss
line ‘Net profit/{loss) on financial operations.'

if the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, an adjustment to the carrying value of
& hedged interest-bearing financial instrument is amortised to net profit and loss over the period to
maturity. The adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged equity security remains in retained
earnings until the disposai of the equity security.

Changes in fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges and that
prove to be highly effective in relation to hedged risk, are recognised in the reserve in shareholders’
equity. Amounts deferred in equity are transferred to the profit and loss account and classified as
revenue or expense in the periods during which the hedged assets and liabilities affect the profit and
loss statement. The ineffective element of the hedge is charged directly to the profit and loss line ‘Net
profit/(loss) on financial operations.

Certain derivative transactions, while providing effective economic hedges under the Bank's risk
management positions, do not qualify for hedge accounting under the specific rules of IAS 39 and are
therefore treated as derivatives held for trading with fair value gains and losses reported in income in
line ‘Net profil/(loss) on financial operations’.

The fair value of derivative instruments held for trading and hedging purposes are disclosed in Note
35, The effects of adoption of IAS 39 on 1 January 2001 and the movements on the hedging reserve
on shareholders’ equity are shown in Note 38,

{n) Regulatory requirements

The Bank is subject to the regulatory requirements of the respective national central banks. These
regulations include limits and other restrictions pertaining to minimum capital adequacy requirements,
classification of loans and off balance sheet commitments and pravisioning to cover credit risk,
figuidity, interest rate and foreign currency position.

(o) Fiduciary activities

Assets and income arising thereon togsther with related undertakings to return such assets to
customers are excluded from these financial statements where the Bank acts in a fiduciary capecity
such as nominee, trustee or agent.

(p) Share capital and treasury stock

Komercni banka, a.s. Page 19
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year anded 31 December 2001

Where the Bank purchases its own share capital or obtains rights to purchase its share capital, the
consideration paid including any altributable transaction costs net of income taxes is shown as a
deduction from total shareholders’ equity. Gains and losses on sales of own shares are charged or
credited to the treasury share account in equity.

Komereni banka, a.s. Page 20
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

The Bank is required to report regularly to Konsolidacni banka (now the Czech Consolidation Agency) on the
administration of the assets and the expected losses on the guaranteed exposures.

The state guarantee became effective at the beginning of October 2001 following the decision of the
Economic Compelition Protection Office, dated 20 September 2001, to cease its proceedings in connection
with the guarantee as set out in the Guarantee Agreement dated 29 December 2000 regarding the provision
of public support, pursuant to the Public Support Act No. 59/2000 Coll.

Reserves and provisions to cover the Bank’s participatien in the expacted final losses on the
guaranteed portfolio

The Bank establishes provisions, on an accruals basis, to cover its participation in the aggregate losses that
it estimates will be incurred on the guaranteed portfolio. As of 31 December 2001, the Bank carried within its
general reserve an amount of CZK 4,449,677 thousand which represents the Bank's present assessment of
its participation in the estimated aggregate losses on the guaranteed portfolic {that is, total losses in the
amount of approximately CZK 24,500 million). Management of the Bank monitors closely the expected
development of the guaranteed portfolio through a series of scenario analyses and assessments of a large
number of individual exposures representing a substantial proportion of the nominal value outstanding. The
scenarios and assessments employed reflect the uncertainties arising from the absence of benchmark
recovery rates when using systematic recovery efforts in the Czech Republic, the weaknesses in the legal
framework regarding the enforcement of creditor rights and the intention -of management to realise
substantially all of the portfolio over a three year time horizon, Based on the facts presently available and
given that the Bank has only twelve months experience of realisation of the guaranteed portfolio,
management consider it appropriate and prudent to maintain its estimate of the aggregate loss at a level
similar to that as of 31 December 2000. Management will continue fo monitor developrnents in the
guaranteed portfolio and will revisit its estimates again during 2002.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

Exchange of non-performing assets transferred to Konpo as part of the restructuring of assets in
March 2000

On 29 January 2001, the Bank entered into an agreement with Konpo, a subsidiary of Ceska konsolidac¢ni
agentura, under which it agreed to take back certain assets transferred to it under an original agreement
dated 25 March 2000, Under this latter agreement the Bank had transferred non-performing assets with a
nominal value of CZK 80,000 million. The Bank replaced these assets which did not comply with the
parameters of the original agreement with other assets of the quality that did so. The final exchange of
assets that had a gross nominal value of CZK 2,958 million took place on 31 May 2001. The transfers were
effected at a price representing 60 percent of the gross nominal value of the assets, that is, the same price
that was used in transferring the assets in March 2000. The financial impact of this asset transfer on the
Bank's profit and foss statement was negative and amounted to CZK 435 milfion,

Syndicated loans granted

The Bank acts as an agent, arranger, co-arranger or participant in syndicated loan arrangements and in
circumstances where it acts as an agent it also assumes the role of an arranger or co-arranger. The table
below reflects only those loan facilities where the Bank acts as an agent and the Bank's participation was
lower than 100 percent as of 31 December 2001 (the table excludes balances where a portion of the loan is
sold on a secondary market).

Non-banking syndicated loans

Participation Interest rate Portion of risk

CZK '000 (%) (%)

Komercni banka, a. s. 866 159 6.58 50.00
Other creditors 866159 50.00
Total to client 1~ 1732 318 100.00
Komercni banka, a. s. 1527 940 6.99 55.56
Other creditors 1222 132 44 .44
Total to client 2* 2750072 _ 100.00
Komercni banka, a. s. 112 888 7.76 28.19
Other creditors 287 566 71.81
Total to client 3~ ) 400 454 100.00
Komercni banka, a. s. 1 629 528 3.28 60.00
Other creditors 1019 686 40,00
Total to client 4* 2 549 214 100.00

* The Bank does not indicate names of its clients as a result of banking secrecy restrictions.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

18 Trading securities

Trading securities comprise:

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2001 2001 2000 2000

Fair value Carrying Fair value Carrying

value value

CZK '000 CZK 000 CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000

Trading shares and participation 168 032 . 168 294 173 023 180 171
certificates

Less provislons 0 (264) 0 (7 198)

Net book value of shares 168 032 168 030 173 023 172 973

Fixed income debt securities 2 464 987 2 455 998 1770 837 1776 564

Varjable yield debt securities 553 013 553 078 1279 158 1276 663

Debt securities 3 018 000 3 D09 076 3 049 695 3 053 227

Laess provisions 0 (539) ' 0 (3 026)

Net book value of debt securities 3 018 000 3 008 537 3 049 €95 3 049 693

of which: own debt securities 243 189 241 974 867 873 6880 309

of which: debt security coupons 62 074 62 074 0 0

Total tradir&sacurities . 3186 032 3176 567 3222718 3 222 666

As of 31 December 2001, all securities held for trading include securities that are publicly listed on stock
exchanges.

Trading shares and participation certificates at cost comprise:

31 December 2001 31 December 2000
CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000

Trading shares and participation certificates
- Czech crowns 168 294 180 171
- Other currencies 0 0
Trading shares and participation certificates 168 294 180 171

Shares held for trading at cost, allocated by issuer, comprise:

31 December 2001 31 December 2000
CzZK '000 CZK '000
Trading shares and participation certificates
- Financial institutions in the Czech Republic 0 4639
- Non-banking entities in the Czech Republic 168 294 175 532
Total trading shares and participation certificates 168 294 180 171
Komercni banka, &. s. Page 38
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Notes o the Unconsclidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

Trading debt securities at cost comprise:

31 December 2001

31 December 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK '000
Variable yield debt securities
- Czech crowns 553 078 1 041 067
- Other currencies 0 235 596
Total variable yield debt securities 5§53 078 1276 663
Fixed income debt securities
- Czech crowns 2 455 998 1401 566
- Qther currencies 0 374 998
Total fixed income debt securities 2 455 998 1776 564
3 009 076 3053 227

Total trading debt securitias

Trading debt securities at cost, allocated by issuer, comprise:

31 December 2001

31 December 2000

CZK '000 CZK '000
Trading debt securitles issued by
- State institutions in the Czech Republic 1411 601 460 927
- Financial institutions in the Czech Republic 522 635 761 646
- Foreign financial institutions 124 852 29 219
- Other entities in the Czech Republic 937 148 1 284 988
- Other foreign entities 12 840 516 447
Total trading debt securities 3 009 076 3 053 227
Page 39
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16  Fixed asset investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings

Subsidiary undertakings

ALL IN, a. 5., v likvidaci
investicni kapitalova
spolecnost KB, a. s.
Penzijni fond Komercni

banky, a. s.
Komercni banka
Bratislava, a. s.

Komereni pojistovna, a.s.

Factoring KB, a. s.

IR LY T eV -

Komercni Finance, B, V,
ASIS, a.s,

Reflexim, a. s.
A-TRADE, s. r,0.
MUZO, a. s.

ALL IN, a. s., v likvidacel
Investicni kapitalova
spolecnost KB, a. s.
Penzijni fond Komercni
banky, a. s.

Komercni banka
Bratislava, a. s.
Komercni pojistovna, a.s.

Factoring KB, a. s.

Kemarcni Finance, B, V.

ASIS, a.s.
Reflexim, a. s.

'A-TRADE, s. r.e.

Kornercni banka, a. s.

BT WT VYUY

Bank's Bank's Number Number
direct direct of shares of shares
holding holding heldby held by
(%) (%) the Bank the Bank
2001 2000 2001 2000
100 100 208 208
100 100 500 500
100 100 2 000 2000
100 100 5000 5 000
100 100 9 000 9 000
100 100 8 400 8 400
100 100 40 40
100 10
100 10
75 75 210000 210000
49,9 48.9 50900 50300
Registered office Profit/ (loss) Equity Nominal
address {2000 (2000) value of
shares
(CZK '000)
in 2001
Praha 1, (15391) 84054 213
Vodickova 30
Dlouha 34, 110 85898 244 880 100
15 Praha1
Praha 1, Na 292 242 1 296 969 100
Prikope 33
Medena 6, 811 16 663 415604 SKK 100
02 Bratisiava thousand
Jindrisska 17, (6 598) 279 153 50
111 21 Praha 1
Na Porici 36, 110 7758 99 200 10
02, Praha 1
Drentestraat 24, 18 795 20432 NLG 1
1083 HK thousand
Amsterdam,
Netherlands
Nam. OSN 1/844, 100
190 02 Praha 8
Bolzanova 3, 110 100
00 Praha 1
Truhlarska 18, (170 021) 32715 1

110 00 Praha 1

Lad

M

e

1

- i

Page

40




L0 AL, LUVl 1oy ol

Al VLIt L Viedt

LR M SR

L T T VYU

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

MUZO, a. s.

Associated undertakings

V Olsinach

80/626, 150 05
Praha 10

164 310

Bank's Bank's Number

direct direct

361 395

Number

of shares of shares

holding holding heldby held by
(%) (%) the Bank the Bank
2001 2000 2001 2000
CAC LEASING, a. s. 50 50 1130 1430
Vseobecna stavebni 40 40 2 000 2000
sporitalna KB, a. s.
CAC LEASING Slovakia, 10 10 50 50
d. S.
Registered office Profit/ (loss) Equity Nominal
address (2000 (2000) value of
shares
(CZK '000)
in 2001
CAC LEASING, a. s. Janackavo 99968 567 152 100
nabrezi 55/140,
150 05 Praha 5
Vseobecna stavebnl Belehradska 128, 225 498 1 322 293 100
sporiteina KB, a. 5. 120 21 Praha 2
CAC LEASING Siovakia, Hurbanovo nam. 53482 104 071 SKK 100
a.s. 181108
Bratislava

Komercni banka, a. s.
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Notes to the Unconsclidated Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 December 2001

Investment Provision Net book
’ value
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
31 31 k|
December Decemb Decembe
2001 er 2001 r 2001
Subsidiary undertakings
ALL IN, a. 8., V likvidaci 40017 (4D 017) 0
Investicni kapitalova spolecnost KB, a. s. 75 000 0 75 000
Penzijni fond Komercni banky, a. s. 230 000 0 230 000
Komercni banka Bratislava, a. s. 411 433 0 411 433
Komercni pojistovna, a.s. 520000 (520 000) 0
Factoring KB, a. s. 90 000 0 0000
Komercni Finance, B. V. 580 0 580
ASIS, a.s. 1000 0 1000
Reﬂexim. a. s, 1000 o 1 000
A-TRADE, s. r.0. 210000 (191883) 18117
MUZO, a. 5. 60 998 0 60993
Total subsidiary undertakings 1640028 (751 900) 288 128
Associated undertakings
CAC LEASING, a. s. 110 900 0 110 200
MUZQ, a. s. 0 ) 0
Vseobecna stavebni
spofiteina KB, a. s. 220 000 0 220000
CAC LEASING Slovakia, a. 5. 3740 0 3740
Bankovnl instityt, a.s. 0 0 0
Ceskomoravska zarycni & rozvojova banka, o} o] 0
a.s.
Burza cennych papiru Praha, a.s. 0 0 0
Total associated undertakings 334 640 ) 334 840
Total fixed asset investments 1974 668 (751 900) 1222768
Investment Provision Net book
value
CZK'000 CZK'000 CZK'000
31 31 31
December Decembe Decembe
2000 r 2000 r 2000
Subslidiary undertakings
ALL IN, a. s., v likvidaci 700 000 (15 750) 84 250
Investicnl kapitalova spolecnost KB, a. s. 75 000 0 75 000
Penzijni fond Komereni banky, 2. s. 230 000 0 230 000
Komercni banka Bratisiava, a. s. 438366 (22711) 415658

Komercni banka, a. s.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

Komercni pojistovna, a.s. 520000 (308 588) 213 411
Factoring KB, a, s, 80 000 0 90 000
Komereni Finance, B. V. 637 0 637
ASIS, a.s. o 0 0
Reflexim, a. s. 0 0 0
A-TRADE, s. r.o. 210000 (183 764) 26 236
MUZO, a. s. 0 0 o
Totai subsldiary undertakings 1664003 (528 814) 1 135189
Assoclated undertakings '

CAC LEASING, a. s. 110 9S00 0 110 900
MUZO, a. 5. 80 998 0 60998
Vseobecna stavebni

sporitelna KB, a. s. 220 000 0 220 000
CAC LEASING Slovakia, a. 8. 3985 1] 3 985
Bankovni institut, a.s. 8 400 (5 022) 3378
Ceskomoravska zarucni a rozvojova banka, 60 000 0 60 000
a.s,

Burza cennych papiru Praha, a.s, 30 469 0 30 469
Total assoclated undertakings 494 752 (5022) 489730
Total fixed asset investments 2158755 (533 836) 1624919

In the first half of 2001, the Bank acquired a 100 percent equity interest in two cofnpanies and transformed
these investments into wholly awned and controlled subsidiaries:

* Reflexim, a. s. — with effect from 1 July 2001 the Bank transferred approximately 450 staff and the
related support operations to this newly established subsidiary; and

« ASIS, a. 5. - with effect from 1 September 2001 the Bank transferred approximately 250 staff and the
related information technology user support and other activities to this newly established subsidiary.

Komercni pojistovna, a. s. incurred sighificant losses in the year ended 31 December 2001 principally reiated
to the continuing substantial acquisition costs associated with its life insurance portfolio, unprofitability of its
third party motor liability insurance and losses incurred in the settlement of liabilities arising from its industrial
commercial insurance portfolio. These losses primarily follow the review of the adequacy of the technicai
reserves for its lines of business and a reassessment of the accounting treatment of the Komercni
pajistovna’s share in the auto insurance deficit administered by the Czech Bureau of Insurance. In December
2001, the Bank approved the plan to increase the company’s share capital by 1,050 shares of ordinary stock
in the aggregate amount of CZK 108 million (nominal value of one share being CZK 100 thousand) at an
issue rate of CZK 275 thousand per share. Following the resclution of its sole shareholder, Kornercni
pojistovna filed a proposal to update the corporate details held at the Register of Companies maintained by
the Municipal Court in Prague. In January 2002, the Bank made a cash deposit of CZK 288.75 million in
Komereni pojistovna. Of this balance, CZK 105 million represents the nominal value of the issued shares
(share capital increase of Komercni pojistovna) and CZK 183.75 million is the share premium amount. The
aggregate capital increase amounts to CZK 288.75 millien. The management of the Bank is currently
reviewing options available to it in further recapitalising and restructuring this business. The Bank has
indicated that it will continue to provide financial support to Komercni pojistovna, a.s. such that it is able to
meet legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the entity.
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Notas to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

Following the previous decision of the Bank to substantially reduce the activities of the ALL IN Group, the
company ALL IN, a. s., v likvidaci was put into liquidation on 1 April 2001. The carrying value of the Bank's
investment In this company reflects the estimated recoveries from the liquidation process. Having
discontinued its real estate development activities, A-TRADE, s. r. o, significantly reduced its operations and
presently only administers and maintains a residual portfolio of assets which have not been transferred to the
Bank. Management of the Bank has been negotiating the sale of this entity.

The Bank has presented its interest in MUZO as at 31 December 2001 as an interest in subsidiary. In prior
accounting periods MUZO was accounted for as an associate. In 2001 the management consider that the
Bank, directly or indirectly, has the power to exercise control over the financial and operating policies of
MUZO. '

Managemeni of the Bank has written down the carrying value of investments in the Bank's group companies
to reflect its present estimate of the recoverable value of these investments.

During 2001, the Bank sold its equity interest in Bankovni institut, a. s. The equily holdings In

Ceskomoravska zaruchi a rozvojova banka, a. s., and Burza ¢ennych papiru Praha, a. s. {the Prague Stock
Exchange) were transferred to the available-for-sale securities portfolio.
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17  Other financial investments

Other financial investments comprise:
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31 December 31 December

31 December
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31 December

2001 2001 2000 2000
Fair value Carrying Fair value Carrying value

value
CZK ‘000 CZK 000 CZK '000 CZK '000
Shares and participation certificates 4 158 304 4 239 8686 4714 563 5153 312
Less provisions 0 -81 562 0 (582 716)
Net book value of shares 4 158 304 4 158 304 4714 563 4 570 596
Fixed income debt securities 20 050 586 20 351 914 20 855 212 20949 710
Variable yield debt securities 11 389 207 12 608 903 13 162 995 13 162 895
Treasury bills 485 151 481 037 4 030 066 4 030 066
Debt securities 31 924 943 33 441 854 38 D48 273 38142771
Less provisions 0 -2 050 051 c {109 382)
Net book value of debt securities 31924 943 31 391803 38048 273 38 033 389
of which: own debt securities 836 674 836 674 1 551 693 1 551 693
Total other financial investments 36 083 248 35 550 107 42 762 836 42 603 985
Securities available for sale 34 274 056 33753 585 30 014 206 29 855 355
Investments held to maturity 4 809 192 1796 522 12 748 630 12 748 630

Other financial investments comprise securities available for sale and investments held to maturity. As of 1
January 2001, reflecting the requirements of the amended chart of accounts and accounting procedures for
banks, the Bank revised its security investment sirategy and allocated the securities held in the investment
portfolio into new portfolios. Securities carried in the available for sale category are provisioned to cover a
temporary or permanent impairment in circumstances where the market vaiue is lower than the net carrying
amount of the securities. The Bank provisions any impairment of investments held to maturity if the
impairment results from the deterioration of credit risk attached to the security’s issuer or underlying assets

and is other than temporary.

Komercni banka, a. s.
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Securities available for sale

Securities available for sale comprise:

31 December 31 December

31 December
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31 December

2001 2001. 2000 2000

Fair value Carrying Fair value Carrying

value value

CZK '000 CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000

Shares and participation certificates 4 158 304 4 239 866 4 714 563 5153 312
Less provisions o {81 562) 0 (582 716)
Net book value of shares 4 158 304 4 158 304 4714 563 4 570 596
Fixed income debt securities 18 241 394 18 555 392 17 476 870 17 571 368
Variable yield debt securities 11 389 207 12 608 903 7822773 7822773
Treasury bills 485 151 481 037 0 0
Debt securltles 30115 751 31 645 332 25 299 643 25 394 141
Less provisions 0 (2050051) 0 (109 382)
Net book value of debt securities 30115 751 29 595 281 25 293 643 25 28B4 759
of which: own debt securities 0 0 781 279 781 278
of which: debt security coupons 816 766 816 766 0 0
Total securities available for sale 34 274 056 33 753 585 30 014 206 29 855 355

As of 31 December 2001, the available-for-sale portfolio inciudes securities at cost of CZK 16,789,434
thousand (2000: CZK 16,249,372 thousand) that are publicly traded on stock exchanges and securities at
cost of CZK 19,095,764 thousand (2000: CZK 14,298,081 thousand) that are not publicly traded.

Shares available for sele at cost comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
CZ2K ‘000 CZK '000
Shares and participation certificates available for sale
issued by
- Czech crowns 4234 194 5 147 087
- Other currencies 5672 6 225
Total shares and participation certificates avaiiable for saie 4 239 B66 5153 312

Shares available for sale at cost, allocated by issuer, comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000
Shares and participation certificates availabie for saie
issued by
- Non-banking entities in the Czech Republic 4 234 194 5 147 087
- Foreign non-banking entities 5672 6 225
Total shares and participation certificates avallable for sale 4 239 866 5153 312
Komercni banka, a. s. Page

46




Wy aladblh, L VUL LI

= LA A R AL R L A T e A 2 TN A S A LS B T T

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001 :

Debt securities available for sale at cost comprise:

31 December

AN
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31 December

2001 2000
CZK '000 CZK '000
Variable yield debt securities
- Czech crowns 1088 276 6 122 101
- Other currencies 11 520 627 1700 672
Total variable yield debt securities 12 608 903 7822773
Fixed income debt securities
- Czech crowns 14 371 872 15 555813
- Other currencies 4 183 520 2 015 555
Total fixed income debt securities 18 555 392 17 571 368
Treasury bills 481 037 o
Total debt securities available for sale 31 645 332 25 394 141

Debt securities available for sale at cost, allocated by issuer, comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000
Debt securities avallable for sale issued by
- State institutions in the Czech Republic 5165778 4031 537
- Financial institutions in the Czech Republic 3989 464 6 160 406
- Foreign financial institutions 304 960 436 587
- Other entities in the Czech Republic 3732286 3763 577
- Other foreign entities 18 452 834 11 002 034
Total debt securities available for sale 37 645 332 25 394 141
Komercni banka, a. s. Page
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Year Ended 31 December 2001
investments held to maturity

Investments held to maturity comprise:

2001 2001 2000 2000

Fair value Carrying Fair value Carrying

vaiue value

CZK 000 CZK ‘000 CZK '000 CZK 000

Fixed income debt securities 1809 192 1796 522 3378342 3378 342
Variable yield debt securities o 0 5 340 222 5340222 -

Treasury bills o 0 4 030 066 4 030 065

Debt securities 1809 192 1796 522 12 748 630 12 748 630

Less provisions 0 0 0 0

Net book vaiue of debt securities 1 809 192 1796 522 12 748 630 12 748 630

of which: own debt securities 836 674 836 674 770 414 770 414

As of 31 December 2001, the held-to-maturity portfolio inciudes securities of CZK 1,796,522 thousand (2000:
CZK 989,083 thousand) that are publicly traded on stock exchanges and securities of CZK nil (2000: CZK

11,749,568 thousand) that are not publicly traded.

Debt securities held to maturity at cost comprise:

21 December 2001

31 December 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK '000
Variable yield debt securities
- Czech crowns 0 0
- Other currencies 0 5 340 222
Total variable yield debt securities s] 5 340 222
Fixed income debt sacurities
- Czech crowns 1035141 5020 128
- Other currencies 761 381 2 379 280
Total fixed income debt securitles 1796 522 7 A08 408
Total debt securities held to maturity 1796 522 12 748 630

Investments held to maturity at cost, split by issuer, comprise:

317 December 2001

31 December 2000

_ CZK ‘00s¢ CZK ‘000
Debt securities held to maturity issued by
- State institutions in the Czech Republic 0 4 030 065
- Financial institutions in the Czech Republic 1035 141 917 717
- Other entities in the Czech Republic 0 81 346
- Other foreign entities 761 381 7 718 502
Total debt securities held to maturity 1 796 522 12 748 6530
Komereni banka, a. s. Page
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Year Ended 31 December 2001

As of 31 December 2001, the proportion of fixed income debt securities and securities with maturity less than
one year to the aggregate balance of fixed income debt securities and securities represents 8.43 percent
(2000: 23 percent).

Equity securities

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank holds 56 percent of the issued participation certificates of Otevreny
podilovy fond Globalni (‘Globaini'). Globalni is managed by IKS KB, a. s., the Bank's asset management
subsidiary, and the Bank acts as a depositary institution. As of 31 December 2001, Globalni’'s portfolio
included 6.75 percent domestic equity securities, 9.23 percent international equities, 4.82 percent
participation certificates, 22.46 percent local debt securities, and 26.64 percent foreign debt securities. The
remaining portion of the portfolio consists of current receivables, accounts with banks and foreign accounts.
As of 31 December 2001, the Bank carries its interest in Globalni at a cost of CZK 4,068 million (2000: CZK
4,111 million).

In the last quarter of 2001, the Bank sold 9.99 percent of the issued share capital of Ceska pojistovna, a. s.,
the largest insurance company in the Czech Republic (of which 4.87 percent of the issued share capital was
publicly traded). The Bank realised a profit of CZK 588,174 thousand from this sale.

In the last quarter of 2001, the Bank sold £§9.42 percent of the issued share capital of Ceska zbrojovka, a. s.,
a Czech small arms manufacturer. The investor was selected pursuant to a standard tender initiated in June
2001 and was approved by the Bank’s Management and Supervisory Boards. A Share Purchase Agreement
was entered into in Navember 2001 and this transaction was effected in December 2001. The Bank realised
a profit of CZK 3,703 thousand from this sale.

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank holds 77.18 percent (2000: 77.18 percant) of the issued share capital of
Vodni stavby, a.s., a large Czech construction company. The Bank acquired the majority of these shares in
connection with the liquidation of the company and the recovery of a syndicated facility provided to Vodni
stavby, a.s. in prior years. The Bank has attributed no value to this shareholding as of 31 December 2001,
Pursuant to Section 183 b (4) (a) (2) of the Commercial Code, the Bank does not exercise and does not
intend to exercise voting rights, which are equivalent to a 57.22 percent shareholding (of the aggregate
77.18 percent shareholding of the Bank), attached to these shares nor will the Bank pass the voting rights to
other parties. The Bank's Management Board has discussed a further course of action in relation to the
holding of these shares. Negotiations that were conducted with regard to the sale of the shares and the
aggregate loan exposure had not been successful by the close of 2001.

Asset Backed Securities

In the last quarier of 2000 and the first half of 2001, the Bank acquired an unlisied portfolioc of USD
denominated collateralised bond obligations (‘CBO’) or asset backed securities (‘ABS') issued by a series of
special purpose corporations. The acquisition cost of the whole portfolio was USD 426 million. The portfolia
of asset backed securities has an average credit rating of A2 (Moody's) as of 31 December 2001 and a
substantial portion of the securities have ratings issued by other recognised international rating agencies.
The securities bear a fix or floating interest rate based on USD LIBOR.

Pursuant to the requirements of IAS 39 the Bank allocated these securities into the available for sale
portfolioc and the held to maturity portfolio as of 1 January 2001. In December 2001, management of the
Bank determined that gil asset backed securities are to be held in the available for sale category. This
transfer was implemented as of 31 December 2001. The decision on the allocation of the securities was
made by the Bank's new majority shareholder in connection with the Bank’s privatisation reflecting the fact
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that Societe Generale's global strategy is to carry such securities as available for sale. The transfer of the
asset backed securities to the available for sale category had no impact on the profit and loss statement. The
Bank, from mid-2001, has provisioned for the impairment of the asset backed securilies held in both
categories on a consistent basis.

The Bank established a provision for impairment of CZK 1,958,888 thousand as of 31 December 2001
against the asset backed securities, the carrying value of which, net of impairment, is CZK 13,437,359
thousand., Management considers that this impairment charge represents its best estimate of the net
recoverable value of these assets and reflects changes in market credit conditions in the markets of the
underlying assets since the purchase of the portfolio. The Bank used the same model also for the fair value
of the credit linked note (refer to Other debt securities).

Other debt securities

Securities issued by banks include a credit linked note (the ‘note’) with a nominal value of Euro 3.5 million,
issued by an internationally recognised bank, which amortises to zero over the ten years to its maturity
pursuant to the payment schedule. The note bears interest based an a margin over three month EURIBOR.
This note forms part of a credit derivative instrument acquired by the Bank during 2000 under which it sold
credit protection to an international financial institution. The maximum exposure of the Bank under this
agreement is Eurc 100 million. The aggregate exposure amortises over the ten year life of the instrument.
Off balance sheet instruments of Euro 100 million associated with this transaction (the so called ‘credit
default swaps') are shown within issued banking payment guarantees. In September and December 2001,
the Bank received notices of credit events in respect of two reference assets within the contract. The credit
quality of other reference assets has also deteriorated. If the apgregate loss exceeds the contracted
threshold, the Bank is reguired to pay the amount over the threshold to the issuer. The Bank has created
provisions for potential losses in respect of this instrument in the amount of CZK 244,007 thousand as of 31

December 2001,

The Bank holds a portfolio of CZK denominated debt obligations issued by large international corporates
through private placements. The carrying value of this portfolio was CZK 3,053,647 thousand as of 31
December 2001 (2000: CZK 7,105,010 thousand) as a result of the redemption of a one of the investments.
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18  Tangible and Intangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets

S e w Y e RS AWM

The movements during the year ended 31 December 2001 are as follows:

Land Buildings Other
CZK '00C CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000
Cost
31 December 2000 368 191 12 108 718 7 602 514
Additions 159 902 231 897 206 706
Disposals 10 922 54 031 523 845
31 December 2001 517 171 12 288 534 7 285 378
Accumulated
depreciation and
provisions
31 December 2000 4] 2671130 5924 104
Additions - accumulated 0 487 673 751 788
depreciation
Disposals - accumuiated 8] 54 031 523 845
depreciation
Provisions 0 1016 841 5251
31 December 2001 0 4121613 6 157 298
Net book value
31 December 2000 368 191 9 437 589 1678 410
31 December 2001 517 171 8 164 970 1 128 078
Acquisition Total
of assets
CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000
Cost
31 December 2000 723 331 20 BOZ 754
Additions 795 338 1393843
Disposals 1 151 133 1739 931
31 December 2001 367 536 20 456 666
Accumulated
depreciation and
provislons
31 December 2000 0] 8 595 233
Additions - accumulated 0 1239 461
depreciation
Disposals - accumulated 0 577 876
depreciation
Provisions 40 319 1062411
31 December 2001 40 319 10 319 231
Net book value
31 December 2000 723 331 12 207 521
31 December 2001 327 217 10 137 435

Komercni banka, a. s.
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Year Ended 31 December 2001

As of 31 December 2001, the aggregate balance of provisions against tangible fixed assets was CZK
1,214,410 thousand.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

Intangible fixed assets

The movements during the year ended 31 December 2001 are as follows:

Intangible Acquisition Total
fixed assets of assets
CZK '000 CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000

Cost
31 December 2000 1649115 317 334 1 966 448
Additions 874 986 867 312 1842 288
Disposals 3 300 972 834 976 134
31 December 2001 2520 801 311 812 2832613
Accumulated amortisation and provisions
31 December 2000 872 870 221 000 1093 870
Additions - accumulated amortisation 558 108 0] 558 108
Disposals - accumulated amartisation 3270 o 3270
Provisions 219 537 (159 889) 59 648
31 December 2001 1 647 245 81 111 1708 356
Net book value
31 December 2000 776 245 96 334 872 579
31 December 2001 B73 556 250 701 1 124 257

The impairment charge and the basis for it are set out in Note 8 "Restructuring costs”. As of 31 December
2001, the balance of tangible and tangible fixed assets held as part of the branch network, which the Bank
intends to dispese of in the medium term of as and when market and business conditions allow, shown in the

table above have a net book value of approximately CZK 2, 500 million.

In addition the balance of tangible and intangible fixed assets include other assets which have been
previously been identified as not in use, available for sublet or sale with a net book value of CZK 580 mitlion.

Tangible fixed assets held under finance leases

Instaiments paid including lease advances and prepaid rent
Breakdown of future lease payments

Of which: up to 1 year
up to 5 years
over 5 years

Amount in CZK ‘000

1056 889
416 575
163 825
252 750

0

Sum of instalments for the whole term of expected lease

1473464

Komercni banka, 4. s.
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19 Other asseots

31 December

31 December

2001 2000

CZK '000 CZK '000

Receivables from fair values of derivative transactions 7 850 739 3312219
Settlement balances 347 347 154 000
Other raeceivables from securities trading 3238 32155
Estimated receivables" 572 097 35597
Other assets 1652 334 2852175
Total 10 425 755 6 386 146
Less provisions (560 717) (254 738)
Total other assets 9 865 038 6 131 408

As of 31 December 2001, prepayments and accrued incoame amounted to CZK 1,266,529 thousand (2000:

CZK 3,772,856 thousand).

20 Amounts owed to banks

31 Decemnber

31 December

2001 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000

Amounts owed to banks - current accounts 1056 545 1 156 868
Account with {he Czech National Bank 2 496 B43 4 998 012
Other amounts owed to banks 118 877 665 98 100 297
Total amounts owed to banks 123 231 053 104 255 177

Set out below is an analysis by remaining maturity:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000

CZK *Q00 CZK '000

On demand 3 553 388 B8 154 880
Less than 3 months 105 722 088 82 381 224
Less than 1 year 5815783 8 459 407
From 1 to 2 years 120 524 233 107
From 2 to 4 years 36890642 993 447
From 4 to 5 years 20 524 22 520
Over 5 years 4 608 104 8 010 592
123 231 053 104 255 177

Total

The balance of amounts owed to banks with remaining maturity less than one year includes the amount of
CZK 95,426,861 thousand (2000: CZK 71,012,808 thousand) which represents the balance of payables from
securities that ere pledged by the Bank as loan collateral under reverse repo transactions.
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21 Amounts owed to customers

31 December

31 December

2001 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000
Current accounts 130994 890 109 961 663
Savings accounts 21 339 296 24 833 587
of which: on demand 1 493 401 1 691 682
Term deposits 117 802 386 104 229 628
Depoaosits frem budget of public sector 7 4689 288 7 784 786
of which: on demand 7 469 286 7 784 786
Off-budget depaosits of public sector 7 297 004 5851758
of which: on demand 3004 816 5237 034
Loans from customers 180 243 34 962 268
Total amounts owed to customers 285083 105 287 623 691

Set out below is an analysis by remaining maturity:

On demand

Less than 3 months
Less than 1 year
From 1 to 2 years
From 2 to 4 years
From 4 to 5 years
Over 5 years

Total

22  Certificates of deposit and similar debentures

Certificates of deposit and similar debentures comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK 'D00

142 962 393 124675225

111 469 381 120932073

23202023 34599258
6 591 168 6926 714

472 727 250 426

230 145 215766

155 268 24 229

285 083 105 2B7 623 691

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
CZK '000 CZK '000
Bonds 21 693 571 23 000 000
Mortgage bonds 7 104 647 6 600 000
Total certificated debts 28 798 218 29 600 000
Certificates of deposit 619 720
Depository promissory notes 31 707 884 0
Total 60 506 721 29 600 720
Publicly tradable mortgage bonds are issued to fund the Bank's mortgage activities.
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Certificates of deposits and certificated debts comprise depository promissory notes as of 31 December
2001, As of 31 December 2000, these products ameunting to CZK 25,152,676 thousand were reported as
amounts owed to customers.

Certificated dabts are repayable, according te remaining rnaturity, as follows;

31 December 31 December

2001 200C

CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000

Less than 1 year 10 191 488 0]
From 1 to 2 years 0 10 GO0 000
From 2 to 3 years 17 273 249 0
From 3 to 4 years 0 18 500 000
Over 4 years 1 333 481 1 100 000
Total certificated debts 28 798 218 29 600 000

The proportion of certificated debts with remaining maturity less than one year to the aggregate balance of
the certificated debts represents 35.39 percent (2000: nil percent),

The bonds and medium-term notes detailed above include the following bonds and notes issued by the

Bank:

Name Interest rate issue date
Bonds of Komereni 6M PRIBOR pius 15 10 February
banka, a. s., basis points (bps) 1997
CZ0003700429

Zero coupon bonds of  Zero coupon (issued 8 August
Komercni banka, a. 5., with discount for CZK 1897
770070000947 3,805 millian)

Bonds of Kormercni 8M PRIBOR plus 10 29 Septsmber
banka, a. s., basis points 1997
CZ20003700452

Mortgage bonds of 8.125% (mortgage 13 May
Komereni banka, bonds 2) 1990
a. s., C20002000110

Mortgage bonds of 8.0% (mortgage bonds 15 June
Komercnl banka, 1) 1999
a. s,, CZ0002000102

Bonds of Komercni 8.0% 10 September
banka, a. s., 1998
CZ20003700528

Meortgage bonds of
Komercni banke,
a. s,, CZ0002000151

8M PRIBOR plus 350
basis points (mortgage
bonds 3)

15 September

2000

Total bonds
Name Maturity date 31 Dacember 31 December
2001 2000

) CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000

Bonds of Komereni 10 February 6 134 244 6 000 000

barks, a. s., 2002

CZ0003700429

Zero coupon bonds of 8 August 2004 6 378 749 8 000 000

Komercni banka, a. s.,

770870000847

Bonds of Komercni 29 September 4 057 244 4 000 000

banka, 8. 5., 2002

CZ0003700452

Komercni banka, a. s.
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Mortgage bonds of 13 May 2004 4 205 834 4 000 000
Komereni banka, :

a. 5., CZ0002000110

Mortgage bonds of 15 June 2004 1 565 333 1 500 000
Komercni banka,

a. s, CZ0002000102

Bands of Komercni 10 September 5123 333 5 000 000
banka, a. s., 2004

CZ0003700528

Morigage bonds of 15 Septembar 1333 481 1 100 000
Komercni banka, 2007

8. 5., CZ0002000151 )

Total bonds 28 798 218 29 600 000

Six-month PRIBOR was 448 basis points as of 31 Dacember 2001 (2000: 557 basis points),
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22 Subordinated liabilities

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank had commitments frorn long-term accepted loans of a special nature
relating to a subordinated debt of CZK 7,251,800 thousand (USD 200,000 thousand). In 1998, Komercni
Finance, B. V. (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank) issued guaranteed step-up callable notes due 15 May
2008, bearing interest at 9 percent per annum to 15 May 2003 and then interest at a rate per annum equal to
the sum of the six-month dollar deposit LIBOR for the relevant payment period plus 5 percent. The notes
constitute direct, unsecured, unconditional, subordinated obligations of Komercni Finance, B. V. which are
irevocably, fully and, subject to subordination, uncaonditionally guaranteed as to principal, premium and
interest by the Bank. The notes are redeemable at the option of Komercni Finance, B. V. in whole on any
interest payment date on or after 15 May 2003. The nominal value of the subordinated debt is USD 200
million.

24 Other llabllities

31 December 31 December

2001 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK '000

Payables from fair values of derivative transactions 4 295 852 2701642
Settlernent balances and outstanding balances 0 349 867
Payments in clearing 3 207 991 6 557 268
Other payables to customers 132 246 1239 181
Other trading payables 528 625 458 345
Other liabilities 3 455 891 4 496 964
Estimated payables ' 1768713 144 28%
Corporate income tax 672 993 ]
Deferred tax 81 119 80 391
Total 14 143 530 16 027 347

As of 31 December 2001, accruals and deferred income amounted to CZK 826,799 thousand (2000: CZK
2,530,932 thousand).

25 Share capital

The Bank's share capital, legally registered In the Register of Companies on 11 February 2000, is CZK
19,004,928 thousand and consists of 38,009,852 ordinary shares with a nominal value of CZK 500 each
{ISIN: CZ0008019106).

In connection with the sale of the State's copfrolling interest in the Bank held by the National Property Fund
of the Czech Republic, Societe Generale S. A., incorperated under French law, having its registered office
address at 29, boulevard Haussmann, 75009 Paris, France, acquired a 60.001 percent shareholding in the
Bank on 4 October 2001. Societe Generale is a French joint stock company registerad in the Register of
Companies (Registre du Commerce et Societes) under no. RCS Paris 552 120 222. Societe Generale
operates as a licensed bank pursuant to a resolution issued on 4 May 1864 and is subject to the regulatory
requirements of the French'Companies Act (Loi sur les Societes Commerciales 66-537, 24 July 1966) and
the French Banking Act (Loi Bancaire 84-46, 24 January 1984).
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Set out below is @ summary of the entities that hold more than 3 percent of the Bank's issued share capital

as of 31 December 2001:

Name of the entity

ngistered office

Ownership percentage _

SOCIETE GENERALE S. A.

29 BLVD HAUSSMANN, PARIS 60.001

The Bank of New York ADR Department 101 Barclay Street, New York 6.447
26 Retained earnings, reserve funds and other funds created from profit
The Bank seltled the loss for the year ended 31 December 2000 as follows:
Retained Statutory reserve Reserve funds Other funds
eamings funds for treasury created from
shares profit
CZK '000 CZK '000 CZK ‘000 CZK '000
Balance at 31 December 2000 0 558 050 000 619 980
Loss for 2000 (148 336) 0 0 0
Allocation to the reserve fund for 0 0 173 00O (173 000)
treasury shares
Use of funds to settle the loss 149 336 0 0 (149 336)
Use of social fund 0 0 0 (24 082)
Post-allocation balance 0 558 050 179 000 273 542

Management of the Bank has proposed to allocate the profit made in respect of the year ended 31

December 2001 as follows:

Retained Statutory reserve Reserve funds Other funds

earnings funds for treasury created from

shares profit

CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000 CZK '000 CZK ‘000

Balance at 31 December 2001 0 558 050 179 000 273 542
Profit for 2001 2623642 o} Q o
Allocation to funds (255 052) 131 182 0 123 870
Post-allocation balance 2 368 590 689 232 179 000 397 412

The amount of CZK 123,870 thousand allocated to other funds created from profit represent an allocation to

the sacial fund.

27 Off balance sheet commitments and liabilities

(a) Off balance sheet foreign currency. interest rate and other financial derivative instruments

Kornercni banka, a. s.
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In the normal course of business the Bank enters into financial instrument transactions to hedge its liquidity,
interest and foreign currency risks. The Bank also enters into speculative financial derivative transactions for
the purpose of generating profits from short-term fluctuations in market factors. The Bank also acts as a
principal to derivative transactions with its clients. With regard to special structured deals carried out on
behalf of customers, the Bank fully eliminates market risks associated with these products by entering into an
opposite position with a banking counterparty (back to back transactions). The Bank operates a system of
market risk and counterparty limits which are designed to restrict exposure to movements in market prices
and counterparty concentrations. The Bank also monitors adherence to zli limits on a daily basis and follows
up on any breaches of these limits and takes corrective action to reduce the risk exposure.

The following tables set out notional and fair values of financial derivative instruments categorised as held for
frading and hedging.

Financial derivative instrumants designated as held for trading derivatives and spot transactions:

Nodonal Noflonal value Falr value Falr value
valua
2001 2001 2001 2001
Assew Liabllitias Positive Negative
CczZK 'oon CZK "a00 CZK '000 CZK ‘an0
Intarest ratd instruments
Interast rate swaps 60 508 758 00 508 756 1872470 1847 380
Forward rala agraements 135081675 136081 675 512 362 468 344
Options 4 400 000 4 400 000 94 256 ag 573
Spots 0 0 0 4}
Total 169 960 433 199 860 433 2 479 088 2424 307
Forelgh currency
Instrumants
Cumancy swaps 82 884 023 82 265 878 2202 B20 1633 788
Cross curréncy Swaps 22 278 989 21 371 741 893 2586 108 803
Currency forwards 4513 194 4 434 948 86 170 24 063
Call options 1231 239 1344 426 25964 Q
Put options 885 386 872 188 [s] 25 864
Spats 1 985 269 1 987 050 0 0
Total 113 878 087 112 276 030 i3 00 1783 418
Qthar Instruments
Cradit options 20 508 3268 20 508 328 [} 0
Forwards on éebt securliies 1812609 1813122 395 408
Total 22 318 935 22 319 9440 395 406
Total 338 157 465 334 555 811 5 780 483 4218134
Notianal Notlonal value Falr value Fair vatue
value
2000 2000 2000 2000
Asseals Liabillues Positive Negatlive
CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000 C2ZK ‘000 C2K '000
Interest rala Instruments
inleresl rale swaps 85 207 288 55 207 296 1573008 1135 596
Forward rale sgreemenls €0 790 339 80 780 339 52 132 49 018
Options 4 400 000 4 400 000 69 964 54 784
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Spots 1008 937 1006 937 0 0
Tota) 1471 404 582 141 404 562 1685 104 1239 408
Forelgn currency

Insyuments

Currency swaps 56 675 430 58 475 408 1319 788 1084 104
Cross currency swaps 638 111 604 080 1171 87 134
Currency farwards 7 887 982 7612511 143 138 1689 829
Call options 8511 268 8 254 086 31 661 21739
Pul optiens a 0 0 4]
Spols 3 230 822 3 262 853 0 0
Total 78 743 413 78 339038 1495776 1342 BO®
Onher Instruments

Cradit optiops s o 0 o
Forwards an dabt sacurilias D Q [0} 0
Total ] L} (] [ 1]
Total 220 147 975 219 743 BOO 3 180 880 2 582 212

AU S A P §

Financial derivative instruments desighated as held for trading and spot transactions at nominal

values per remaining maturity:

Leszs than 1 year 1to 5 years Over 5 yoars Total
CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000 CZK '000 CZK '000

Interest rate instruments
IRS 16 782 323 29 071 817 14 654 618 €0 508 758
FRA 135051 675 o] o] 135 051 675
Options 0 400 000 4 000 000 4 400 000
Total 151 833 998 29 471 817 18 654 618 199 960 433
Forelgn currency Instruments
Swaps 82 884 023 0 0 82 884 023
Cross curmency swaps 7 056 258 21222732 0 22 278 989
Forwards 45813 191 0 0 4513191
Calil options 1231239 0 0 1231 239
Put options 985 386 0 0 985 386
Spots 1 985 269 0 0 4 985 269
Total 92 655 365 21 222 732 0 113 878 097
Other Instruments
Credit options 0 20 506 326 0 20 506 328
Forwards on debt securities 1812 609 0 0 1812609
Total 1812 609 20 506 326 0 22 318 935
Total 248 301 972 71 200 B75 1B 654 618 336 157 465

Note; The remaining maturity of forward rate agreements (FRA) covers the period lo the fixing date when off balance sheet exposures

are reversed.

Fimanciai derivative instruments designated as hedging:

Notional
assots

Komercni banka, a. s.
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31 December K} 3 n
2007 December December December
2001 2001 2001
GZK ‘o0e CZK'000 CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000
Foreign currency
instruments
Swaps a 1] 0 0
Cross currency swaps 0 0 0 4]
Total 0 0 0 0
Interest rate
instruments ,
\nterest rate swaps 65426 600 65426600 2033260 77 818
FRA 2 800 000 2 800 000 26 986 0
Total 88 226 600 68 226 600 2 060 248 77 818
Total 68 226 600 68 226 600 2 060 246 77 818
Notional Notional
assets liabilities
31 December 31 December
2000 2000
CZK ‘000 CZK 000
Foraign currency
Instruments
Swaps 3235833 3130857
Cross culrency swaps 1785 280 1 890 650
Total 5021 083 5024 507
Interest rate
instruments
interest rate swaps . 38147 104 38 147 104
FRA 10 200 000 10 200 000
Total 48 347 104 48 347 104
Total 53 368 187 53 368 611
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
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Remaining maturity of derivatives designated as hedging

Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 year Total

CZK 000 CZK ‘000 CZK ‘00 CZK ‘000
Interest rate swaps 14 000 000 41 428 600 10 000 000 65 426 600
Forward rate agreements 2 800 000 0 0 2 800 000
Total ) 16 860 000 41 426 600 10 000 000 68 226 600

The substantial increass in notional values of forward rate agreements (FRA) is primarily due to the Bank
acting as a market maker in respect of these instrurnenis.

Credit risk of financlal derivatives

Credit exposure or replacement cost of financial derivative instruments represents the Bank's credit
exposure from contracts with a positive fair value, that is, it indicates the estimated maximum potential losses
of the Bank in the event that counterparties fail to perform their obligations. it is usually a small fraction of the
notional amounts of the contracts. The credit exposure of each contract is indicated by the credit equivalent
calculated pursuant to generally applicable methadology using the current expasure methed and involves the
fair market value of the contract (only if positive, otherwise a zero vaiue is tzken Iinto account) and a portion
of nominal value, which indicates the potential change in fair market value over the term of the contract. The
credit equivalent is established depending on the type of contract and its maturity. The Bank assesses credit
risks of all financial instruments on a daily basis.

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank has a potential credit exposure of CZK 10,860 million (2000: CZK 5,247
million) in the event of non-performance by counterparties to its financial derivative instruments. This amount
represents the gross replacement cost at market rates as of 31 December 2001 of all outstanding
agreements in the event of all counterparties defaulting and does not allow for the effect of netting
arrangements.

The Bank is selective in its choice of counterparties, sets limits on transactions with its customers and in
respect of increased credit exposure or a customer that has ne limit, the Bank required deposit composition
to enter into financial derivative transactions. As such, the Bank considers that the actual credit risk
associated with financial derivatives is substantially lower than the exposure calculated pursuant to credit

equivalents.
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Year Ended 31 December 2001
(b) Contingencies

Financial commitments and contingencies cornprise:

31 December 2007 31 December 2000

CZK '000 CZK '000
Non-payment guarantees 5522 738 4768 047
Payment guarantees - 12 547 498 21734 327
Letters of credit uncovered 666 869 884 228
Stand by letters of credit 781 459 616 011
Commitments from guarantees 19 518 562 28 002 613
Received bills of exchange/acceptances and endorsements of 20019 4 800
bills of exchange
Total contingent liabilities 419 538 581 28 007 413
Committed facilities 15648 180 15788 239
Undrawn eredit commitments 15 766 903 18 914 748
Confirmed letters of credit 4 699 91 548
Other irrevocable commitments 31419782 34794 505
Unutilised overdrafts and approved overdraft loans 20 855 560 17 666 859
Letters of credit covered 298 269 331 828
Total contingent and irrevocable commitments 72112192 80 800 605

The Bank provides a variety of credit facilities to its largest clients including Czech entities which are part of
international groups and which are State owned. Of the Bank’s committed facilities and guarantees, CZK
8,971,180 thousand is revocabls (2000; CZK 7,565,129 thousand). All other comnmitied facilities, undrawn
credit commitments and unutilised overdrafts are irrevocable and are not subject to further approvals by the
Bank.

The risk associated with off balance sheet credit commitments and contingent liabilities is assessed similarly
as for loans to customers, taking into account the financial pasition and activities of the entity to which the
Bank issued the guarantee and taking into account the collateral obtained. As of 31 December 2001, the
Bank created provisions for these risks amounting to CZK 1,851,560 thousand (2000: CZK 1,361,300
thousand).

As of 31 December 2001, payment guarantees include guarantees provided to Komnereni Finance B. V. in
the amount of CZK 7,251,800 thousand (2000: CZK 17,015,850 thousand) in connection with the issued
subordinated debt.

As of 31 December 2001, payment guarantees include an amount of EUR 100,000 thousand relating to a
credit derivative agreement.

28  Assets under mmanagement

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank managed client assets in the amount of CZK 12,365,085 thousand, of
which the assets of Penzijni Fond Komereni banky, a. s. amounted to CZK 7,259,890 thousand.

29 Assets pledged as collateral for own liabilities or liabilities of third parties

The Bank has neither assets as collateral nor receivables from collateral.
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30  Aggregate assets and llabilities in foreign currencies

31 December 2001

AV, TJrd i,

31 December 2000

CZK '000 CZK '000

Assets

CZK 434 381 051 398 857 390

Foreign currency 90 926 694 76 984 974
Total assets 525 287 745 476 B42 364
Liabilities

CzZK 462 079 319 414 072 485

Foreign currency 83 208 426 62 769 879
Total liabilities 525 287 745 476 842 364
Off balance sheet assets

CZK 370 848 235 238 577 070

Foreign currency : 84 694 193 86 741 010
Total off balance sheet assets 455 342 428 336 318 080
Off balance sheet liabilities

CZK 305 861 021 185 156 985

Foreign currency 98 921 490 87 955 226
Total off balance shest liabilities 402 782 511 273 112 211

31 Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to conifrol the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party on making financial or operational decisions. As of 31 December
2001, the Bank was controlled by Societe Generale which owns 60 percent of its issued share capital.

A number of banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of business.
These include loans, deposits and other types of transactions. These transactions were carried out on

commercial terms and at market rates.

Amounts due to and from the Group companies

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank had loans outstanding of CZK 2,443,568 thousand (2000: CZK
2,418,838 thousand) to the group entities. The amounts of associated undertakings placed with the Bank

totalled CZK 676,545 thousand (2000; CZK 452,256 theusand).
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The following table summarises loans issued to associated undertakings and deposits with the Bank:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000

Company
Komercni banka Bratislava, a.s. 86 430 131 382
Komercni pojistovna a.s. 0 0
CAC Leasing, a.s. 889 511 867 489
A TRADE, s.r.a, 0 62 555
ALL IN Real Estate Leasing, s.r.o. 0 22 360
Factoring KB, a.s. 310 489 639 513
IKS KB, a.s. D 112 404
Vseobecna stavebni sporiteina KB, a.s. 662 338 0
MUZO, a. s. 494 800 583 135
Total loans 2 443 568 2418 838
Komercni pojistovna a.s. 274 706 187 112
Komercni banka Bratislava, a.s. 11 346 131 992
CAC Leasing, a.s. 5781 0
Factoring KB, a.s. 56 468 1655
IKS KB, a.s. * 26 096 9794
Vseobecna stavebni sporitalna KB, a.s. 82 143 0
MUZQ, a. s. 80 554 0
Asis, a.s. 18 173 0
Reflexim, a.s. 17 288 0
Penzijni fond KB, a.s. 74 976 75 990
A-TRADE, s.r.o. 29016 85713
Total deposits 676 545 452 256

Amounts due to and from the Sociste Generale Group entities

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank recorded amounts due to and from Societe Generale Paris and Societe

Generale's Prague branch,

The Bank recorded an amount dus from Soclete Generale in the nostro account of CZK - 310 thousand and
off balance sheet currency transactions in the nominal value of CZK 996 641 thousand in assets and CZK

982 950 thousand in liabilities.

The Bank reported an armount of CZK 157,574 thousand owed to Societe Generale's Prague branch arising
from interbank deposits and an off balance sheet receivable associated with interest rate instruments with a

nominal vajue of CZK 1,703,075 thousand.
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Amounts due from the Bank’s related parties:

Average Interestrate 31 December 31 December

contractua!l 2001 2000
maturity

CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000

Members of the Supervisory Board - 7-13 75 o
Members of the Management Board - 6.5 -22.8 3087 16 145
Principal shareholders of the Bank (interest - - 0 674 891

_greatar than 1%)

Total - - 3142 690 836

Amounts due from the Bank's related parties include credit cards, current accounts and common customer
loans advanced at varying rates of interest.

All amounts due from principal shareholders in 2000 were fully repaid during the year ended 31 December
2001.

Amounts due from the Bank’s related parties:

CZK ‘000G
Balance at 1 January 2001 690 B36
Repayments _ 687 784
Loans newly granted 90
Balance at 31 December 2001 3142

Remuneration and equity compensation scheme of the members of the Management and
Supervisory Boards

Remuneration paid to the members of the Management and Supertvisory Boards during the years was as

follows:
31 December 2001 31 December 2000
CZK '000 C2ZK ‘000
Remuneration to the Management Board * 205 417 31 930
Remuneration to the Supervisory Board 29 416 8 088
Total 234 833 40 018

* Remuneration to the Management Board members includes amounts pald during the year ended 31

Decernber 2001 to the current and former directors of the Bank under mandate and management
contracts and the equity compensation scheme.

Remuneration te the Supervisory Board members includes amounts paid during the year ended 31
December 2001 to the current and former members of the Supervisory Board as well as compensation
provided under the eguity compensation scheme. ’
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As of 31 December 2001, the Bank recorded a reserve of CZK 8,822 thousand {(2000; CZK 53,000
thousand) for an equity compensation program designed for the Management Board, Supervisory Board and
selected managers, and estimated payable of CZK 11,122 thousand (2000: CZK nil) for Management Board
bonuses.

31 December 2001 31 December 2000
Number of the Management Board members 5 , 7
Number of the Supervisory Board members 9 12

Equity compensation program

The extended equity compensation program (the ‘program’), designed to provide compensation to the
members of the Management and Supervisory Boards, was approved by the Annual General Meeting on 31
May 2000. The terms of the program, refined to reflect the requirements of the amended Commercial Code,
were approved by the General Meetings held on 28 March 2001 and 20 June 2001.

Under this equity compensation program each of the members of the Management and Supervisory Boards
of the Bank have a right to purchase annually a pre-determined number of ordinary shares of the Bank at
CZK 500 per share (‘call options’). The members of the Boards have a right, but not the obligation, to put
these shares on the Bank at a price of CZK 1,000 per share after these shares have been held by Board
members for a minimum pericd {‘put options'). The cost of the exercise of these options is borne by the
Bank.

The table bslow summarises the program in terms of the period for acquiring call options over & pre-
determined number of shares and the call and put option exercise period:

Period for call options Management Supervisory
over shares Board Board
Number of Number of
shares for call shares for call
options aptions
05/2000-05/2001 134 000 28 500
05/2001-05/2002 134 000 28 500
05/2002-05/2003 134 000 28 500
05/2003-05/2004 134 000 28 500
Total 536 000 114 000
Period for call options ’ Call Put
over shares options options
Option exercise Option exercise
period period
05/2000-05/2001 05/2000-05/2004 06/2001-05/2004
05/2001-05/2002 05/2001-05/2004 068/2002-05/2004
05/2002-05/2003 05/2002-05/2004 06/2003-05/2004
05/2003-05/2004 05/2003-05/2004 05/2004-05/2005
Total - -
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* information relating to the description of the period has been simplified as a result of varied dates of
entering into agreements under the program from 31 May 2000 to 12 June 2000 which underlie the start of
the period for call options over shares and exercise of the call and put options.

Call and put option agreements were entered into with the members of the Management and Supervisory
Beards in November and December 2000.

Exercise of option rights for the year from 1 June 2000 to 31 May 2001

In January 2001, the Bank purchased its ordinary shares in the open market following the exercise of the
right to purchase the pre-determined number of shares by each of the members of the Management Board.
The members of the Supervisory Board also exercised their rights under the scheme The total number of
shares purchased for the Management and Supervisory Board members was 160,220, The cost to the Bank
of the exercise of these shares has been charged on an accruals basis to the accounting periods to which it
relates as a compensation expense. The aggregate charge to the profit and loss statement for the year
ended 31 December 2001 for all members of both Boards was CZK 36,608 thousand (2000: CZK 53,000
thousand).

Exercise of option rights for the year from 1 June 2001 to 31 May 2002

The members of the Management Board and the members of Supervisory Board exercised their rights to

purchase 155,060 shares as of 31 December 2002. The aggregate charge to the profit and loss statement
for the year ended 31 December 2001 for ali members of the Boards and their rights to sell and purchase the

shares was CZK 58,771 thousand on an accruals basis

Other beneficlaries of equity compensation scheme

Under a pre-existing scheme certain members of middle management of the Bank have rights to purchase
annually a pre-determined number of ordinary shares of the Bank. Management estimates that the
cumulative rights as of 31 December 2001 amount to approximately 80,000 shares. No provision has been
made for the exercise of these rights.

Current status of equity compensation schemes

The Bank’s management (appointed on 5 October 2001) has indicated that its intention is to limit or to
terminate a substantial part of outstanding rights of the existing program and to replace it with & new
compensation scheme consistent with that operated by the Societe Generale Group.

32 Purchase of Societe Generale's Prague branch

The planned acquisition of the business of Societe Generale’s Prague branch and its integration into the
Bank will form an integral part of the transformation process. Under this transaction, the Bank will acquire the
assets and labilities of the business and transfer all its clients and staff (also refer to Note 2). The transaction
was approved by the Bank’s Management Board and Supervisory Board on 11 December 2001 and 14
February 2002, respectively. In December 2001, the Bank's Executive Committee approved the principal
conditions and timing of all the processes associated with the purchase of the business. The purchase of the
business of Societe Generale's Prague branch must be approved by the Bank's Extraordinary General
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Meeting which is scheduled to take piace on 28 March 2002. The purchase of the business is also subject to
the prior cansent of the Czech National Bank.

The date of acquisition of the business of Societe Generale's Prague branch is set as of 31 March 2002, at
which time all the assets and liabilities specified in the Business Purchase Agreement will be acquired by the
Bank and recognised in the Bank's statutory books at fair value. Pursuant to an independent appraisal, the
purchase price of the business has been determined to be CZK 1,030 million. The difference between the
purchase price and the fair value of the acquired assets and liabilities as of the acquisition date will be
recognised as goodwill in the Bank's assets,

As of 31 December 2001, Societe Generale’s Prague branch recorded assets of CZK 22,208 million.
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@ KOMERCNi BANKA, a. s.

P.O. BOX 839 Registration No.
114 07 PRAHA 1 4154

Fax No,: 420- 2- 24229483

Tel.No.: 420- 2 - 224 32005

FACSIMILE MESSAGE

To: Securities and Exchange Commijssion, Division of Corporate
Finance, 450 fifth Street, N.W. - Washington D. C. 20549

Attn: Special Counsel, Office of International Corporate Finance

Fax No.: 001 202 9429 525
From: Ms Sylva Florikova,
Compliance

Komeréni banka, a. s., Prague, Czech Republic

Number of pages : J50
{including this page)

Date: 28, 3. 2002

Subject:: Financial Statements

Dear Sirs,

We are sending you Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements
prepared in accordance with International and Czech Accounting Standards for
the year ended 31 December 2001,




Yours Sincerely,

% \/IMN

Sylva Florikova
Director of Compliance
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AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KOMERCNI| BANKA, A.S.

We have audited the accompanying uncensolidated financial statements of Komer&nf banka, a.s. (the Bank) for
the year ended December 31, 2001. The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial

statermnents and for maintaining accounting records in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements, taken as a wholc, based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Act on Auditors and the auditing standards issued by the Chamber
of Auditors. Those standards require that we plan and conduct the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abourt
whether the financial starements arce free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, the accounting records and other evidence supporting the amounts in the financial staternents. An audit
also includes an assessment of the accounting principies nsed and significant g¢stimates made by the Bank in the
preparation of the financial statements, as well as an evaluation of the overall financial staternents presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the assets, liabilities and equity of

Komer&n{ banka, a.s. as of December 31, 2001, and the financial results for the year then ended in accordance
with Act on Accounting and relevant accounting regulations.

Prague, 26 March 2002

Audit firm: Statutory auditor:
Deloitte & Touchs, spol. s r.o. Michal Petrman

License no. 79 License no. 7105
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Unconsolidated Profit and Loss Statement For the Yeaf Ended 31 December 2001
(Amounts in CZK ‘000)

Note | Current acceunting | Previous accounting
pariod pericd

1. |interest Income and similar income 3 28 686 825 20 095 527
of which: interest income from fixed income securities . 2 B05 224 1608 048

2. interest expense and similar expenses 4 (15 121 580) (16 751 661)
of which: Interest expense on fixed income securities (2 460 861) ~ (2081 195)

1 llncome from varlable yleld securities 222 102 453 120
(a) ’Income from shares and other variable yield securities In 2496
{b) [Income from investments in associaled undertakings 138 913 210 464
(¢) lincome from investrents in subsidiary undartakings 82798 240 160
(d) [income from other investmenls . 0 ¢
4 Fees and cormmissions Income 5 6 486 429 £426 949
5 Fees and commlssions expense 5 (505 042) (1 005 225)
6. [|Profit/(loss) on flnanclal operations 6 3154154 3216010
7 Other income . 7 3 096 556 37 527 832
8. General operating costs 8 (12 1575'73) (11 295 596)
(a) [Staff costs (5 636 897) (5 290 049)
(8a) |Wages and salarles {4 418 105) (3 910 700)
(ab) |Sodal securlly costs (1 137 610) {1 036 069)
{ac) [Health insurance costs {381 182) (343 280)
() |Other operating costs (6 204 176) (6 005 547)
9, |Greation of reserves and provislons for tangible and Intangible ] (1516 455) (373 000))
(@) aésro:::ison of reserves for tanglble assets (41 809) i
B [Creation of provisions for tangible assels (1 745 983) (152 600)
() [Creation of provisions for intanglble assels ' ' (328 663) (221 000)
10. |Use of reserves and provisions for tangible and intangible assets ) 352 587 1200
(a) [Use of reserves for tanglible assets 0 1200
(b) |Usa of provisions for tangible assets 83573 0
7S MNina af cideefmimde P T il e e mmdee LYY arrart ~




11. |Other costs 7 (3 431 033) (55 898 775)
12. [Creation of provisions and raserves for loans and guarantees 9 (10 759 008) (19 153 999)
13. |Usa of provislons and reserves for loans and guarantees 8 6 415 443 ‘ 28 624 729
14. |Creation of provisions and reserves for fixed asset investments 9 {4 808 299) (2 359 147)
and financial investments _
15. JUse of provisions and reserves for fixed asset investments and 9 3167 116 1920 923
financial investments
16. [|Creatlon of other provisions and ragerves (2 785 510) (634 501)
17. |Use of other provisions and reserves g 2 319 967 916 851
18. |Income tax from current actlvities 10 (763 250) ~ (17 408)
18. [Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities after taxation 3072 629 {306 171)
20. |Extraordinary Income E 825 799 218 175
21, |Extraordinary costs 11 (274 986) (69 341
22, |income tax from extraordinary activities 0 0
23. |Profit or loss from extraordinary activities after taxation 550 813 156 835
74 fﬁ-?fﬁloss for the accounting period 2 623 642 (149 336)
Komerenl banka, a. s. Page 4




— . s

L L e s FeEel afndsde? -

.

o &

el

e

- WM

»
|
!
1
.

ASSETS (Amounts in CZK ‘000)

M N Rl - ~

Current aceounting period Previous
Note Gross Adjustment Net accounting
amount amount peried
1. [Cash In hand, deposits with central banks, postal 12 | 17 250 642 o| 17259842 13787027
chacklng accounts .
2. [Treasury blilis and othar bills eligible for refinancing 12 95 190 207| 0] 95190207| 76225749
with the CNB —
(3) [Treasury bills and similar bonds issued by the state 15 §17 207 1} 15517 207] 11 368789
©) [Other bills 79673 000 6] 70673 000] 64 857 600
3. |Amounts due from banks 13 {156 565 656 12 793] 156 553 063] 176 419 932
(a8) |Payable on demand 215475 0 215 475 777073
{6) [Other receivables 156 350 361 12 793| 156 337 588| 175 642 859
of which: subordinaied assets 0 0 0 0
4, |Amounts duae from customers 14 209324 980] 15561 881] 193 762 999{ 133 968 417
(@) [Payable on demand ' 7926 460 0 7026 460] 7 040 497
{b) [Other racalvables 207 398 520] 15561 981] 191 838 539 132 927 920
of which: subordinated assets 0 0 0 0
5. {Bonds and other fixed income sacuritias for trading 15 3 009 076 539 3008537 3049692
() |issued by banks 522 635 34 522 601 805 245
of which; eawn bonds 241974 2 241972 680 309
(6) |issued by cther entities Z 468 441 SO6| 2 485 036] 2 154 448
6. [Shares and other varlable yield securities for trading 15 168 294 264 168 030 172973
[7. [Fixed assetinvestments in associatad undertakings 16 334 640 0 334 640 469 730
(@) [inbanks 220 000 ) 220 000 280 000
) [In other entiies 114 640 0 114 640] 209 730]
8. |Fixed asset investmants In subsidiary undertakings 16 1 640 028 751 900 868 128] 1135189
(2) [in banks 411433 i 411433 438 366
{b) [in other entldes 1228595 751 800 476 695 696 823
9. [Other financial investments 17 | 37681720 2131613] 35 550 107‘-?6.‘5@'




0

0

(a) }incorporation costs 0 0
®) [Goodwill 0 0 0 0
11. [Tangible fixed assets 18 20 456 666] 1031921 10 137 435] 12 207 521
{(a) ]Land and buildings for banking activities 11631 987] 3934489 7 697 478] 9279 966
(b) |Other 8824 699] 6384 742 2439957 2927 555
12, [Troasury shares 778 933 0 778 993 5 265
13. |Other assets 19 10 425 755 560 717 9 865 038) 6131 408
14, |Subscribed share capital calied-up and not pald 0 0 0 0
15. [Prepayments and accfued Income 19 12686 529 0 1266529] 23772856
TOTAL ASSETS 556 335 139] 31 047 394| 525 287 745} 476 842 364
Komercni banka, a. s. Page
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Unconsolidated Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2001

LIABILITIES (Amounts in CZK '000)

Note Current accourting |Previous accounting period
period

1. jAmounts owad to banks 20 123 231 053 104 258 177
(2) ]Payable on demand 3 853 388 6 154 B8O
{p) |Other liabilities 119677 663 98 100 297
2, [Amounts owed to customers 21 285083 105 287 623 691
(@) [Savings deposits 21 339 206 24 833 567
of which: payable on demand 1483 401 1691682

(b) [Other liahilitias 263 743 809 262 780 104
of which: payable on demand 141 468 692 122 983 543

3. |Certificates of deposit and simitar debentures 22 80 506 721 29 600 720
(a) |Certificates of deposit 619 720
{b) |Other 60 506 102 29 600 000
4, [|Accruals and deferred Income 24 826 799 2530932
5. [Reserves 9 11 605 577 9 201 697
(a) [Reserves for standard loans and guarantees 9709682 8174 946
{b) [Reserves for ferelgh exchange rate iosses 0 0
(c) |Resarvas for othar banking risks 1 246 956 0
(d) |Other reserves 648 939 1026 751
6. [|Subordinated llabllities 23 7 251 800 7 562 600
Other liabilities 24 14 143 530| 16 027 947

8. [Share capital 25 19 004 926 19 004 926
of which: share capital paid-up 19 004 926 19 004 926

9. |Share premiumn fund [ 0
10. |Reserve funds 26 737 050 564 050
(a) [Statulory reserve funds 558 050 558 050
(b} |Resarve funds for treasury shares 179 000 8 000
(c) [Other reserve funds ] )
11. [Capital funds and other funds created from profit 26 273 542 619 960
(8) [Capital funds 0 0
(b) }Other funds craated from profit 273 542 619 860
a9 Datainead naraincar cod meaimmrillatad laaaaa wes o [ ar-) - =




tranzactions

13. |Profit or loss for the accounting period 26 26231642 (149 336)
TOTAL UJIABILITIES 525 287 745 476 842 364
OFF BALANCE SHEET (Amounts in CZK ‘000)
i Note Current aceounting Previous accounting
period period
1. [Total contingent llabllitles 27 19 538 581 28 007 413
of which:
{2) |Received bills of exchange/acceplances and endorsements of] 20 015 4 800
bills of éx¢hange i
{b) jCommitments from guarantses 19 518 562 28 002 813
{c) {Commitments from collateral 0 7
2. |Other irrevocable commitments 27 31419782 34 794 505
3. |Recsivables from spot, forward and option transactions 27 404 384 065 273 516 162
4. [Commitments under spot, forward and option 27 402 782 511 273 112211

Komercni banka, a. s.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

1. Principal activities

Kemercni banka, a. s. (the 'Bank’) is incorporated in the Czech Republic as a joint-stock company. The
principal activities of the Bank are as follows:

l. - Providing loans, advances and guarantees in Czech Crowns and foreign currencies;
it Acceptance and placement of deposits in Czech Crowns and foreign currencies;
. Providing current and term deposit accounts in Czech Crowns and foreign currencies;

V. Providing banking services through an extensive branch network in the Czech Republic;
V. Treasury operations in the interbank market,

VI, Servicing foreign trade transactions; and

VIL. Investment banking.

The registered office address of the Bank Is Na Prikope 33/969, 114 07 Prague 1. The Bank has 342
branches and sub-agencies in the Czech Republic. The Bank had 9,229 employees as of 31 December
2001. The Bank has operations in the Czech Republic and Slovakia through its subsidiary Komercni banka
Bratislava, a.s.

The Bank's ordinary shares are publicly traded on the Prague Stock Exchange. Societe Generale, a French
bank, became the majority shareholder of the Bank on 4 October 2001 following its purchase of a 60 percent
shareholding in the Bank which had been held by the Czech Gavernment through the National Praperty
Fund.

2 Principal developrents during the year ended 31 December 2001

State guarantee

Pursuant to a Government resolution dated 18 December 2000, the Bank entered into an agreement with
Konsolidacni banka under which Konsolidacni banka will cover losses incurred by the Bank, up to a
maximum amount of CZK 20,000 millian, which may be incurred over a three year period, which began on 31
December 2000, on a defined portfolio of classified exposures. This agreerment has been taken into account
when determining the value of the Bank’s assets and the level of required provisions for loan losses reparted
as of 31 December 2000 and 31 Decernber 2001. Further details of this guarantee arrangement and its
impacts on provisioning for loan losses ¢an be found in Note 14 to these financial staterments.




Restructuring of the Bank

The Management Board of the Bank continued to implement its restructuring program that was initiated in
2000. During the year ended 31 December 2001, the principal steps within this program have been as
foliows:

- The centralisation and redistribution of certain support activities tc a subsidiary of the Bank with the
objective of localising the provision of internal services within the Bank's financial group and reducing
operating costs (approximately 450 staff were relocated when this measure came into effect on 1 July 2001),

- The centralisation and redistribution of user support services and other activities relating to information
technologies to a subsidiary with the objective of localising these services within the Bank's financial group
and reducing operating costs (approximately 250 staff were relocated when this measure came into effect on
1 Septernber 2001);

Komercni bankz, a. s. Page 8
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

- The centralisation of selected back-office activities and ratlonalisation of back-office processes within the
Bank, with a headcount reduction of up to 30 percent (including the regionalisation of accounting units into 9
locations and the headcount reduction is approximately 30 percent, with effect from 1 July 2001 and the
partial centralisation of the loan portfolio management function into 9 locations, with effect from 1 October
2001).

These and other measures have led to a reduction in the Bank's headcount by 1,404, or 13 percent, to 9,289
during the year ended 31 December 2001 compared to 10,703 as of 31 December 2000,

Privatisation of the Bank

On 28 June 2001, the Government of the Czech Republic approved the French bank Societe Generale in the
tender to acquire the State's 60 percent shareholding in the Bank. Societe Generale acquired 60 percent of
the issued share capital of the Bank for a consideration of approximately CZK 40 billion (that is EUR 1,186
million).

On 12 July 2001, Societe Generale entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with the National Property
Fund to acquire the State's 60 percent shareholding in the Bank.

Societe Generale obtained control of the Bank following the approval of the Czech National Bank and the
Securities Commission and the cessation of the proceedings of the Economic Competition Protection Office
regarding public support in connection with the provision of the guarantee by Konsolidacni banka for a
selected portfolio of low quality assets up to the amount of CZK 20 billion.

At the Extraordinary Meeting held on B October 2001, the shareholders of the Bank approved new Articles of
Incorporation and elected a new Supervisery Board,

The Supervisory Board of the Bank accepted the resignation of the seven members of the Bank's
Management Board and slected a new Management Board on 5 October 2001 comprising five members: Mr
Alexis Juan, Mr Patrice Cheroutre, Mr Matus Pull, Mr Peter Palecka and Mr Tomas Spurny.

Changes were made to the governance model of the Bank and the relationship between the Management
and Supervisory Boards enhancing the authority of the Management Board and the Executive Committee
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

On 5 October 2001, the Management Board appointed the following officers of the Bank to the Executive

Committee:
Name Position Area of responsibility
Alexis Juan Chairman of the Management Board Strategy, sales, marketing, information
and CEO technology, operations, investment banking
Peter Palecka Vice-chairman of the Management  Secretariat, legal services, public relations,
Board and 1% Deputy CEO compliance, organisational structure
Patrice Cheroutre Member of the Management Board  Risk management
and Deputy CEQO
Matus Pull Member of the Management Board Corporate banking
and Deputy CEO
Tomas Spurny Member of the Management Board Finance and corporate planning
and Deputy CEO
Phillippe Delacarte Deputy CEO Small and medium-sized companies
Miche! Fenot Deputy CEO Distribution network
Jiri Hum| Deputy CEO Information technologies and operations
Radomir Lasak Deputy CEO Distribution network
Andre Leger Deputy CEO Marketing and retail banking
Marek Stefanowicz Deputy CEO Investment banking
Karel Vasak Deputy CEO Hurman resources
Jan Kubalek Executive Vice-president Alternative distribution channels
Pascal Dupont Executive Vice-president Risk management
Michal Herman Executive Vice-president Finance

Societe Generale made five appointments to the new nine-member Supervisory Board (Didier Alix, Severin
Cabannes, Jean-Louis Mattei, Christian Poirier and Petr Laube). The remaining four seats are taken by a
representative of the National Property Fund (Jan Juchelka) and three representatives elected by the
employees of the Bank (Pave! Krejci, Jan Kucera and Miroslava Smidova).




In accordance with relevant legislation, the obligatian to acquire the shares of minorily shareholders does not
apply when a cantrolling stake is acquired as part of the privatisation of the State's shareholdings. Therefare
Societe Generale has not made an offer to repurchase the shares heid by the Bank's minority sharehoiders.

Komercni banka, a. s. Page 10




U han, Luud lJd. il ad o VLV daolvl Laasa 17 iU o LTLTJIVVY av, TIUd LR YA

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Vear Fnded 31 Dacember 2001

3 Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out beiow:

(a) Basis of accaunting

The financlal statements are based on the Bank’s accounting records which are maintained in accordance
with Accounting Act §63/1991 Coll. and relevant regulations and guidance, specifically the regulation of the
Czech Finance Ministry no. 282/85 327/2000, which establishes the chart of accounts and the accounting
principles for banks effective for the year ended 31 December 2001, which principally resulted in changes in
the accounting treatment for penalty interest, securities, repo transactions and financial derivative
instrurnents.

The financial staternents are prepared on an accruals basis of accounting whereby the effects of transactions
and other events are recognised when they occur and are reported in the financial statements of the periods
to which they relate., The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the remeasurement of all derivative contracts to fair value.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the regulation of the Czech Finance Ministry no.
282/65 050/1997 dated 9 October 1997, which establishes the structure and substance of financiai
statement components and the scope of financial statement disclosures for banks, as amended by regulation
no. 282/87 740/1998 dated 9 December 1998.

The presentation of financial statements requires management of the Bank to make estimates and
assumptions that effect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and their reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. These estimates are based on the information available as of the date of the
financial statements and actual results could differ from those estirates.
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performance of (he bank's subsidiary and assoclated ungertakings, a lisling of which can be found at Note
16 to these financial statements.

. The reporting currency used in the financial statements is the Czech Crown (‘CZK') with accuracy to CZK
thousand, unless indicated otherwise, '

(b) Investments

The Bank’s investmenis in subsidiary and associated undertakings are recognised at cost less any
provisions. Investments, in which the Bank, directly or indirectly, has an equity interest less than 20 percent,
are reported as 'Other financial investments.’

Subsidiary undertakings are those companies in which the Bank, directly or indirectly. has an interest of
more than one half of the share capital or otherwise has power to exercise control over the operations of the
entity. Associated undertakings are those companies in which the Bank, directly or indirestiy, holds 20 - 50
percent of the entity’s issued share capital.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 December 2001

Dividends are recorded as declared and included as a receivable in the balance sheet line ‘Prapayments and
accrued income’ and in ‘Income from investments in associated or subsidiary undertakings’in the profit and
loss statement. Upon payment of the dividend, the receivable is offset against the coliected cash.

Provisions against fixed asset investments are established as equal to the excess of cost over the entity's
equity balance.

Gains and losses arising from the re-translation of fixed asset investments deneminated in foreign currencies
are reported on the face of the balance sheet as ‘Other assets' or ‘Other liabilities' and are recognised
through the profit and loss statement only after the relevant investments are sold.

(c) Foreign currency transiation

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Czech Crowns and reported in the
financial statements at the exchange rate declared by the Czech National Bank (‘CNB’) prevailing as of the
balance sheet date. Income and expenses denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in Czech Crowns
in the underlying accounting systern of the Bank and are therefore reported in the financial statements as
retranslated at the official exchange rate prevailing as of the date of the transaction. Gains and losses arising
from movements in exchange rates after the date of the transaction are recognised in ‘Profi/(loss) on
financial operations.’ Net gains on the revaluation of fixed asset investments are recorded on the balance
shesl.

(d) Amounts due from banks and customers

Loans originated by the Bank by providing money directly to & borrower are categorised as loans originated
by the Bank and are carried at amortised cost. All loans and advances are recognised when cash is
advanced to borrowers.

Loans and advances to customers and financial institutions are stated net of provisions for loan losses. A
credit risk provision for loan impairment is established if there is objective evidence that the Bank will not be
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Czech National Bank no. 194/1998 Coll., which provides guidance on loan receivable classification and
provisioning against loan receivables. A portion of the classified loans which the Bank administers in a
special division are provisioned reflecting the expected recovery rates as estimated by the Bank, provided
that such a provisioning charge is greater than the provision established under the regulation of the Czech
National Bank. Specific provisions are assessed with reference to the credit standing and performance of the
barrower and take into account the value of any collateral or third party guarantees.

The Bank charges penalty interest to borrowers when a portion of the ioan falls overdus. Pursuant to the
Bank's internal policies, penalty interest is not covered by the collateral set aside against the loan of the
borrower. With effect from 1 January 2001, the Bank has altered its accounting treatment for penalty interest
reflecting the requirements set out in the regulation of the Czech Finance Ministry no. 282/65 327/2000,
which establishes the chart of accounts and the accounting principles for banks. Penalty interest assessed
subsequent to 1 January 2001 is accounted for as income in the profit and loss statement and reflected in
the on-balance sheet receivable balance and, whereas penalty interest assessed prior to 1 January 2001 is
retained in off balance sheet accounts, as was the case in 2000, and included in income when received. The
penalty interest in receivable balance are covered by provisions.

Komereni banka, a. s. Page 12
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

The Bank recorded a general provision for impairment of on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet loan
receivables. A portion of the general provision relating to the on-balance sheet exposures Is designed to
cover losses that are judged by the management of the Bank to be present in the loan portfolio as of the
balance sheet date, but which have not been allocated to specific or individual exposures.

The Bank writes off loss loans when clients are unable to fulfii their obligations to the Bank in respect of
these loans. The loan is written off against the related provision for loan impairment. Subsequent recoveries
are credited to the profit and loss statement in ‘Other income’ if previously written off.

Discounted bills of exchange are carried at nominal value. The related discount is included in the balance
sheet line 'Accruals and deferred incorne’ and is amortised on a straight line basis to income over the period
from acquisition till maturity,

(e) Securities

in accordance with the regutation of the Czech Finance Ministry no. 282/65 327/2000, which establishes the
chart of accounts and the accounting principles for banks, securities held by the Bank are categorised inta
portfolios in accordance with the Bank's intent on the acquisition of the securities and pursuant to the Bank's
security investment strategy. The Bank has classified securities as ‘Trading securities’, ‘Available for sale’
and ‘Held to maturity.’ :

All securities held by the Bank are recognised using settlement date accounting and initially measured at
their cost plus accrued coupon. The carrying value of debt securities is increased or decreased to reflect the
accrued interest income using the effective interest rate method. Interest income includes the accrued
income and the accrued difference between the nominal value of the security and its amortised cost.
Disposeals of securities are calculated using the average cost method, ’

The Bank establishes provisions against securities as equal to the excess of net carrying value over the
market value of the security. Provisions are recoghised on a daily basis in respect of securities held for
trading and on a monthly basis in respect of securities carried within the available for sale category or held to
maturity (as a result of the deterioraticn of credit risk attached to the security’s issuer).

Trading securities are reported on the face of the balance sheet as securities held for trading and capital
gains and losses and provisions are include in the profit and loss statement iine ‘Profit/(loss) on financial
operations.’ Securities available for sale and held to maturity are carried on the balance sheet within ‘Other
financial investments.’ Capital gains and losses on the disposal of the security are included in ‘Profit/{loss) on
financial operations’ whilst provisions are reported as provisions for fixed asset investrments and financial
investments.

Trading securities

Trading securities are financial assets (equity and debt securities, treasury bills, participation certificates)
acquired by the Bank for the purpose of generating a profit from fluctuations in prices in the short term,
typically defined as one year.

All purchases and sales of trading securities that require delivery within the time frame established by
regulation or market convention (‘regular way' purchases and sales) are recognised as spot transactions.
Transactions that do not meet the ‘regular way’ settlement criterion are treated as financial derivatives.

Komercni banka, a. s. Page 13
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

Investments held to maturity

Investments held to maturity are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Bank has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. This portfolio comprises treasury bills and
debt securities.

The Bank assesses on a regular basis whether there is any objective evidence that an investment held to
maturity may be impaired. A financial asset is impaired if its carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount which is equal to the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the
financial instrument’s original effective interest rate. The amount of the impairment loss for assets carried at
amortised cost is calculated as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the expected future cash flows discounted at the financial instrument's eriginal effective interest rate. When
the impairment of assets is identified, the Bank recognises provisions through the profit and loss statement
as provisions against financial investments,

Securities available for sale
Available for sale securities are those financial assets that are not classified as financial assets held for

trading or held-to-maturity investments. This portfolioc comprises equity securities and debt securities,
including asset backed securities and participation certificates.

(f) Tangible and intangible fixed assets

Tangible and intangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation together with
accumulated impairment Josses. Fixed assets are depreclated through the accumulated depreciation charge.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of each asset to their residual values
over their estimated useful economic life, Land and assets in the course of construction are not depreciated.

The estimated usefui economic lives in years are set out below:

Machinery and equipment, computers, vehicles 4
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 6
Energy machinery and equipment 12
Bulldings and structures 30
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the case of tangible fixed assets and CZK 60,000 in the case of intangible fixed assets with an estimated
useful life greater than one year are charged to the profit and loss statement when the expenditure is
incurred. Technical improvements costing greater than CZK 40,000 in respect of tangible fixed assets and
greater than CZK 60,000 in respect of intangible fixed assets increase the acquisition cost of the related fixed
asset. Acquisition costs of know-how greater than CZK 60,000 with an estimated useful life exceading one
year are recorded as intanglble fixed assets.

The Bank periodically tests its assets for impairment and temporary impairments are provisioned. Repairs
and renewals are charged to the profit and loss statement when the expenditure is incurred.

Komercni banka, a. s. Page 14
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

(g) Leases

Assets held under finance leases are not recognised on the balance sheet over the lease term. These assets
are recorded in the off balance sheet records. Amounts related to fixed asssts acquired under finance leases
are amortised and expensed over the lease termn. The future lease payments of the Bank are made by
reference to the payment schedule agreed upon within the finance lease arrangement,

At present the Bank does not act as a lessor for finance or operating leases.
(i} Provisions

Provisions are recognised, when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. In addition, the Bank
recorded provisions for standard loans and estimated losses on off balance sheet exposures.

(j) Certificated debts

Certificated debts issued by the Bank are stated at their nhominal value net of any unamortised interest
sxpense and premium or discount arising on issue. The premium or discount is amortised over the term of
issue to maturity using the effective interest rate method. Interest expense arising on the issue of certificated
debts is included in the profit and loss statement line ‘Interest expense and similar expenses.’'

(k) Recognition of Income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the profit and loss statement for all interest bearing
instruments on an accruals basis. Interest income intludes coupons earned on fixed income investrnents and
trading securities and accrued discount and premium on freasury bills and cther discounted instruments.
Penalty interest is accounted for on a cash basis. Fees and commissions are recognised as income in the

profit and foss staterment when due.

(l) Taxation




other jurisdictions in which the Bank operates,' based on the profit or loss l:ecognised in the income 'statement
prepared pursuant to Czech Accounting Standards.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, for témporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes.
Currently enacted tax rates are used to determine deferred income tax. The principal temporary differences
arise from depreciation on property, plant and equipment, specific and general provisions for loans,
securities valuation and tax losses carried forward. Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses carried
forward and other temporary differences are recagnised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the tax assets can be utilised.

Komercni banka, a. s. Page 15
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Year Ended 31 December 2001
(m) Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold under sale and repurchase agreements (‘repos’) are recorded as assets in the balance sheet
line ‘Amounts due from banks' or ‘Amounts due from customers’ and the counterparty liability is included in
'‘Amounts owed to banks’ or ‘Amounts owed to custorners’ as appropriate,

Securities purchased under agreements to purchase and resell (‘reverse repos') are recorded on the balance
sheet within the relevant category of trading securities or available for sale. Liabilities arising from the
securities acquired under reverse repos are included in the balance sheet line ‘Amounts owed to banks' or
‘Amounts owed to customers' as appropriate. Loans advanced under reverse repos are recorded as
‘Amounts due from banks' or ‘Amounts due from customners’ as appropriate. The difference between the sale
and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued evenly over the life of the repo agreement using the
effective interest rate. :

Transactions involving the sale of securities with a concurrently negotiated repurchase and the purchase of
securities with a concurrently negotiated resale are accounted for as repo and reverse repo transactions.

(n) Derivative financial instruments and hedging

in the normal course of business, the Bank is a party to contracts for derivative financial instruments which
represent a very low initial investment. The derivative financial instruments used include interest rate forward
or swap agreements and currency swaps. These financial instruments are used by the Bank to hedge
interest rate risk and currency exposures associated with its transactions in the financial markets. The Bank
also acts as an intermediary provider of these instruments to certain clients.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost and subsequently are
remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow
models and options pricing models as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is
positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative,

Certain derivatives are embedded in other financial instruments, such as the conversion option in a

—— e s e
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related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carrled at fair value with unrealised gains
and losses reported in the profit and loss statement.

Changes In the fair vaiue of derivatives held for trading are included in the profit and loss statement line
‘Profit/(loss) on financial operations.’

On the date a derivative contract is entered into, the Bank designates certain derivatives as hedges which
are recognised using hedging accounting rules provided that the criteria set out in the regulation of the
Czech Finance Ministry 282/65 327/2000, which establishes the chart of accounts and the accounting
principles for banks, are met.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financiai Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

The Bank’s eriteria for a derivative instrument to be accounted for as a hedge include;

(8) The Bank has developed a risk management strategy;

(b) At the inception of the hedge, the hedging relationship is formally documented, the documentation
identifies the hedged item and the hedging instrument, defines risk that is being hedged and the approach to
establishing whether the hedge is effective;

(c) The hedge Is effective, that is if changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item are almost
fully offset by changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedging instrurnent and the results are within a
range of 80 percent to 125 percent.

Changes in the fair value of derivativas that are designated and qualify as hedges and that prove to be highly
effective in relation to the hedged risk, are recorded in the balance sheet. The balances an the balance sheet
are taken to the profit and loss statement and classified as income and expenses in the periad in which the
hedged asset or liability impacts the profit and loss statement,

Certain derivative transactions, while providing effective economic hedges under the Bank's risk
management positions, do not qualify for hedge accounting and are therefore treated as derivatives held for
trading with fair value gains and losses reported in the prafit and loss statement 'Profit/(loss) on financial
operations.'

As of 1 January 2001, pursuant to the requirements of the regulation of the Czech Finance Ministry 282/65
327/2000, which establishes the chart of accounts and the accounting principles for banks, the Bank re-
assessed transactions that were originally treated as hedges in 2000 and where these transactions did not
qualify for special hedge accounting these instruments wers treated as trading items and marked to market.
The difference of CZK 140 million arising between the previous carrying value and the fair vaiue was
reported in the profit and loss statement as income for the current accounting period.

(o) Regulatory requirements
The Bank is subject to the regulatory requirements of the Czech National Bank. These regulations include

limits and other restrictions pertaining to minimum capital adequacy requirements, classification of loans and
off balance sheet commitments and provisioning to cover credit risk, liquidity, interest rate and foreign

currency positian.

(p) Extraordinary income and costs
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accruals basis.
(q) New accounting pronouncements for 2002

With effect from 1 January 2002, the regulation of the Czech Finance Ministry dated 15 November 2001,
which establishes the chart of accounts and the accounting principles for banks and certain financial
institutians, has altered the accounting and valuation policies of securities, the accounting treatment for repo
transactions and recognition of reserves. As a result of the implementation of the new accounting policies as
of 1 January 2002, the Bank generated a one-off gain that was recognised as extracrdinary income or costs,
as appropriate, in accordance with the transitory provisions of the new regulation,

Key changes are set out below:
Komercni banka, a. s. Page 17
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

Securities

As of 1 January 2002, the Bank has allocated securities into four portfolios: ‘Held for trading’, ‘Available for
sale’, ‘Held to maturity’ and ‘Acquired under initial offerings not designated for trading.’ The securities are
initially measured at their cost including sall transaction costs attributable to their acquisition. Securities held
to maturity and carried within the new portfolic of securities acquired under initial offerings are stated at
amortised cost and any impairment associated with credit risk is provisioned. As of 1 January 2002,
securities held for trading and available for sale are fair valued and changes in the fair value are recognised
through the profit and loss staternent. The Bank recognised a one-off gain of CZK 830 million as a result of
the remeasurement of securities to fair values as of 1 January 2002.

In the event of the repurchase of its own certificated debts the Bank does not recognise these debts as
assets but reduces the balance of own cenrtificated debts reported as liabilities, The difference between the
cost and the accrued value of the issued certificated debts is reported as profit or loss. As of 1 January 2002,
the Bank incurred a one-off loss of approximately CZK 50 million from the reversal of its own certificated
debts,

With effect from 1 January 2002, the gains or losses arising from the sale of treasury shares are not
recognised through the profit and loss statement but directly impact the Bank’s equity. As such, the Bank
released the provision for treasury equities established for the losses associated with their disposal as equal
to the difference of their carrying value and the current market velue.

Reverse repo transactions

Securities received as collateral under reverse repo transaclions are not recognised on the Bank's balance
sheet and are stated at fair value in off balance sheet memorandum accounts, The off balance sheet
accounts do not reflect collateral that is subject to a short sale. The reverse repo is defined as a standard
reverse repurchase transaction and also as a borrowing of securities secured by the transfer of financial
assets and a purchase of securities with a concurrently negotiated resale.

Provisioning policies

As part of the adoption of the amended accounting procedures, the Bank updated its provisioning policy. A
provision may recognised‘only when there is an obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made and all these criteria must be met simultaneously. In
this context, the Bank is re-assessing Its current provisioning policles, primarily in relation to credit risk
management.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 December 2001

4 Net interest incame

Net interest income comprises:

Year ended 31

AV, TJUUY L (S

Year ended 31

December 2001 December 2000
CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000
interest income
- Loens and advances to financial institutions 11 790 100 12 704 816
- Loans and advances to customers 14 091 501 14 782 663
- Bonds, treasury bills and other fixed income securities 2 805 224 1 608 048
Total interest income 28 686 825 29 095 527
interest expense
- Amounts owed to financial institutions (3 427 126) (4 386 293)
- Amounts owed to customers (9 233 583) (10 284 173)
- Certificated debts (2 460 861) (2 081 185)

Total interest expense

(15 121 580)

(16 751 661)

Net interest income

13 565 245

12 343 866

Interest income on loans and advances to customers as of 31 December 2001 also includes accrued penalty
interest of CZK 761,162 thousand assessed subsequent to 1 January 2001, of which CZK 593,208 thousand
remained outstanding as of 31 December 2001, The Bank has established provisions against outstanding

penalty interest.

5 Net fees and commissions

Net fees and commissions comprise:

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

December 2001 December 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000
Fees and commissions income 8 486 429 5426 949
Fees and commissions expense (505 042) (1 005 225)
Net fees and commilssions income 5981 387 4 421 724

Fees and commissions comprise commission income and expenses received or paid principally in respect of
loan administration, issued guarantees and agency services,
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

6 Profit/(loss) on financial opérations

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
Decermnber 2001  December 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000

Gains/(losses) on trading securities 81 268 27 832)
Gains/(losses) on investment securities 97 490 (133 967)
Provisions against trading securities ' 9 850 1136 616
Net income from foreign exchange commissions from clean and 1478 177 1 599 801
documentary payments
Net income from commissions from foreign exchange 882 265 1159 341
transactions
Realised and unrealised gains/{losses) on foreign exchange 438 847 (361 396)
trading and currency derivatives
Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on interest rate and 194 358 (144 696)
credit derivatives
Realised and unrealised galns/(losses) on commeodity derivatives 2 339 0
Realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on security derivatives 39 781 0
Realised and unrealised gains/({iosses) on securities trading an (221) (11 757)
behalf of customers
Profit/(loss) on financial operations 3154 154 3216010
7 Other income and expenses
Other income and expenses comprise:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2001 31 December 2000




CZK '000 CZK *000 CZK '000 GCZK '000
Income/(expenses) from the sale of assets 181 437 (161 989) 196 032 (111 6071)
Income/(expenses) from the sale of fixed 0 0 150 140 (64 635)
asset investments '
Income/(expenses) from written off loan 0 0 84 746 0
receivables from banks
Income/(expenses) from written off loan 2252415 (152 834) 7402 840 (5161 220)
receivables from customers
Income/(expenses) from other written off 0 (129 367) 41 (46 004)
receivables
Income/(expenses) from transferred 6 015 (1706 450) 29 582 090 (49 208 469)
receivables
Remuneration to Management and 0 (115 397) 0 (40 018)
Supervisory Boards
Other operating income/(expenses) 656 689 (1 164 996) 111943 (1266 828)
Total 3096 556 (3 431 033) 37 527 832 (55898 775)
Prior years numbers (2000) reflect assets transfers to Konpo and related income/ expense.
Komercni banka, 8. s. Page
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

8 Goneral operaling costs

In addition to wages and salaries and social security costs, genheral aperating costs in the aggregate amount
of CZK 12,141,073 thousand comptise purchased consumables and depreciation/amortisation of {angible
and intangible fixed assets. Wages and salaries include Management Board bonuses paid under
management contracts and compensation paid under the equity compensation scheme, Remuneration to the
members of the Management and Supervisory Boards arising from mandate contracts are recorded in the
profit and loss statement line 'Other costs.'

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

December 2001 December 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK '000
Wages and salaries (4 418 105) (3910 700)
Social security costs (1137 610) {1 036 069)
Health insurance costs v . (381 182) (343 280)
Staff costs (5 936 897) (5 290 049)
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets (1 239 461) (1 497 888)
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets (558 108) (340 207)
Taxes and charges (44 BB7) (60 484)
Purchased consumables (4 361 740) (4 106 968)
Other operating costs {6 204 176) (6 005 547)
Total generai operating costs {12 141 073) {11 295 598)
Number of employees at the year-end 9 299 10 703
Average number of employees during the year g B73 11 865
Average cost per employee (CZK) , 601 327 445 853

Restructuring costs

The management of the Bank approved a restructuring plan for the Bank in June 2000. The plan was
announced in July 2000 and implemented primarily in 2000. During 2001, the Bank continued implementing
its restructuring program, the most significant matters being the centralisation and redistribution of certain
activities and services to the Bank's specialised subsidiaries (refer to Note 2 to the financial statements).

Costs relating to the restructuring comprise costs of severance and compensation associated with reducing
staff numbers, ¢osts of disposal of redundant buildings and early termination of leases and costs reflecting
the impairment of under-utilised leasehold improvements on leased premises.

Following the entrance of the new sharehalder, the Bank reviewed the location, appearance and positioning
of its branch netwark in the context of its strategic plans for customers and preduct delivery in the three-year
period from 2002 through 2004. This review identified a number of buildings, owned and leased, whose
location and eppearance is not compatble with such plans. The Bank's intention i3 to dispose of these
premises and vacate the leases as and when the market conditions allow in the medium term. The
impairment charge from this review and earlier reviews amounts to CZK 1,276,312 thousand and includes
expected josses on the sale of premises presently owned by the Bank, the writedown of leasehoid
improvements on leased premises for which it intends to sell or terminate the rental agreements and the
writedown of the carrying amount of prepaid rentals on buildings that will be vacated. Management of the
Bank considers such impairment charges as restructuring costs.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

Restructuring costs comprise:

Year ended 34 Year ended 31
December 2001 December 2000

CZK '000 CZK '000
Redundancy compensation costs 85 546 320 065
Impairment charge relating to branch network and termination of - 1276312 252 000
leases ;
Other restructuring costs 393 427 255 044
Total restructuring costs , ) 1 755 285 827 109

Of the aggregate restructuring costs of CZK 1 755 285 thousand, CZK 1 278 135 thousand is charged in the
creation/use of provisions for tangible and intangibie assets, CZK 80 787 thousand in staff costs and CZK
396,363 thousand in the creation/use of other provision and reserves.

L) Reserves and provisions

Provisions are established pursuant to the regulation of the Czech National Bank no. 194/1998 Coll., which
provides guidance on loan receivable classification and provisioning against loan recsivables. Classified
loans which the Bank administers in a special division are provisioned reflecting the expected recovery rates
as estimated by the Bank, provided that such a provisioning charge is greater than the provision required
under the ragulation of the Czech National Bank.

Tax deductible reserves for general banking risks and reserves for repairs of tangible assets are recorded in
accordance with Provisioning Act 593/1992 Coll., as amended (the ‘Pravisioning Act').

In addition, the Bank creates non-tax deductible reserves to cover general risk inherent in the ioan porifolio in
an amount in excess of the statutory limit set out in the Provisioning Act, reserves for fixed asset investments
and other financial investments and reserves for restructuring costs,

Prior to the end of 2001, provisions for loans to borrowers in bankruptey were recorded in special anaiytical
accounts and the Bank recorded tax deductible and non-tax deductible provisions pursuant to the
Provisioning Act. Effective 2001, the Bank recognises provisions for new bankruptcies as a component of
loan loss provisions,

During the year ended 31 December 2001, pursuant to the Provisioning Act, the Bank created tax deductible
reserves for the risks inherent in the standard loan portfolio as equal to 1 percent of the average balance of
these loans and reserves for guarantees issued equivalent to 2 percent of the average balance of these
receivables. In addition, the Bank recorded non-tax deductible reserves for standard loans/guarantees above
the set limit.

The use of reserves and provisions involves their drawing and release into income. Reserves and provisions
are used when loans are sold or written off against the costs associated with the sale or write-off. Reserves
and provisions are released into income in circumstances where the Bank reassesses the requirements for
such provisions, for exampie when the loan classification is upgraded or when the loan is sold for a value

greater than the net book value.

For futher information refer to Note 3(i).
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 December 2001

Reserves and provisions for loans and guarantees

Balance at 1 Creation Use FX affect Balancoe at

January 2001 31 December

2001

CZK ‘000 CZK '000 CZK ‘000 CZK ‘900 CZK '000

Provisions for classified 12 275 425 7 531 210 5194 276 (234 683) 14 377 €78

loans

of which: banks 13 088 35610 35097 (808) 12793

of which: customers 12 262 337 7 495 600 5159 179 (233 875) 14 364 883

Provisions far debtors in 1 444 423 491 379 730 254 {8 450) 1197 098
bankruptey

of which: banks 0 o 4] o ¢]

of which: customers 1444 423 491 379 730 254 (8 450) 1197 098

Total provisions 13 719 B48 8 022 589 5924 530 (243 133) 15 §74 774

of which: banks 13 088 35610 35097 (BOB) 12793

of which: custorners 13 706 760 7 986 979 5889 433 (242 325) 15 561 981

Total reserves 8 387 171 2736 419 491 913 0 10 631 677

Reserves and provislons 22 107 019 10 759 008 6 416 443 (243 133) 26 206 451

Of the aggregate reserve of CZK 10,631,677 thousand for loans and guarantees, CZK 9,709,682 thousand
is tax deductible and CZK 921,995 thousand non-tax deductible. The non-tax deductible reserves are
reported in the balance sheet line ‘Reserves for other banking risks.! The balance of CZK 10,631,677
thousand comprises the reserve for loans of CZK 8,780,117 thousand and the reserves for guarantees of
CZK 1,851,560 thousand,

General reserve for risks and uncertainties inherent In the Ioan portfolio

The Bank’s ioan portfolio includes a number of risks that cannot be specifically identified as such.

As of 31 December 2001, the Bank maintains reserves of CZK 8,780,117 million to cover the risks and
uncertainties, which may be present in the loan portfolic as of that date but which cannot be allocated to
individual exposures. This reserve also covers an assessment of the Bank's participation in the aggregate
losses incurred an the guaranteed risk portfolio covered by the State Guarantee (see above). The
breakdown of the reserve for general risks is as follows:

Risk Reserve

CZK ‘000
Standard loans 3 304 600
Other general credit risks 5475 517
Total 8 780 117
Komercni banka, a. s. Page 23
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

Reserve for risks and uncertainties inherent in off balance sheet credit-reiated commitments and

credit instruments

As of 31 December 2001, the balance of the reserve for other credit commitments was CZK 1,851,560
thousand. This reserve covers credit risks associated with issued credit commitments, off balance sheet
credit instruments and the participation in the estimated losses on the guaranteed porifolio of off balance
sheet exposures of the Bank pursuant to the Guarantee Agreement dated 29 December 2000 (see above).

Reserves and provisions for tangible and intangible assets

Balance at1 Creation Use Balance at 31

January 2001 December 2001

CZK '000 CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000

Provisions for tangible 152 000 1145 983 83 573 1214 410
assels

Provisions for intangible 221 000 328 663 269 014 280 649
assets

Reserves 0 41 809 o) 41 809

Total reserves and 373 000 1 516 455 352 587 1 536 868

provisions

For further information refer to Note 8, sub-caption 'Restructuring cests.’

Reserves and provisions for fixed asset investments and financial investments

Balance at 1 Creation Use FX effect Baiance at 31
January 2001 December
2001
CZK ‘000 CZK '000 CZK ‘000 CZK 000 CZK ‘000
Provisions for fixed assat 533 836 395 759 177 548 (147) 751 900
investments
Reserves for fixed asset 0 388 000 108 000 (o] 280 000
investments
Reserves and provisions 533 836 783 759 285 548 (147) 1031 800
for fixed asset
investments
Provisions far financial 692 099 4 022 640 2 559 568 (23 558) 2131613
- investments
Reserves for financial 322 000 0 322 000 0 0
investments
Researves and provisions 1014099 4022 640 2 881 568 (23 558) 2131613
for financial investments
Total reserves and 1 547 935 4 806 399 3167 116 (23 705) 3163 513
provisions
Komercni banka, a. s. Page 24
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As of 31 December 2001, the Bank carried a reserve for the estimated losses of Komercni pojistovna which
are expected to exceed the entity’s equity. This reserve provided for the amount of the known aggregate
accumulated losses reported by the entity as of 31 December 2001.

Other reserves and provisions

Closure of foreign representative offices
Terrmination of lease agreernents
Legal disputes

Disposal of redundant inventories
Advisory costs

Equity compensation program

Wages and salaries

Other risks

Total other reserves

Provisions for other receivables

Total other reserves and provisions

10 Taxation

Balance at 1 Creation Use Balance at 31
January 2001 December 2001
CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000 CZK '000 CZK ‘000

21 200 0 21 200 0

100 000 96 000 100 000 96 000

0 100 385 1439 98 946

0 49 400 12 612 36 788

55810 1562 603 89 977 108 436

53 000 130 447 174 624 8 823

282 516 1 396 100 1 464 554 194 062

0 314 837 205 802 108 035

492 526 2239772 2 080 208 652 090

254 738 545738 239 758 560 747

747 264 2 785 510 2 319 967 1212 807

The major components of corporate jncome tax expense are as follows:

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

December December 2000

2001
CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000
Tax payable - current year 745 167 10 547
Tax paid - prior year 17 355 {51)
Deferred tax movement 728 & 912
Total income tax expense 763 250 17 408

The tax of CZK 17,355 thousand paid in the prior year primarily represents an additional tax charge
assessed by the tax office pursuant to its tax review in respect of the year ended 31 December 1999,

Komercni banka, a. s.
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Notes to the Unconsoiidated Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 December 2001

The corporate tax rate for the year ended 31 Decemiber 2001 is 31 % (2000: 31 %). The effective tax rate as
of 31 December 2001 is 23 % (2000: zero %). The tax on the operating profit differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the basic tax rate as follows:

Year ended 31
December 2001

Year ended 31
December 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK '000
Profit/(loss) before tax (current tax rate) 3 387 455 (202 239)
Profit befare tax (special tax rate) 19 437 70 312
Profit/(loss) before tax 3 386 892 (131 927)
Theoretical tax credit calculated at a tax rate of 31% and 1 046 827 (82 147)
15%, respectively (1999: 31%)
Income not taxable, primarily interest (4 387 458) (7 240 4286)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 4 669 200 6 987 102
- Provisions for loan losses 1 390 943 1278 674
- Other non-deductible costs 3 278 257 5 708 428
Utilisation of tax loasses carried forward (558 148) 316 018
Non-consolidated tax losses (only consalidation)
Other (20 812)
Movement on deferred tax 728 6912
Tax allowance (4 442)
Inceme tax expense 742 980 6 912
Other tax expense (15% foreign dividend tax) 2 915 1Q 547
Prior period tax expense 17 355 {51)
withholding tax (15% local dividend tax) 0 (o]
Tatal income tax expense 763 250 17 408

The Bank's tax liability is calculated based upon the accounting profit/(loss) taking into account tax non-
deductible expenses and tax exempt income or income subject to the final tax rate.

The Bank’s tax liability as of 31 December 2001 was calculated taking into the account the availability and
use of its tax losses carried forward from previous accounting periods. At the beginning of July 2001, the tax
office allowed the Bank to increase the limit for tax deductible provisions for the year 2000 by CZK 4 billion in
excess of the statutory provisioning limit. This gave rise to a tax loss in 2000 which is available for utilisation
in 2001. As of 31 December 2001 the Bank has no corporate income tax losses to carry forward into future

accounting periods.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income taxes are calculated on all lemporary differences using the corporate income tax rate
effective for the following year, that is 31 percent (2000: 31 percent).

Komercni banka, a. s.

Page

26



o ARAALL, W VWV W 4 o vl Vdva oy L A TRy o LT aJUUY PARVIEN VRS L, LU

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

The movement on the deferred income fax account is as follows;

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December December 2000

2001
CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000
At beginning of period (80 391) (73 479)
- fixed asset depreciation 21 124 (6 912)
- penalty interest and contractual penaities (21 852) 0
At end of period (81 119) (80 391)

The movement in the deferred income tax account comprises the movement in accelerated tax depreciation.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items:

31 December 31 December

2001 2000
CZK ‘000 CZK '000

Deferred income tax liabilities
Accelerated tax depreciation {59 267) (80 391)
Penalty interest and contractual penalties {21 852) 0
Other temporary differences 0 0
(81 119) {80 391)

Deferred income tax assets

General and specific loan loss provisions 394 000 2 387 000
Reserves and provisions for assets 450 970 0
Other reserves 124 870 0
Provisions for non-banking receivables 64 385 0
Tax loss carry forwards (o] 118 000
Unrealised losses on securities 190 848 290 000
Fixed asset depreciation 0 0
Other temporary differences 85 286 268 000
' 1 310 369 3 063 000
Net deferred income tax asset before adjustment 1 229 250 2 982 609
Adjustment for uncertain realisation of tax asset {1 310 369) (3 063 000)
Net deferred income tax liability (81 119) (80 391)

The reduction in the unrecognised deferred tax asset as of 31 December 2001 when compared with the prior
yvear end reflects primarily changes in the treatmen! of the general reserves held by the Bank as of 31
December 2001 pursuant to the prospective application of amendments to the Act on Reserves. The Act as
presently drafted requires that the Bank release these provisions in the accounting periods ending 31
December 2005. -
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2001

11 Extraordinary income, extraordinary costs

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2001 December 2000

CZK '000 CZK '000
Extraordinary income 825 799 218 176
Extraordinary costs (274 986) (61 341)
Net extraordinary income 550 813 ' 156 835

Extraordinary income and costs principally consist of income and costs that relate to the previous accounting
period, such as the recognition of identified errors and unbooked transactions and aiso exceptional events
that relate to the current period but are not part of the Bank's nermal business, such as losses incurred,
damages and compensation for damage.

For the year ended 31 Dscember 2001, extraordinary income and costs principally consisted of non-
recurring income and costs of CZK 428 million and CZK 121 million, respectively, from the write-off and write
back of receivables and payables held in suspense and clearing accounts. A significant proportion of these
balances arose as a result of payment transactions at the beginning of the 1990's in connection with the
Bank’s migration to a new banking system for domestic payments and unsettled amounts that were due to
the clean and documentary payment system being effected through a [ocal banking intermediator.

Extraordinary income and costs additionally comprise incorne and costs arising from a transaction effected in
2000 under which a loan insured by EGAP was transferred and the insurance company paid the insurance
claim, The aggregate income and costs recognised as a result of this transaction amounted to CZK 154
million and CZK 180 million, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2001, the Bank corrected errors in the recognition of fair vaiues of
certain derivative transactions, The difference of CZK 95 million between the carrying value and the actual

fair value was recorded as extraordinary income.

As of 31 December 2001, the balance of identified deficits and damage is CZK 24 million, of which CZK 8
million was recognised as income as a result of financial surpluses and compensation collected in respect of
the deficits and damage.

12 Cash in hand, deposits with central banks, treasury bills

Cash and balances with central banks comprise:

31 December 31 Decemnber

2001 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK '000

Cash in hand 8 687 988 7 913 287

Balances with the Czech National Bank B 571 854 11 873 740

Total cash and balances with central banks 17 259 842 19 787 027
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Balances with the Czech National Bank include:

31 December 31 December

2001 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK '000

Obligatory minimum reserves 6 101 355 5055 577
Depasits repayable on demand 2470499 6 818 163
Total 8 571 854 11 873 740

As of 31 December 2001, obligatory rninimum reserves bore interest at 2 percent per annum.

Governmaent treasury bills and other treasury bills

31 December 31 December

2001 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK '600

Government treasury bills 15517 207 11 368 789
Other treasury bills 79 673 000 84 857 000
Total -85 190 207 76 225 789

As of 31 December 2001, treasury bills received under repo transactions amounted to CZK 93,200,000
thousand (2000: CZK 64,857,000 thousand).

13 Amounts due from banks

31 December 31 December

2001 2000

CZK '000 CZK '000

Term placements and loans tc banks 74 442 392 104 458 493

Advances due from central banks (repo transactions) 81 172 000 70 854 000

Piacements with other banks 951 464 1120 527

Total 156 565 856 178 433 020

Specific provisions against balances due from financial (12 793) (13 088)
institutions 7

Total due from banks 156 553 063 176 419 932

Advances due from central banks are collateralised by treasury bills and other debt securities issued by
Czech National Bank of CZK 79,673,000 thousand (2000: CZK 64,857,000 thousand) and the Ministry of
Finance of the Czech Republic of CZK 13,527,000 thousand (2000: CZK nil).

The year-on-year decrease in the balances due from banks is partially attributable to the wransfer of amounts
due from the former Kensolidacni banka, which was transformed inte a non-banking institution Ceska
konsolidacni agentura as of 1 September 2001, from the amounts due from banks to the amounts due from
customers. As of 31 December 20017, the Bank recorded the aggregate balances due from Ceska
konsolidacni agentura of CZK 49,765,145 thousand (2000: CZK 52,642,417 thousand).
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Set out below is an analysis by remaining maturity:

31 December

TJIVJ L. di

31 December

2001 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK 000

On demand 218 475 777 073
Less than 3 months 149 737 756 113 580 988
Less than 1 year 5 585 531 10 157 397
From 1 to 2 years 2370 5558 125
From 2 to 4 years 877 030 10 359 067
From 4 to 5 years 0 36 000 370
Over S years 147 694 0
Total 156 565 856 176 433 020

The proportion of loans with remaining maturity less than one year to the aggregate balances due from

banks represents 99,34 percent (2000: 70.57 percent).

Written off loans and income from written off loans to banks comprise:

Written off loans

Income from written off loans

14 Amounts due from customers

Amounts due fram customers comprise:

31 December

31 December

2001 2000
CZK '000 CZK '000
0] 0

0 84 746

31 December

31 December

2001 2000

CZK ‘00C CZK '000

Loans and advances to customers 207 538 870 144 642 615
Bills of exchange 912 141 1 356 267
Forfaits 873 969 1676 295
Total gross loans and advances to customers 209 324 980 147 675177
Less provisions for loan losses (15 561 981) (13 706 760)
Total amounts due from custemers, net 193 762 999 133 968 417

The substantial increase in the amounts due from customers is due primarily to the transfer of amounts due
from the former Konsolidacni banka from the amounts due from banks to the amounts due from customers.
Ceska konsalidacni agentura (the Czech Consolidation Agency, henceforth 'CKA') was forrmed as the iega!
successor to Konsolidacni banka Praha, s. p. u. ('Konsolidacni banka') pursuant to Czech Consolidation
Agency Act No. 238/2001 Coll., which took effect on 1 September 2001 (the ‘Act’). CKA was established as
the legal successor of Konsolidacni banka under Section 19 of the Act. Under Section 1 of the Act, the
commitments of CKA, as was the case with its legal predecessor Konsolidacni banka (under Section 44a of

Banking Act No. 21/1992 Coll.), are guaranteed by the Czech State,

Komereni banka, a. s.
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As of 31 December 2001, the Bank recorded the amount of CZK 49,765,145 thousand due from CKA (2000;
CzK 52,642,417 thousand).

Of the total forfaits of CZK 873,969 thousand (2000: CZK 1,676,295 thousand), forfaits issued by foreign
debtors amount to CZK 25,735 thousand (2000; CZK 3,626 thousand).

Amounts due from customers include interest due of CZK 2,810,248 thousand (2000: CZK 1,313,578
thousand), of which CZK 958,114 thousand (2000: CZK 748,352 thausand) represents interest of loans
overdue.

The loan portfolio of the Bank as of 31 December 2001 comprises the following breakdown by classification:

Gross Collateral Net

receivable applied exposure
CZK '000 CZK '000 CZK '000
Standard 144 233634 92494995 51736639
Watch 26025490 14179234 11846 256
Substandard 11153160 8099453 3053707
Doubtful 11051522 5870900 5180622
Loss 16881174 17010983 15 160 081
Total 209 324 980 122 345675 86 979 305
Provisions Carrying Provisions
value
CZK '000 CZK ‘000 %
Standard o 144 233 634 0
Watch 712 588 25312 902 6.02
Substandard 566 317 10 586 843 18.55
Doubtful 1 967 308 9 084 214 37.97
Loss 12 315 768 4 545 406 81.24
Total 15 561 9681 193 762 999 17.89

* Proviglening percentage by category doas not conform to the requirement of the Czech Natlonal Bank as the ‘Collateral’ item does not

reflect the state guarantee value as described below in this note.

Set out below is the breakdown of loans by sector :

Agriculture

Processing industry
Distribution and production of energy

Construction

Trade, catering, transport and commuinication

Insurance, banking

Ceska konsolidacni agentura /*

Komercni banka, &. s.

2001 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK ‘000
7 966 347 9 523 368
47 467 797 51351373
8211 798 7772629
3 965 532 4 944 530
34 642 891 32 024 323
11 296 311 11 353 573
49 765 145 v
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Other 46 009 159 30 705 381

Total loans to clients ) 209 324 980 147 675 177
/* Loans to CKA were carried within the amounts due from banks as of 31 December 2000.
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Set out below is an analysis by remaining maturity:
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2001 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK '000

On demand 1 926 460 1 040 497
Less than 3 months 38 638 360 25246 014
Less than 1 year 43 598 226 42 725 242
From 1 to 2 years 10 825 658 13 684 318
From 2 te 4 years 67 800 015 23627 029
From 4 to 5 years 7 009 597 10 473 330
Over 5 years 39 426 664 30 878 747
Total 209 324 980 147 875 177

The proportion of loans with remaining maturity less than one year to the aggregate balances due from

customers represents 40.21 percent (2000: 46.73 percent).

Written off loans and income from written off loans to customers by sector comprise:

2001 2000

CZK ‘000 CZK '000

Agricuiture 17 214 100 017
Processing industry 34 814 1 150 614
Distribution and production of energy 0 36 115
Construction 3121 157 904
Trade, catering, transport and communication 46 481 1406 806
Insurance, banking 248 1217 801
Other 25 168 1068 433
Total writtean off loans 127 046 5137 790
Current account debit balances written off 25 788 69 434
Total written off receivables 152 834 5207 224
Income fram written off receivables 2252415 7 402 881

Of the receivables written off, the write-off of CZK 99,640 thousand was covered by provisioning charges and
the write-off of CZK 228 thousand was covered by the use of general reserves,

Income from written off receivables from customers amounted to CZK 2,252,415 thousand. Of this aggregate
balance, recoveries from fully written off receivables from customers amounted to CZK 2,245,211 thausand
and income from current account debit balances amounted to CZK 7,204 thousand. Income from written off
receivables from custorners also include proceeds of CZK 1,414,909 thousand from the sale of fully wriiten

off receivables to Konpo.
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Set out below is an analysis of types of collateral underiying loans and advances to customers:

Total client Discounted Applied
loan client loan client loan
collateral collateral collateral
value value
31 31 31
December Dscember December
2001 2001 2001
CZK '000 CZK ’000 CZK 000
Guarantees of state 60813434 59366992 54973068
and governmental
institutions
Bank guarantee 3729 202 2 807 939 2 386 895
Guaranteed dSpOSitS 1 552 622 1 550 699 1224617
Issued debentures in 12994754 12994754 12994754
pledge
Pledge of movable 10 040 130 978 664 947 858
assets
corporate entity
Guarantee by 4 821 407 535 533 530 379
individua! (physical
entity)
P[edge of receivables 17 285 404 7 110 070 6 101 565
Insurance of credit risk 5042738 4972319 4939587
Other 13312544 9009984 6988059
Total nominal value  3p2 869 953 146 361 948 122 345 B75
of collateral
Total client Discounted Applied
loan cllentloan clientioan
collateral coliateral collateral
value vailue
31 31 31
December December December
2000 2000 2000
CZK 'o00 CZK '000 CZK '000
Guarantees of state 8498194 7873019 2751820
and governmental
institutions
Bank guarantee 2773817 2644 198 2 419 500
Guaranteed de‘pcsits 1 496 346 1 496 146 988 300
{ssued debentures in 4 000 3200 3200
pledge
Pledge of reai estate 177 920336 72 555 149 45738 000
6 498 491 657 715 657 714

Pledge of movable
assets

Komercni banka, a. s.
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Guarantee by 19738960 9988326 8324944
corporate entity

Guarantee by 4 069 403 3 373 621 2811803
individual (physical

entity)

Pledge of receivables 6580620 5024855 4 188 052
Insurance of credit risk 6 616 379 6616 379 6 6818 379

Other 13264991 9627391 B 726 585
Total nominal value 247 461 537 119859999 83 226 297
of collateral

The pledges on industrial real-estate represent 57 percent of total pledges on real estate (2000: 80 percent).
State guarantee cavering losses on the Bank’s risk assets

On 29 December 2000, the Bank entered into an agreement with Konselidacni banka under which
Konsolidacni banka will cover losses, Up to a maximum amount of CZK 20,000 million, which may be
incurred over a three year period, which began on 31 December 2000, on a defined portfolio of classified
exposures. This agreement was sighed on 29 December 2000 on the basis of the resolution of the
Government of the Czech Republic dated 18 December 2000. The guarantee applies to the net book value
(defined as principal less specific provision) of assets classified as substandard, doubtful and ioss (in
accordance with relevant CNB regulations) as of 31 December 2000. This defined portfolio corresponds
largely with that portfolic held within the Bank’'s Debt Recovery Division. The payment under the guarantee
agreement is effected through a mechanism whereby the Bank’s participation increases as the aggregate
loss incurred on the defined portfolio increases. The Bark will retain these assets on its balance sheet and
continue to maximise recovery. Tha difference between the net book value as of 31 December 2000 and the
actual amount recovered by December 2003 is covered by the guarantee up to a maximum amount of CZK
20,000 million, In accardance with the agreement this amount wiil be settled in either cash or Government
securities by 30 June 2004.

The table below sets out the structure of the Bank’s participation in losses incurred on the guaranteed
portiolio:

Final losses Guarantee paid by Bank’s participation in Bank’s cumulative
Konsolidacni banka final losses participation In final losses
(CZKm) {CZKm)
0 - 10,000 85% 5% 500
10,000 - 20,000 CZK 9,500 millian plus CZK 500 million 2,000
85% of the amount over plus 15% of the amount
CZK 10,000 rnillion over CZK 10,000 million
20,000 - 25,000 CZK 18,000 million CZK 2,000 million 5,000

plus 40% of the amount plus 80% of the amount
over CZK 20,000 miliion over CZK 20,000 million
Qver 25,000 CZK 20,000 miliion " CczZK 5,000 million -
plus 100% of the amount
over CZK 25,000 million
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